SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORP Form S-4/A October 25, 2018 <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u>

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 25, 2018

Registration No. 333-227367

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

Amendment No. 1 to FORM S-4 REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Synovus Financial Corp. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

| Georgia | 6021 | 58-1134883 |
|--|------------------------------|------------------------|
| | (Primary Standard Industrial | (I.R.S. Employer |
| incorporation or organization) | Classification Code Number) | Identification Number) |
| 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500 | | |
| Columbus, Georgia | | |
| 31901 | | |
| (706) 649-2311 | | |
| (Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant's Principal | | |
| Executive Offices) | | |

Allan E. Kamensky

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500 Columbus, Georgia 31901 (706) 649-2311 (Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

Copies to:

| Lee A. Meyerson | Kent Ellert | Edward D. Herlihy |
|--------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| Elizabeth A. Cooper | Jack Partagas | Mark F. Veblen |
| Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP | FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. | Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz |
| 425 Lexington Avenue | 2500 Weston Road, Suite 300 | 51 West 52 nd Street |
| New York, New York 10017 | Weston, Florida 33331 | New York, New York 10019 |
| Phone: (212) 455-2000 | Phone: (954) 984-3313 | Phone: (212) 403-1000 |

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the securities to the public: As soon as practicable after this registration statement becomes effective and upon completion of the merger described in the enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. o

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company and emerging growth company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

| Large accelerated filer | Accelerated filer | 0 |
|-------------------------|-----------------------------|---|
| Non-accelerated filer | o Smaller reporting company | 0 |
| Emerging Growth Company | 0 | |

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act o

If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:

Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer) o

Exchange Act Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer) o

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

| Title of each class of securities to be registered | Amount to be registered | Proposed maximum offering price per unit | Proposed maximum aggregate offering price | Amount of registration fee |
|--|----------------------------|--|---|-------------------------------|
| Common Shares, par value \$1.00 per share | 54,597,983 (1) | N/A | \$ 2,643,473,873.36 (2) | \$ 329,112.50 (3)(4) |

Based on the maximum number of shares of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share (Synovus common stock), of the registrant, Synovus Financial Corp. (Synovus) estimated to be issued in connection with the merger described herein (the merger). This number is based on the product of (a) the sum of (i) 46,805,805, the aggregate number of shares of Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (FCB Class A common stock), of FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. (FCB), outstanding as of September 10, 2018, except for shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB as treasury stock or owned by FCB or Synovus (in each case other than in a fiduciary or agency capacity or as a result of debts previously contracted), which number includes 96,133 shares of FCB Class A common stock granted in respect of outstanding FCB time-vesting restricted stock awards (assuming achievement of any applicable performance goals), plus (ii) 3,084,664, the aggregate number of shares of FCB Class A common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options outstanding as of September 10, 2018, plus (iii) 139,576, the aggregate number of shares of FCB Class A common stock reserved for issuance upon the settlement of FCB restricted stock unit awards outstanding as of September 10, 2018, plus (iv) 197,473, the aggregate number of shares of FCB Class A common stock reserved for issuance upon the settlement of outstanding FCB performance-vesting restricted stock unit awards outstanding as of September 10, 2018, plus (v) 872,070 shares of FCB Class A common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding FCB warrants, plus (vi) 652,054 shares of FCB Class A common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to future grants under the FCB stock plans and in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement by and among Synovus, FCB and Azalea Merger Sub Corp. described herein, and (b) an exchange ratio of 1.055 shares of Synovus common stock for each share of FCB Class A common stock.

The proposed maximum aggregate offering price of the registrant's common stock was calculated based upon the market value of shares of FCB Class A common stock in accordance with Rules 457(c) and 457(f) under the

- Securities Act as follows: the product of (a) \$51.08, the average of the high and low prices per share of FCB Class
 (2) A common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on September 10, 2018, and (b) 51,751,642, the estimated number of shares of FCB Class A common stock that may be exchanged for the merger consideration (calculated as shown in note (1) above).
- (3) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee required by Section 6(b) of the Securities Act based on a rate of \$124.50 per \$1,000,000 of the proposed maximum aggregate offering price.
- (4) Fee previously paid in connection with Synovus' filing of Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-227367), which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14, 2018.

Information contained herein is subject to completion or amendment. A registration statement relating to the shares of Synovus common stock to be issued in the merger has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the registration statement becomes effective. This joint proxy statement/prospectus shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale is not permitted or would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS DATED OCTOBER 25, 2018, SUBJECT TO COMPLETION

MERGER PROPOSED—YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

October [•], 2018

To the Shareholders of Synovus Financial Corp. and the Stockholders of FCB Financial Holdings, Inc.:

On July 23, 2018, Synovus Financial Corp. (which we refer to as Synovus) entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (which we refer to as the merger agreement) with FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. (which we refer to as FCB) and Azalea Merger Sub Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synovus (which we refer to as Merger Sub). Under the merger agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into FCB, with FCB as the surviving corporation, in a transaction that we refer to as the merger . Immediately following the merger, FCB will merge with and into Synovus (which we refer to as the upstream merger), with Synovus continuing as the surviving entity. Immediately following the upstream merger or at such later time as Synovus may determine, FCB s wholly-owned subsidiary, Florida Community Bank, National Association, will merge with and into Synovus wholly-owned subsidiary, Synovus Bank, a Georgia state-chartered bank, with Synovus Bank as the surviving bank.

In the merger, each outstanding share of Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share of FCB (which we refer to as FCB Class A common stock), held immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, except for shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB as treasury stock or shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB or Synovus, in each case, other than in a fiduciary or agency capacity or as a result of debts previously contracted (which will be cancelled), will be automatically converted into the right to receive 1.055 shares (such shares the merger consideration) of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of Synovus (which we refer to as Synovus common stock). The value of the merger consideration will depend on the market price of Synovus common stock on the effective date of the merger.

Shares of Synovus common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (which we refer to as the NYSE) under the symbol SNV and shares of FCB Class A common stock are listed on the NYSE under the symbol FCB . Based on the closing price of Synovus common stock on the NYSE, on July 23, 2018, the last trading day before public announcement of the merger, the value of the per share merger consideration payable to holders of FCB Class A common stock would be \$58.15. Based on the closing price of Synovus common stock on the NYSE on October 24, 2018, the last practicable trading date before the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the value of the per share merger consideration payable to holders of FCB Class A common stock would be \$38.54. We urge you to obtain current market quotations for both Synovus common stock and FCB Class A common stock.

Based on the number of shares of FCB Class A common stock outstanding and the number of shares of FCB Class A common stock issuable pursuant to outstanding FCB equity awards and warrants, in each case as of October 24, 2018,

the total number of shares of Synovus common stock expected to be issued in connection with the merger is approximately 53,900,854. In addition, based on the number of issued and outstanding shares of Synovus common stock and FCB Class A common stock and the number of shares of FCB Class A common stock issuable pursuant to outstanding FCB equity awards and warrants, in each case as of October 24, 2018, and based on the exchange ratio of 1.055, it is expected that holders of FCB Class A common stock as of immediately prior to the closing of the merger will hold, in the aggregate, approximately 31.7% of the issued and outstanding shares of Synovus common stock immediately following the closing of the merger (without giving effect to any Synovus common stock held by FCB stockholders prior to the merger).

Synovus will hold a special meeting of its shareholders (which we refer to as the Synovus special meeting) on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at Blanchard Hall, Synovus Bank, 1144 Broadway, Columbus, Georgia 31901, where the Synovus shareholders will be asked to vote on a proposal to approve the issuance of shares of Synovus common stock in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement (which we refer to as the Synovus share issuance proposal) and related matters. FCB will also hold a special meeting of its stockholders (which we refer to as the FCB special meeting) on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at the offices of Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP at 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036, where the FCB stockholders will be asked to vote on a proposal to adopt the merger agreement (which we refer to as the merger proposal) and related matters. The merger cannot be completed unless, among other things, a majority of the votes cast at the Synovus special meeting vote to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal and holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock vote to approve the merger proposal. Synovus and FCB are sending you this joint proxy statement/prospectus to ask you to vote in favor of these and other matters described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF SYNOVUS COMMON STOCK OR FCB CLASS A COMMON STOCK YOU OWN. To ensure your representation at the Synovus special meeting or FCB special meeting, as applicable, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope or submit your proxy by telephone or via the Internet by following the instructions in the enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus and on your proxy card. Please vote promptly whether or not you expect to attend your special meeting. Submitting a proxy now will NOT prevent you from being able to vote in person at your special meeting. If you hold your shares in street name, you should instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote in accordance with the voting instruction form you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee.

The Synovus board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of Synovus and its shareholders and (ii) approved the execution, delivery and performance of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger and the issuance of shares of Synovus common stock in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. The Synovus board of directors unanimously recommends that Synovus shareholders vote FOR the Synovus share issuance proposal and FOR the other matters to be considered at the Synovus special meeting.

The FCB board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of FCB and its stockholders and declared that the merger agreement is advisable and (ii) approved the execution of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the merger proposal and FOR the other matters to be considered at the FCB special meeting.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus provides you with detailed information about the merger agreement and the merger. It also contains or references information about Synovus and FCB and certain related matters. You are encouraged to read this joint proxy statement/prospectus carefully. **In particular, you should read the <u>Risk Factors</u>**

section beginning on page 27 for a discussion of the risks you should consider in evaluating the proposed merger and how it will affect you. You can also obtain information about Synovus and FCB from documents that have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission that are incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus by reference.

Sincerely,

Kessel D. Stelling Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive President and Chief Executive Officer Officer and President Synovus Financial Corp.

Kent S. Ellert FCB Financial Holdings, Inc.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the merger, the issuance of shares of Synovus common stock in connection with the merger or the other transactions described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of the disclosure in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The securities to be issued in connection with the merger are not savings accounts, deposits or other obligations of any bank or savings association and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated October [•], 2018, and is first being mailed to Synovus shareholders and FCB stockholders on or about October [•], 2018.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Both Synovus and FCB file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other business and financial information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). You may read and copy any materials that either Synovus or FCB files with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, and you may obtain copies of this information by mail from the SEC s Public Reference Room at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-0330 ((800) 732-0330) for further information on the public reference room. In addition, Synovus and FCB file reports and other business and financial information with the SEC electronically, and the SEC maintains a website located at www.sec.gov containing this information. You will also be able to obtain these documents, free of charge, from Synovus at www.synovus.com under the Investor Relations link and then under the heading Financial Information and then SEC Filings, or from FCB at www.floridacommunitybank.com under the tab Investor Relations and then under the heading SEC Filings and then under the heading SEC Filings.

Synovus has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part. As permitted by SEC rules, this joint proxy statement/prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement or in the exhibits or schedules to the registration statement. You may obtain a free copy of the registration statement, including any amendments, schedules and exhibits at the addresses set forth below. Statements contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus as to the contents of any contract or other documents referred to in this joint proxy statement/prospectus are not necessarily complete. In each case, you should refer to the copy of the applicable contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement. This joint proxy statement/prospectus by reference documents that Synovus and FCB have previously filed with the SEC. These documents by Reference beginning on page 151. These documents are available without charge to you upon written or oral request to the applicable company's principal executive offices. The respective addresses and telephone numbers of such principal executive offices are listed below.

| Synovus Financial Corp. | FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. |
|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500 | 2500 Weston Road, Suite 300 |
| Columbus, Georgia 31901 | Weston, Florida 33331 |
| Attention: Investor Relations | Attention: Investor Relations |
| (706) 649-2311 | (954) 984-3313 |

If you have any questions regarding the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus, you may contact Innisfree M&A Incorporated, Synovus proxy solicitor, by calling toll-free at (888) 750-5834 or D.F. King & Co., Inc., FCB s proxy solicitor, by calling toll-free at (866) 416-0576 or by email to fcb@dfking.com.

To obtain timely delivery of these documents, you must request the information no later than November 20, 2018 in order to receive them before Synovus special meeting and no later than November 20, 2018 in order to receive them before FCB s special meeting.

You should rely only on the information contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this joint proxy statement/prospectus. No one has been authorized to provide you with information that is different from that contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated October [•], 2018, and you should assume that the information in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate only as of such date unless information specifically indicates that another date applies.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities, or the solicitation of a proxy, in any jurisdiction in which or from any person to whom it is unlawful

to make any such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

NOTICE OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 29, 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of the shareholders (which we refer to as the Synovus special meeting) of Synovus Financial Corp. (which we refer to as Synovus) will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at Blanchard Hall, Synovus Bank, 1144 Broadway, Columbus, Georgia 31901, for the following purposes:

To consider and vote on the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of Synovus (which we refer to as Synovus common stock) in connection with the transaction contemplated by the

- 1. Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 23, 2018, as it may be amended from time to time (which we refer to as the merger agreement), by and among Synovus, Azalea Merger Sub Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synovus, and FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. (which we refer to as the Synovus share issuance proposal); and To consider and vote on the proposal to adjourn the Synovus special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to permit
- 2. further solicitation of proxies in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal (which we refer to as the Synovus adjournment proposal).

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of each of the Synovus share issuance proposal and Synovus adjournment proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting. Synovus will transact no other business at the Synovus special meeting, except for business properly brought before the Synovus special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Synovus shareholders must approve the Synovus share issuance proposal in order for the merger to occur. If Synovus shareholders fail to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger will not occur. The joint proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice explains the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, as well as the proposals to be considered at the Synovus special meeting. Please review the joint proxy statement/prospectus carefully.

The Synovus board of directors has set October 24, 2018 as the record date for the Synovus special meeting. Only holders of record of Synovus common stock at the close of business on October 24, 2018 will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the Synovus special meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof. Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Synovus special meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on such shareholder s behalf. Such proxy need not be a holder of shares of Synovus common stock.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF SYNOVUS

COMMON STOCK YOU OWN. Whether or not you plan to attend the Synovus special meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card and certification (if applicable) in the postage-paid envelope provided at your earliest convenience. You may also submit a proxy by telephone or via the Internet by following the instructions in the enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus and on your proxy card. If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, you should direct the vote of your shares in accordance with the voting instruction form received from your broker, bank or other nominee.

The Synovus board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of Synovus and its shareholders and (ii) approved the execution, delivery and performance of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger and the issuance of shares of Synovus common stock in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. The Synovus board of directors unanimously recommends that Synovus shareholders vote FOR the Synovus share

issuance proposal and FOR the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

If you have any questions or need assistance with voting, please contact our proxy solicitor, Innisfree M&A Incorporated, by calling toll-free at (888) 750-5834.

If you plan to attend the Synovus special meeting, please bring valid photo identification. Synovus shareholders that hold their shares of Synovus common stock in street name are required to bring valid photo identification and proof of stock ownership in order to attend the Synovus special meeting, and a legal proxy, executed in such shareholder s favor, from the record holder of such shareholder s shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

Allan E. Kamensky Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary Columbus, Georgia

NOTICE OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 29, 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting (which we refer to as the FCB special meeting) of the stockholders of FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. (which we refer to as FCB) will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at the offices of Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP at 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036 for the following purposes:

To consider and vote on the proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 23, 2018, as it may be amended from time to time (which we refer to as the merger agreement), by and among Synovus Financial Corp. (which we refer to as Synovus), Azalea Merger Sub Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synovus, and FCB (which we refer to as the merger proposal);

To consider and vote on the proposal to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation to be paid to 2. FCB's named executive officers that is based on or otherwise relates to the merger, discussed under the section

- ^{2.} entitled The Merger—Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on <u>page</u> 88 (which we refer to as the FCB compensation proposal); and
- 3. To consider and vote on the proposal to adjourn the FCB special meeting, if necessary or appropriate to permit

³. further solicitation of proxies in favor of the merger proposal (which we refer to as the FCB adjournment proposal). The affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote thereon is required to approve the merger proposal. Assuming a quorum is present, approval of each of the FCB compensation proposal and FCB adjournment proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. FCB will transact no other business at the special meeting, except for business properly brought before the FCB special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

FCB stockholders must approve the merger proposal in order for the merger to occur. The merger is not conditioned on the FCB compensation proposal. The joint proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice explains the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, as well as the proposals to be considered at the FCB special meeting. Please review the joint proxy statement/prospectus carefully.

The FCB board of directors has set October 24, 2018 as the record date for the FCB special meeting. Only holders of record of FCB Class A common stock at the close of business on October 24, 2018 will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the FCB special meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof. Any stockholder entitled to attend and vote at the FCB special meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on such stockholder s behalf. Such proxy need not be a holder of FCB Class A common stock.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF FCB CLASS A COMMON STOCK YOU OWN. Whether or not you plan to attend the FCB special meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid envelope provided at your earliest convenience. You may also submit a proxy by telephone or via the Internet by following the instructions in the enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus and on your proxy card. If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, you should direct the vote of your shares in accordance with the voting instruction form received from your broker, bank or other nominee.

The FCB board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of FCB and its stockholders and declared that the merger agreement is advisable and (ii) approved the execution of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the merger proposal, FOR the FCB compensation

proposal and FOR the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

If you have any questions or need assistance with voting, please contact our proxy solicitor, D.F. King & Co., Inc., by calling toll-free at (866) 416-0576 or by email to fcb@dfking.com.

If you plan to attend the FCB special meeting in person, please bring valid photo identification. FCB stockholders that hold their shares of FCB Class A common stock in street name are required to bring valid photo identification and proof of stock ownership in order to attend the FCB special meeting, and a legal proxy, executed in such shareholder s favor, from the record holder of such shareholder s shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

Stuart I. Oran Corporate Secretary Weston, Florida

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | Page |
|---|-----------|
| QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETINGS | 1 |
| SUMMARY | <u>10</u> |
| The Merger | <u>10</u> |
| Merger Consideration | <u>10</u> |
| Treatment of FCB Equity Awards | <u>10</u> |
| Treatment of FCB Warrants | <u>12</u> |
| Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors | <u>12</u> |
| Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors | <u>12</u> |
| Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors | <u>12</u> |
| Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor | <u>13</u> |
| FCB Special Meeting of Stockholders | <u>13</u> |
| Synovus Special Meeting of Shareholders | <u>14</u> |
| Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger | <u>15</u> |
| The Synovus Board of Directors After the Merger | <u>15</u> |
| Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger | <u>15</u> |
| Conditions to the Merger | <u>16</u> |
| Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers | <u>16</u> |
| Termination; Termination Fee | <u>17</u> |
| Amendment, Waiver and Extension of the Merger Agreement | <u>17</u> |
| Litigation Relating to the Merger | <u>18</u> |
| Appraisal Rights | <u>18</u> |
| Comparison of Rights of FCB Stockholders and Synovus Shareholders | <u>18</u> |
| Risk Factors | <u>18</u> |
| Accounting Treatment of the Merger | <u>18</u> |
| Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger | <u>18</u> |
| The Parties | <u>18</u> |
| SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA FOR SYNOVUS | <u>20</u> |
| SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA FOR FCB | <u>21</u> |
| SUMMARY UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL | |
| INFORMATION | <u>22</u> |
| UNAUDITED COMPARATIVE PER COMMON SHARE DATA | <u>23</u> |
| COMPARATIVE PER SHARE MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION | <u>24</u> |
| CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS | <u>25</u> |
| <u>RISK FACTORS</u> | <u>27</u> |
| Risks Related to the Merger | <u>27</u> |
| Additional Risks Relating to Synovus and FCB After the Merger | <u>33</u> |

| FCB SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS | <u>34</u> |
|---|-----------|
| Date, Time and Place | <u>34</u> |
| Purpose of the FCB Special Meeting | <u>34</u> |
| Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors | <u>34</u> |
| FCB Record Date and Quorum | <u>34</u> |
| FCB Voting Rights | <u>34</u> |
| Required Vote | <u>34</u> |
| Treatment of Abstentions; Failure to Vote | <u>35</u> |
| Voting on Proxies; Incomplete Proxies | <u>35</u> |
| Shares Held in Street Name | <u>35</u> |
| Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a FCB Stockholder's Vote | <u>36</u> |
| Solicitation of Proxies | <u>36</u> |
| Attending the FCB Special Meeting | <u>36</u> |
| | |

i

| | Page |
|---|-----------|
| FCB PROPOSALS | <u>38</u> |
| Proposal No. 1: Merger Proposal | <u>38</u> |
| Proposal No. 2: FCB Compensation Proposal | <u>38</u> |
| Proposal No. 3: FCB Adjournment Proposal | <u>39</u> |
| SYNOVUS SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS | <u>40</u> |
| Date, Time and Place | <u>40</u> |
| Purpose of Synovus Special Meeting | <u>40</u> |
| Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors | <u>40</u> |
| Synovus Record Date and Quorum | <u>40</u> |
| Synovus Voting Rights | <u>40</u> |
| Required Vote | <u>41</u> |
| Treatment of Abstentions; Failure to Vote | <u>42</u> |
| Voting on Proxies: Incomplete Proxies | <u>42</u> |
| Shares Held in Street Name | <u>43</u> |
| Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Synovus Shareholder's Vote | <u>43</u> |
| Solicitation of Proxies | <u>43</u> |
| Attending the Synovus Special Meeting | <u>44</u> |
| SYNOVUS PROPOSALS | <u>45</u> |
| Proposal No. 1: Synovus Share Issuance Proposal | <u>45</u> |
| Proposal No. 2: Synovus Adjournment Proposal | <u>45</u> |
| THE PARTIES | <u>46</u> |
| THE MERGER | <u>47</u> |
| Terms of the Merger | <u>47</u> |
| Conversion of Shares; Exchange and Payment Procedures | <u>48</u> |
| Background of the Merger | <u>50</u> |
| Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger | <u>54</u> |
| Unaudited Financial Forecasts | <u>57</u> |
| Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors | <u>60</u> |
| Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger | <u>78</u> |
| Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor | <u>81</u> |
| The Synovus Board of Directors After the Merger | <u>88</u> |
| Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger | <u>88</u> |
| Merger-Related Compensation for FCB's Named Executive Officers | <u>91</u> |
| Dividends/Distributions | <u>92</u> |
| Litigation Relating to the Merger | <u>93</u> |
| REGULATORY APPROVALS REQUIRED FOR THE MERGER | <u>94</u> |
| ACCOUNTING TREATMENT | <u>97</u> |
| PUBLIC TRADING MARKETS | <u>98</u> |

| RESALE OF SHARES OF SYNOVUS COMMON STOCK | <u>99</u> |
|---|------------|
| THE MERGER AGREEMENT | <u>100</u> |
| MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER | <u>115</u> |
| UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL | |
| INFORMATION | <u>118</u> |
| DESCRIPTION OF SYNOVUS CAPITAL STOCK | <u>125</u> |
| COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF FCB STOCKHOLDERS AND SYNOVUS SHAREHOLDERS | <u>133</u> |
| <u>General</u> | <u>133</u> |
| Comparison of Rights of FCB Stockholders and Synovus Shareholders | <u>133</u> |
| APPRAISAL RIGHTS | <u>144</u> |
| <u>EXPERTS</u> | <u>145</u> |
| LEGAL OPINIONS | <u>146</u> |
| | |

ii

| | Page |
|--|------------|
| HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS | <u>147</u> |
| OTHER MATTERS | <u>148</u> |
| SYNOVUS ANNUAL MEETING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS | <u>149</u> |
| FCB ANNUAL MEETING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS | <u>150</u> |
| INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE | <u>151</u> |
| | |
| | |
| Annex A: Merger Agreement | <u>A-1</u> |
| Annex B: Opinion of Sandler O'Neill & Partners, L.P., financial advisor to FCB | <u>B-1</u> |
| Annex C: Opinion of Guggenheim Securities, LLC, financial advisor to FCB | <u>C-1</u> |
| Annex D: Opinion of Evercore Group L.L.C., financial advisor to FCB | <u>D-1</u> |
| Annex E: Opinion of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, financial advisor to Synovus | <u>E-1</u> |

iii

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETINGS

The following are answers to certain questions that you may have regarding the merger and the special meetings. We urge you to read carefully the remainder of this joint proxy statement/prospectus because the information in this section may not provide all the information that might be important to you in determining how to vote. Additional important information is also contained in the appendices to, and the documents incorporated by reference in, this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Q:WHAT IS THE MERGER?

Synovus Financial Corp., a Georgia corporation (which we refer to as Synovus), Azalea Merger Sub Corp., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Synovus (which we refer to as Merger Sub), and FCB Financial Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (which we refer to as FCB) have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 23, 2018, as it may be amended from time to time (which we refer to as the merger agreement), pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into FCB, with FCB continuing as the surviving

A: corporation (which we refer to as the merger). Immediately following the merger, FCB will merge with and into Synovus (which we refer to as the upstream merger), with Synovus continuing as the surviving entity. Immediately following the upstream merger or at such later time as Synovus may determine, FCB's wholly-owned subsidiary, Florida Community Bank, National Association (which we refer to as FCB Bank), will merge with and into Synovus' wholly-owned subsidiary, Synovus Bank, a Georgia state-chartered bank (which we refer to as Synovus Bank), with Synovus Bank as the surviving bank (which we refer to as the bank merger).

FCB will hold a special meeting of its stockholders (which we refer to as the FCB special meeting) and Synovus will hold a special meeting of its shareholders (which we refer to as the Synovus special meeting) to obtain the required approvals, and you are being provided with this joint proxy statement/prospectus in connection with those special meetings. A copy of the merger agreement is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as <u>Annex A</u>. We urge you to read carefully this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the merger agreement in their entirety.

Q:WHY AM I RECEIVING THIS DOCUMENT?

A: In order to complete the merger, among other things:

FCB stockholders must adopt the merger agreement; and

Synovus shareholders must approve the issuance of shares of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of Synovus (which we refer to as Synovus common stock) in connection with transactions contemplated by the merger agreement (which we refer to as the Synovus share issuance).

Each of FCB and Synovus is sending this joint proxy statement/prospectus to its stockholders or shareholders, as applicable, to help them decide how to vote their shares of Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, of FCB (which we refer to as FCB Class A common stock) or Synovus common stock, as the case may be, with respect to such matters to be considered at the special meetings.

Information about these special meetings, the merger and the other business to be considered by FCB stockholders or Synovus shareholders, as applicable, at each of the special meetings is contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and you should read it carefully.

This document constitutes both a joint proxy statement of Synovus and FCB and a prospectus of Synovus. It is a joint proxy statement because each of the boards of directors of Synovus and FCB is soliciting proxies using this document from their shareholders or stockholders, as applicable. It is a prospectus because Synovus, in connection with the merger, will issue shares of Synovus common stock to FCB s stockholders, and this prospectus contains information about that common stock.

Q: WHAT WILL FCB STOCKHOLDERS RECEIVE IN THE MERGER?

A:

If the merger is completed, each outstanding share of FCB Class A common stock held immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, except for shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB as treasury stock or shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB or Synovus, in each case, other than

1

in a fiduciary or agency capacity or as a result of debts previously contracted (which will be cancelled), will be automatically converted into the right to receive 1.055 shares (which ratio we refer to as the exchange ratio and which shares we refer to as the merger consideration) of Synovus common stock. Synovus will not issue any fractional shares of Synovus common stock in the merger. Instead, a FCB stockholder who otherwise would have received a fraction of a share of Synovus common stock will receive an amount in cash (rounded to the nearest cent) determined by multiplying (i) the average of the closing-sale prices of Synovus common stock for the five full trading days ending on the day prior to the effective time of the merger by (ii) the fraction of a share (rounded to the nearest thousandth when expressed in decimal form) of Synovus common stock to which such stockholder would otherwise be entitled to receive.

Q: Will the value of the merger consideration change between the date of this proxy statement/prospectus and the time the merger is completed?

Yes. Although the merger consideration is fixed, the value of the merger consideration is dependent upon the value of Synovus' common stock and therefore will fluctuate with the market price of Synovus' common stock.

A: Accordingly, any change in the price of Synovus' common stock prior to the merger will affect the market value of the merger consideration that FCB's stockholders will receive as a result of the merger.

Q: What will happen to shares of SYNOVUS common stock in the merger?

A: Nothing. Each share of Synovus common stock outstanding will remain outstanding as a share of Synovus common stock following the effective time of the merger.

Q: WHAT AM I BEING ASKED TO VOTE ON AND WHY IS THIS APPROVAL NECESSARY?

A: *FCB Special Meeting:* FCB stockholders are being asked to vote on the following proposals at the FCB special meeting:

the adoption of the merger agreement, a copy of which is attached as <u>Annex A</u> to this joint proxy statement/prospectus (which we refer to as the merger proposal);

the approval, on a non-binding, advisory basis, of the compensation to be paid to FCB's named executive officers that is based on or otherwise relates to the merger, discussed under the section entitled The Merger—Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on page <u>8</u>8 (which we refer to as the FCB compensation proposal); and

the approval of the adjournment of the FCB special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the merger proposal (which we refer to as the FCB adjournment proposal). *Synovus Special Meeting:* Synovus shareholders are being asked to vote on the following proposals at the Synovus

special meeting: Synovus shareholders are being asked to vote on the following proposals at the Synovus special meeting:

the approval of the Synovus share issuance (which we refer to as the Synovus share issuance proposal); and the approval of the adjournment of the Synovus special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal (which we refer to as the Synovus adjournment proposal).

Q: WHEN AND WHERE ARE THE FCB AND SYNOVUS SPECIAL MEETINGS?

FCB Special Meeting: The FCB special meeting will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at A: the offices of Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP at 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036.

Synovus Special Meeting: The Synovus special meeting will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at Blanchard Hall, Synovus Bank, 1144 Broadway, Columbus, Georgia 31901.

Q:WHO IS ENTITLED TO VOTE AT EACH SPECIAL MEETING?

FCB Special Meeting: All holders of FCB Class A common stock who held shares at the close of business on A: October 24, 2018 (which we refer to as the FCB record date) are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the FCB record date).

A: special meeting, provided that such shares of FCB Class A common stock remain outstanding on the date of the FCB special meeting.

Synovus Special Meeting: All holders of Synovus common stock who held shares at the close of business on October 24, 2018 (which we refer to as the Synovus record date) are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Synovus special meeting, provided that such shares of Synovus common stock remain outstanding on the date of the Synovus special meeting.

Q:WHAT CONSTITUTES A QUORUM AT EACH SPECIAL MEETING?

FCB Special Meeting: The presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of A: outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote is necessary in order to constitute a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the FCB special meeting.

Synovus Special Meeting: The presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of Synovus common stock entitled to vote is necessary in order to constitute a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the Synovus special meeting.

Abstentions will be included in determining the number of shares present at the respective special meetings for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum; however, broker non-votes will not be included.

Q: WHAT VOTE IS REQUIRED TO APPROVE EACH PROPOSAL AT THE FCB SPECIAL MEETING?

The merger proposal: Approval of the merger proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote thereon. If you fail to vote, mark ABSTAIN on

A: your proxy or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee with respect to the merger proposal, it will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the merger proposal. FCB stockholders must approve the merger proposal in

order for the merger to occur. If FCB stockholders fail to approve the merger proposal, the merger will not occur. The FCB compensation proposal: Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB compensation proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. If you fail to vote, mark ABSTAIN on your proxy or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee with respect to the FCB compensation proposal, you will not be deemed to have cast a vote with respect to such proposal, and it will have no effect on such proposal. This is an advisory vote, and therefore is not binding on FCB or on Synovus or the boards of directors or the compensation committees of FCB or Synovus. Since compensation and benefits to be paid or provided in connection with the merger are based on contractual arrangements with the named executive officers, the outcome of this advisory vote will not affect the obligation to make these payments. FCB is seeking this non-binding advisory stockholder approval pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 and Rule 14a-21(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (which we refer to as the Exchange Act), which requires FCB to provide its stockholders with the opportunity to vote to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation that may be paid or become payable to FCB s named executive officers in connection with the merger. The FCB compensation proposal gives FCB s stockholders the opportunity to express their views on the merger-related compensation of FCB s named executive officers. FCB stockholders are not required to approve the FCB compensation proposal in order for the merger to occur. If FCB s stockholders fail to approve the FCB compensation proposal, but approve the merger proposal, the merger may nonetheless occur.

The FCB adjournment proposal: Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB adjournment proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. If you fail to vote, mark ABSTAIN on your proxy or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee with respect to the FCB adjournment proposal, you will not be deemed to have cast a vote with respect to such proposal, and it will have no effect on such proposal. FCB s stockholders are not required to approve the FCB adjournment proposal in order for the

merger to occur. If FCB s stockholders fail to approve the FCB adjournment proposal, but approve the merger proposal, the merger may nonetheless occur.

3

Q: WHAT VOTE IS REQUIRED TO APPROVE EACH PROPOSAL AT THE SYNOVUS SPECIAL MEETING?

Synovus share issuance proposal: Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting. Under the current rules and interpretive guidance of the New York Stock Exchange (which we refer to as the NYSE), abstentions are treated as votes cast and will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the Synovus share issuance

A: proposal. If you fail to vote or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee with respect to the Synovus share issuance proposal, you will not be deemed to have cast a vote with respect to the Synovus share issuance proposal, and it will have no effect on such proposal. Synovus shareholders must approve the Synovus share issuance proposal in order for the merger to occur. If the Synovus shareholders fail to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger will not occur.

Synovus adjournment proposal: Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the Synovus adjournment proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting. If you fail to vote, mark ABSTAIN on your proxy or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee with respect to the Synovus adjournment proposal, you will not be deemed to have cast a vote with respect to such proposal, and it will have no effect on such proposal. Synovus shareholders are not required to approve the Synovus adjournment proposal, but approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger may nonetheless occur.

Synovus has a voting structure under which a holder of Synovus common stock may be entitled to exercise ten votes per share for each share of Synovus common stock that satisfies certain prescribed criteria as set forth in Synovus' amended and restated articles of incorporation, as amended (which we refer to as the Synovus charter), and bylaws, as amended (which we refer to as the Synovus bylaws), and one vote per share for each share of Synovus common stock that does not. For more information, see Synovus Special Meeting—Required Vote, beginning on page 41. Shares of Synovus common stock are presumed to be entitled to only one vote per share unless this presumption is rebutted by providing evidence to the contrary to Synovus. Synovus shareholders seeking to rebut this presumption should complete and execute the certification appearing on the Synovus proxy card if you choose to vote by mail or via the Internet. Since such certifications must be in writing, if you choose to vote by telephone, all of your shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share of Synovus common stock or who do not present such a certification if they are entitled to ten votes per share of Synovus common stock or who do not present such a certification if they are voting in person at the special meeting will be entitled to only one vote per share of Synovus common stock.

For more information on Synovus' voting rights, please refer to Synovus' 10-1 Voting Instructions and the accompanying voting instruction worksheet that are available on Synovus' website at investor.synovus.com/2018specialmeeting and Synovus Special Meeting—Synovus Voting Rights beginning on page <u>40</u>.

Q: What are the conditions to completion of the merger?

The obligations of FCB and Synovus to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain closing conditions contained in the merger agreement, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals, tax A: opinions, approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal by Synovus' shareholders and approval of the merger

proposal by FCB's stockholders. For more information, see The Merger Agreement—Conditions to Complete the Merger beginning on page 111.

Q:WHEN WILL THE MERGER BE COMPLETED?

A: We will complete the merger when all of the conditions to completion contained in the merger agreement are satisfied or waived, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals and approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal by Synovus' shareholders and approval of the merger proposal by FCB's stockholders. While we expect the merger to be completed by the first quarter of 2019, because fulfillment of some of the conditions to

completion of the merger is not entirely within our control, we cannot assure you of the actual timing.

Q: How does The FCB board of directors and THE Synovus board of directors recommend that I vote?

The FCB board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated A: thereby and recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the merger proposal, FOR the FCB compensation proposal and **FOR** the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

The Synovus board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Synovus share issuance, and recommends that Synovus shareholders vote **FOR** the Synovus share issuance proposal and **FOR** the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

Q:WHAT DO I NEED TO DO NOW?

After carefully reading and considering the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, including its annexes, please vote your shares as soon as possible so that your shares A: will be represented at your respective company's special meeting. Please follow the instructions set forth herein or

on the enclosed proxy card or on the voting instruction form provided by your broker, bank or other nominee if your shares are held in the name of your broker, bank or other nominee.

Q:HOW DO I VOTE?

If you are a stockholder of record of FCB as of October 24, 2018, the FCB record date, you may submit your proxy A: he fore the FCB before the FCB special meeting in any of the following ways:

by mail, by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card to FCB using the enclosed postage-paid envelope;

by telephone, by calling toll-free 1-800-690-6903 and following the recorded instructions; or

via the Internet, by accessing the website www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions on the website.

If you are a shareholder of record of Synovus as of October 24, 2018, the Synovus record date, you may submit your proxy before the Synovus special meeting in any of the following ways:

by mail, by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card and certification (if applicable) to Synovus using the enclosed postage-paid envelope;

by telephone, by calling toll-free 1-800-690-6903 and following the recorded instructions; however, if you vote by telephone, all of your shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share; or

via the Internet, by accessing the website www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions on the website. If you intend to submit your proxy by telephone or via the Internet, you must do so by 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before your respective company s special meeting. If you intend to submit your proxy by mail, your completed proxy card must be received prior to your respective company s special meeting.

If you are a stockholder of record of FCB as of the FCB record date or a shareholder of record of Synovus as of the Synovus record date, you may also cast your vote in person at your respective company s special meeting. If you plan to attend your respective company s special meeting, you must hold your shares in your own name or have a letter from the record holder of your shares confirming your ownership. In addition, you must bring a form of personal photo identification with you in order to be admitted to the meeting. Each of FCB and Synovus reserves the right to refuse admittance to anyone without proper proof of stock ownership or without proper photo identification. Whether or not you intend to be present at the special meeting, you are urged to complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card (and, for Synovus shareholders, the certification, if applicable) to FCB or Synovus, as applicable, in the enclosed postage-paid envelope or submit a proxy by telephone or via the Internet as described on the enclosed instructions as soon as possible. If you are then present and wish to vote your shares in person, your original proxy may be revoked by attending and voting at the relevant company s special meeting.

If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, your broker, bank or other nominee will send you separate instructions describing the procedure for voting your shares. If your shares are held in street name, you must obtain a legal proxy, executed in your favor, from the record holder of your shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee, to vote your shares in person at the relevant company s special meeting.

Q: IF MY SHARES ARE HELD IN STREET NAME BY A BROKER, BANK OR OTHER NOMINEE, WILL MY BROKER, BANK OR OTHER NOMINEE VOTE MY SHARES FOR ME?

No. Your broker, bank or other nominee cannot vote your shares unless you provide instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote. If your shares are held in street name by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must provide such broker, bank or other nominee with instructions on how to vote your shares. Please follow the voting instructions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee. Please note that you may not vote shares held in street name by returning a proxy card directly to FCB or Synovus or by voting in person at your respective

A: company's special meeting unless you provide a legal proxy, executed in your favor, from the record holder of your shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee. In addition to such legal proxy, if you plan to attend your respective company's special meeting, but are not a shareholder or stockholder (as applicable) of record because you hold your shares in street name, please bring evidence of your beneficial ownership of your shares (e.g., a copy of a recent brokerage statement showing the shares) and valid photo identification with you to such company's special meeting.

Under the rules of the NYSE, brokers who hold shares in street name for a beneficial owner of those shares typically have the authority to vote in their discretion on routine proposals when they have not received instructions from beneficial owners. However, brokers are not permitted to exercise their voting discretion with respect to the approval of matters that the NYSE determines to be non-routine without specific instructions from the beneficial owner. It is expected that all proposals to be voted on at the FCB special meeting and the Synovus special meeting are non-routine matters. Broker non-votes occur when a broker or nominee is not instructed by the beneficial owner of shares to vote on a particular proposal for which the broker does not have discretionary voting power.

If you are a FCB stockholder holding your shares in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock, your broker, bank or other nominee will (i) not vote your shares on the merger proposal, which broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST such proposal and (ii) will not vote your shares on the FCB compensation proposal or the FCB adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for these proposals.

If you are a Synovus shareholder holding your shares in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock, your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares on the Synovus share issuance proposal or the Synovus adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for these proposals.

Q: WHAT IF I ATTEND THE MEETING AND ABSTAIN OR DO NOT VOTE?

For purposes of each of the Synovus special meeting and the FCB special meeting, an abstention occurs when a A: shareholder attends the applicable special meeting in person and does not vote or returns a proxy with an

ABSTAIN vote.

For the FCB merger proposal, an abstention or failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote cast AGAINST such proposal.

For the Synovus share issuance proposal, under the current rules and interpretive guidance of the NYSE, an abstention is treated as a vote cast and will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the such proposal. A failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on such proposal.

For the Synovus adjournment proposal, FCB compensation proposal and FCB adjournment proposal, an abstention or failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. For each of these proposals, abstentions are not treated as votes cast and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote, though abstentions are counted towards establishing a

quorum.

Q: WHAT WILL HAPPEN IF I RETURN MY PROXY CARD WITHOUT INDICATING HOW TO VOTE?

If you sign and return your proxy card without indicating how to vote on any particular proposal, the shares of FCB A: Class A common stock represented by your proxy will be voted as recommended by the FCB board of directors

A: with respect to such proposal or the shares of Synovus common stock represented by your proxy will be voted as recommended by the Synovus board of directors with respect to such proposal, as the case may be.

Q: MAY I CHANGE MY VOTE AFTER I HAVE SUBMITTED MY PROXY OR VOTING INSTRUCTION CARD?

Yes. If you are a holder of record of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock, as applicable,

A: and you have previously submitted your proxy, you may change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the FCB special meeting or Synovus special meeting, as applicable, by taking any of the following actions:

delivering a written notice bearing a date later than the date of your proxy to the secretary of FCB or Synovus, as applicable, stating that you revoke your proxy, which notice must be received by FCB or Synovus, as applicable, prior to the beginning of your respective company's special meeting;

completing, signing, dating and returning a new proxy card (and, for Synovus shareholders, the certification, if applicable) to the secretary of FCB or Synovus, as applicable, relating to the same shares of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock, as applicable, and bearing a later date, which new proxy card must be received by FCB of Synovus, as applicable, prior to the beginning of your respective company's special meeting;

casting a new vote by telephone or via the Internet at any time before 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before your respective company's special meeting; however, if you are a Synovus shareholder and cast such new vote by telephone, all of your shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share; or

attending your respective company's special meeting and voting in person, although attendance at the special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If you are a shareholder of record of Synovus or stockholder of record of FCB and you choose to send a written notice of revocation or mail a new proxy, you must submit such notice of revocation or such new proxy to, in the case of FCB, FCB Financial Holdings, Inc., Attention: Corporate Secretary, 2500 Weston Road, Suite 300, Weston, Florida 33331, or, in the case of Synovus, Synovus Financial Corp., Attention: Secretary, 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500, Columbus, Georgia 31901, and it must be received at any time before the vote is taken at the FCB special meeting or the Synovus special meeting, as applicable. If you have instructed a broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock or shares of Synovus common stock, as applicable, you must follow the directions you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee in order to change or revoke your vote.

Q: ARE FCB STOCKHOLDERS ENTITLED TO APPRAISAL RIGHTS?

No, under Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (which we refer to as the DGCL), which is the A: law under which FCB is incorporated, the holders of FCB Class A common stock will not be entitled to any appraisal rights or dissenters' rights in connection with the merger.

WHAT ARE THE MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER TO U.S. FCB STOCKHOLDERS?

The merger and the upstream merger are intended to qualify for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a

reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (which we A:refer to as the Code), and it is a condition to the respective obligations of Synovus and FCB to complete the merger that each receives a legal opinion to that effect. Therefore, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as a result of the merger, a U.S. holder of shares of FCB Class A common stock generally will

not recognize gain or loss on the receipt of Synovus common stock in the merger, but will recognize gain or loss with respect to any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Synovus common stock. For more information, see The Merger—Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger beginning on page 115.

The consequences of the merger to any particular stockholder will depend on that stockholder s particular facts and circumstances. Accordingly, you are urged to consult your tax advisor to determine your tax consequences from the merger.

Q: WHAT HAPPENS IF THE MERGER IS NOT COMPLETED?

If the merger is not completed, FCB's stockholders will not receive any consideration for their shares of FCB Class A common stock in connection with the merger. Instead, FCB will remain an independent public company and

A: FCB Class A common stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NYSE. In addition, if the merger agreement is terminated in certain circumstances, FCB or Synovus may be required to pay the other party a fee with respect to such termination of the merger agreement. See The Merger Agreement—Termination; Termination Fee beginning on page <u>112</u>.

Q: What happens if I sell my shares after the APPLICABLE record date but before the RELEVANT COMPANY'S special meeting?

Each of the FCB record date and the Synovus record date is earlier than the date of the FCB special meeting or Synovus special meeting, as applicable, and earlier than the date that the merger is expected to be completed. If you sell or otherwise transfer your shares of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock, as applicable, after the applicable record date but before the date of the applicable special meeting, you will retain your right to vote at A:

- A: such special meeting (provided that such shares remain outstanding on the date of such special meeting), but, with respect to FCB Class A common stock, you will not have the right to receive the merger consideration to be received by FCB's stockholders in connection with the merger. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock through completion of the merger.
- **Q: What do I do if I receive more than one joint proxy statement/prospectus or set of voting instructions?** FCB stockholders and Synovus shareholders may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction forms. For example, if you hold shares of FCB Class A common stock in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate
- A: voting instruction form for each brokerage account in which you hold such shares. If you hold shares directly as a record holder and also in street name or otherwise through a nominee, you will receive more than one joint proxy statement/prospectus and/or set of voting instructions relating to the special meeting. These should each be voted and/or returned separately in order to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Q: SHOULD FCB STOCKHOLDERS SEND IN THEIR STOCK CERTIFICATES NOW?

No. FCB stockholders **SHOULD NOT** send in any stock certificates now. After the merger is complete, you will receive separate written instructions for surrendering your shares of FCB Class A common stock in exchange for A:

A: the merger consideration. In the meantime, you should retain your stock certificates because they are still valid. Please do not send in your stock certificates with your proxy card.

Q: Will a proxy solicitor be used?

Yes. FCB has engaged D.F. King & Co., Inc. (which we refer to as D.F. King) to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the FCB special meeting, and estimates it will pay D.F. King a fee of approximately \$15,000 plus certain

A: expenses. FCB has also agreed to indemnify D.F. King against certain losses. Synovus has engaged Innisfree M&A Incorporated (which we refer to as Innisfree) to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the Synovus special meeting, and estimates it will pay Innisfree a fee of approximately \$25,000

plus certain expenses. Synovus has also agreed to indemnify Innisfree against certain losses. In addition, FCB, Synovus and their respective officers and employees may also solicit proxies by mail, telephone, facsimile, electronic mail or in person, but no additional compensation will be paid to them.

Q: Where can I find more information about the companies?

You can find more information about FCB and Synovus from the various sources described under Where You Can A: Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain

Documents by Reference beginning on page 151.

Q: What is householding and how does it affect me?

The SEC permits companies to send a single set of proxy materials to any household at which two or more shareholders or stockholders reside, unless contrary instructions have been received, but only if the applicable shareholders or stockholders provide advance notice and follows certain procedures. In such cases, each shareholder or stockholder continues to receive a separate notice of the meeting and proxy card. Certain brokerage firms may have instituted householding for beneficial owners of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common

A: stock, as applicable, held through brokerage firms. If your family has multiple accounts holding FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock, as applicable, you may have already received a householding notification from your broker. Please contact your broker directly if you have any questions or require additional copies of this proxy statement. The broker will arrange for delivery of a separate copy of this proxy statement promptly upon your written or oral request. You may decide at any time to revoke your decision to household, and thereby receive multiple copies.

Q: WHOM SHOULD I CONTACT IF I HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT THE PROXY MATERIALS OR VOTING?

You may contact FCB or Synovus at the telephone numbers listed under Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page <u>151</u>. If you have any questions about the proxy materials or if you need assistance submitting A: your proxy or voting your shares or need additional copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed

A: proxy card, you should contact the proxy solicitation agent for the company in which you hold shares. If you are a FCB stockholder, you should contact D.F. King, the proxy solicitation agent for FCB, toll-free at (866) 416-0576 or by email to fcb@dfking.com. If you are a Synovus shareholder, you should contact Innisfree, the proxy solicitation agent for Synovus, toll-free at (888) 750-5834.

SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read this entire document and its appendices and the other documents to which we refer before you decide how to vote. In addition, we incorporate by reference important business and financial information about Synovus and FCB into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151. Each item in this summary includes a page reference directing you to a more complete description of that item.

The Merger (page 47)

Synovus, Merger Sub and FCB have entered into the merger agreement, pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into FCB, with FCB continuing as the surviving corporation, in a transaction we refer to as the merger . The terms and conditions of the merger are contained in the merger agreement, which is attached as <u>Annex A</u> to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. We encourage you to read the merger agreement carefully, as it is the legal document that governs the merger. Immediately following the merger, FCB will merge with and into Synovus, with Synovus continuing as the surviving entity, in a transaction we refer to as the upstream merger.

Merger Consideration (page 47)

Each outstanding share of FCB Class A common stock held immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, except for shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB as treasury stock or shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB or Synovus, in each case, other than in a fiduciary or agency capacity or as a result of debts previously contracted (which will be cancelled), will be automatically converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, 1.055 shares of Synovus common stock.

Based on the closing trading price of Synovus common stock on the NYSE on July 23, 2018, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the merger agreement, the value of the per share merger consideration payable to holders of FCB Class A common stock would be \$58.15. Based on the closing trading price of Synovus common stock on the NYSE on October 24, 2018, the last practicable trading date before the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the value of the per share merger consideration payable to holders of FCB Class A common stock would be \$38.54. The value of the merger consideration that FCB stockholders will receive for each share of FCB Class A common stock will depend on the price per share of Synovus common stock at the time the FCB stockholders receive the shares of Synovus common stock. Therefore, the value of the merger consideration may be different than its estimated value based on the current price of Synovus common stock or the price of Synovus common stock at the time of the Synovus special meeting or the FCB special meeting.

Treatment of FCB Equity Awards (page <u>48</u>)

At the effective time of the merger, each option granted by FCB to purchase shares of FCB Class A common stock under the FCB stock incentive plans that is outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as an FCB option) will be converted into an option to purchase (i) a number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded down to the nearest whole share) equal to the product of (A) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (B) the exchange ratio, (ii) at an exercise price per share of Synovus common stock (rounded up to the nearest whole cent) equal to the quotient of (A) the exercise price per share for the shares of FCB Class A common stock of such FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger divided by (B) the exchange ratio, and having the same terms and conditions (including with respect to vesting) as applied to the

corresponding FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each award of a share of FCB Class A common stock subject to vesting, repurchase or other lapse restriction granted by FCB under the FCB stock incentive plans that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as an FCB restricted stock award), whether vested or unvested, will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB restricted stock award deemed to have been fully achieved (or, if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the

10

effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the FCB board of directors prior to the effective time of the merger)) and be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration, in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB restricted stock award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividends corresponding to the FCB restricted stock awards that vest in accordance with the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

Furthermore, at the effective time of the merger, each time-vesting restricted stock unit award in respect of shares of FCB Class A common stock granted by FCB under the FCB stock incentive plans that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as an FCB RSU award) that has vested on or prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as a Vested FCB RSU award) will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB RSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the Vested FCB RSU awards. In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each FCB RSU award that is not a Vested FCB RSU award (which we refer to as an Unvested FCB RSU award) that is not held by a non-employee director of FCB will be converted into a restricted stock unit award (which we refer to as a Synovus RSU award) in respect of that number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded to the nearest whole share, with 0.50 being rounded upward) equal to the product of (i) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB RSU award immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (ii) the exchange ratio. Each such Synovus RSU award will continue to have, and will be subject to, the same terms and conditions (including with respect to vesting and dividend equivalents) as applied to the corresponding FCB RSU award immediately prior to the effective time of the merger. In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each Unvested FCB RSU award held by a non-employee director of FCB, will fully vest and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB RSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB RSU awards held by such non-employee directors that vest in accordance with the merger agreement.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each performance-vesting restricted stock unit award in respect of shares of FCB Class A common stock granted by FCB under the FCB stock incentive plans that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as an FCB PSU award and together with the FCB options, FCB restricted stock awards, and FCB RSU awards, the FCB equity awards) will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB PSU award deemed to have been fully achieved (or if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors of FCB prior to the effective time of the merger)) and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB PSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB PSU awards that vest in accordance with the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each cash phantom unit award in respect of shares of FCB Class A common stock that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (which we refer to as an FCB CPU award) will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB CPU award deemed to have been fully achieved (or, if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors of FCB prior to the effective time of the merger)) and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive an amount in cash (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the product of (x) the exchange ratio and (y) the average closing price of the Synovus common stock for the five full trading days preceding the effective date of the merger (such product which we refer to as the per share stock consideration), in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB CPU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB CPU awards that vest in accordance with

the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

For more information, see The Merger—Terms of the Merger—Treatment of FCB Equity Awards beginning on page 47.

11

Treatment of FCB Warrants (page <u>48</u>)

At the effective time of the merger, each warrant to purchase a share of FCB Class A common stock (which we refer to as a FCB warrant), that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will be converted into a warrant (which we refer to as a Synovus warrant) to purchase (i) the same amount and kind of securities, cash or property as the holder of such FCB warrant would have been entitled to receive upon the consummation of the merger if such holder had exercised such FCB warrant immediately prior to the merger (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall equal that number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded down to the nearest whole share) equal to the product of (A) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB warrant immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (B) the exchange ratio) (ii) at an exercise price as set forth in such FCB warrant, in each case in accordance with the terms of such FCB warrant. Except as otherwise provided in the merger agreement, each such Synovus warrant shall continue to have, and shall be subject to, the same terms and conditions as applied to the corresponding FCB warrant immediately prior to the effective time of the merger. See The Merger—Terms of the Merger—Treatment of FCB Warrants beginning on page 48.

Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors (page 34)

The FCB board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of FCB and its stockholders and declared that the merger agreement is advisable and (ii) approved the execution of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote **FOR** the merger proposal, **FOR** the FCB compensation proposal and **FOR** the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate). See The Merger—Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 54.

Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors (page 60)

FCB retained Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. (which we refer to as Sandler O Neill), Guggenheim Securities, LLC (which we refer to as Guggenheim Securities) and Evercore Group L.L.C. (which we refer to as Evercore, and we refer to Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore, collectively, as FCB s financial advisors) as financial advisors to the FCB board of directors in connection with the potential sale of or merger or other business combination involving FCB. Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore each delivered separate opinions, dated July 23, 2018, to the FCB board of directors as to the fairness, from a financial point of view and as of the date of such opinions, to the holders of FCB Class A common stock of the exchange ratio in connection with the merger, which opinions were each based on and subject to the matters considered, the procedures followed, the assumptions made and various limitations of and qualifications to the review undertaken by Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore s written opinions, which are attached as <u>Annex B</u>, <u>Annex C</u> and <u>Annex D</u>, respectively, to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and which you should read carefully and in their entirety, are subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other conditions contained in such opinions.

Sandler O Neill s, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore s opinions were provided to the FCB board of directors. Sandler O Neill s, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore s opinions and any materials provided in connection therewith did not constitute a recommendation to the FCB board of directors with respect to the merger, nor do the opinions constitute advice or a recommendation to any holder of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock as to how to vote or act in connection with the merger or otherwise. Sandler O Neill s, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore s opinions address only the fairness, from a financial point of view and as of the date of such opinions, of the exchange ratio to the holders of FCB Class A common stock.

For a description of the opinions that the FCB board of directors received from Sandler O'Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore, see The Merger—Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors beginning on page 60.

Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors (page <u>40</u>)

The Synovus board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of Synovus and its shareholders and (ii) approved the execution, delivery and performance of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger and the Synovus share issuance. The Synovus board of

directors unanimously recommends that Synovus shareholders vote **FOR** the Synovus share issuance proposal and **FOR** the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate). See The Merger—Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 78.

Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor (page 81)

In connection with the merger, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (which we refer to as BofA Merrill Lynch), Synovus financial advisor, delivered to the Synovus board of directors a written opinion, dated July 23, 2018, as to the fairness, from a financial point of view and as of the date of the opinion, to Synovus of the exchange ratio provided for in the merger. The full text of the written opinion, dated July 23, 2018, of BofA Merrill Lynch, which describes, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, factors considered and limitations on the review undertaken, is attached as <u>Annex E</u> to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and is incorporated by reference herein in its entirety. BofA Merrill Lynch provided its opinion to the Synovus board of directors (in its capacity as such) for the benefit and use of the Synovus board of directors in connection with and for purposes of its evaluation of the exchange ratio from a financial point of view. BofA Merrill Lynch s opinion does not address any other aspect of the merger and no opinion or view was expressed as to the relative merits of the merger in comparison to other strategies or transactions that might be available to Synovus or in which Synovus might engage or as to the underlying business decision of Synovus to proceed with or effect the merger. BofA Merrill Lynch s opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any Synovus shareholder or FCB stockholder as to how to vote or act in connection with the proposed merger or any other matter. The summary of BofA Merrill Lynch s opinion and the methodology that BofA Merrill Lynch used to render its opinion set forth in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under the caption entitled —Opinion of Synovus Financial Advisor is gualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of BofA Merrill Lynch s opinion.

For a description of the opinions that the Synovus board of directors received from BofA Merrill Lynch, please see The Merger—Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor beginning on page 81.

FCB Special Meeting of Stockholders (page 34)

The special meeting of FCB stockholders will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at the offices of Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP at 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036. At the FCB special meeting, FCB stockholders will be asked to approve the merger proposal, the FCB compensation proposal and the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

The FCB board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 24, 2018 as the record date for determining the holders of FCB Class A common stock entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the FCB special meeting. As of the FCB record date, there were 46,823,114 shares of FCB Class A common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the FCB special meeting held by 94 holders of record.

The presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote is necessary in order to constitute a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the FCB special meeting.

Each share of FCB Class A common stock entitles the holder thereof to one vote at the FCB special meeting on each proposal to be considered at the FCB special meeting. As of the FCB record date, directors and executive officers of FCB and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,951,804 shares of FCB Class A common stock, representing approximately 4.2% of the shares of FCB Class A common stock issued and outstanding on that date. FCB currently expects that its directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the merger proposal, the FCB compensation proposal and the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate), although none of

them has entered into any agreements obligating them to do so. As of the record date, Synovus did not beneficially hold any shares of FCB Class A common stock.

Approval of the merger proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote thereon. Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB compensation proposal and FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. FCB stockholders must approve the merger proposal in order for the merger to occur. FCB stockholders are not, however, required to approve the

FCB compensation proposal or the FCB adjournment proposal in order for the merger to occur. If FCB stockholders fail to approve the FCB compensation proposal or the FCB adjournment proposal, but approve the merger proposal, the merger may nonetheless occur.

Synovus Special Meeting of Shareholders (page 40)

The special meeting of Synovus shareholders will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at Blanchard Hall, Synovus Bank, 1144 Broadway, Columbus, Georgia 31901. At the Synovus special meeting, Synovus shareholders will be asked to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal and the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

The Synovus board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 24, 2018 as the record date for determining the holders of Synovus common stock entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Synovus special meeting. As of the Synovus record date, there were 116,388,487 shares of Synovus common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Synovus special meeting held by 12,371 holders of record.

The presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of Synovus common stock entitled to vote is necessary in order to constitute a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the Synovus special meeting.

Synovus has a voting structure under which a holder of Synovus common stock may be entitled to exercise ten votes per share for each share of Synovus common stock that satisfies certain prescribed criteria and one vote per share for each share of Synovus common stock that does not. For more information, see the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled Synovus Special Meeting of Shareholders—Synovus Voting Rights beginning on page 40.

As of September 30, 2018, directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,700,710 shares of Synovus common stock, representing approximately 1.5% of the shares of Synovus common stock issued and outstanding on that date. Based upon the total voting power certified at Synovus 2018 annual meeting of shareholders held on April 26, 2018 and based on the assumption that all shares of Synovus common stock held by the directors and executive officers of Synovus have been (1) beneficially owned continuously by the same shareholder since October 24, 2014; (2) held by the same beneficial owner to whom the shares were issued as a result of an acquisition of a company or business by Synovus where the resolutions adopted by the Synovus board of directors approving the acquisition specifically grant ten votes per share to such shares; (3) acquired under any employee, officer and/or director benefit plan maintained for one or more employees, officers and/or directors of Synovus and/or its subsidiaries and have been held by the same owner for whom it was acquired under any such plan; (4) acquired by reason of participation in a dividend reinvestment plan offered by Synovus and have been held by the same owner for whom the shares were acquired under any such plan; or (5) owned by a holder who, in addition to certain other shares, is the owner of less than 162,723 shares of Synovus common stock, the voting power of the directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates would represent approximately 6.2% of the total voting power as of the Synovus record date. The total voting power represented by the shares of common stock owned by directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates may be determined only at the time of the Synovus special meeting due to the need to obtain certifications as to beneficial ownership of common shares held in street or

nominee name. Synovus currently expects that its directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal and the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate), although none of them has entered into any agreements obligating them to do so. As of the record date, FCB did not beneficially hold any shares of Synovus common stock.

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of each of the Synovus share issuance proposal and Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at

the Synovus special meeting. Synovus shareholders must approve the Synovus share issuance proposal in order for the merger to occur. If Synovus shareholders fail to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger will not occur. Synovus shareholders are not, however, required to approve the Synovus adjournment proposal in order for the merger to occur. If Synovus shareholders fail to approve the Synovus adjournment proposal, but approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, but approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger may nonetheless occur.

Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger (page <u>88</u>)

In considering the recommendation of the FCB board of directors, FCB stockholders should be aware that the directors and executive officers of FCB have certain interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of FCB stockholders generally. The FCB board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in making its recommendation that FCB stockholders vote to approve the merger proposal.

These interests include:

FCB options and Unvested FCB RSU awards (other than those Unvested FCB RSU awards held by non-employee directors) will convert, as of the effective time of the merger, into Synovus options or Synovus RSU awards of approximately equivalent value;

Unvested FCB RSU awards held by non-employee directors, Vested FCB RSU awards, FCB PSU awards, FCB restricted stock awards and FCB CPU awards will vest upon the effective time of the merger and be settled for the merger consideration (or, in the case of CPU awards, a cash amount approximately equal to the value of the merger consideration);

FCB warrants will convert, as of the effective time of the merger, into Synovus warrants of approximately equivalent value;

The employment agreements between FCB Bank and Kent Ellert, Vincent Tese, Les Lieberman and James Baiter, and the change-in-control severance protections under the offer letter between FCB Bank and Jack Partagas, would terminate as of the effective time of the merger in consideration for a lump sum cash payment upon the effective time of the merger based on the value of their change-in-control severance benefits;

Messrs. Ellert and Baiter have entered into employment agreements with Synovus that govern the terms of their employment following the effective time of the merger; and

FCB's directors and executive officers are entitled to continued indemnification and insurance coverage under the merger agreement.

For a more complete description of these interests, see The Merger—Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on page 88.

The Synovus Board of Directors After the Merger (page <u>88</u>)

The Synovus board of directors will not change in connection with the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger (page <u>94</u>)

Subject to the terms of the merger agreement, both FCB and Synovus have agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to obtain as promptly as practicable all regulatory approvals necessary or advisable to complete the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, including the merger and the bank merger, and comply with the terms and conditions of such approvals. These approvals include approvals from the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (which we refer to as the Federal Reserve Board) and the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance (which we refer to as the Georgia DBF). Notifications and/or applications requesting approval for the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement may also be submitted to other federal and state regulatory authorities and self-regulatory organizations. Synovus, FCB and/or their respective subsidiaries filed notices and applications to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals on August 22, 2018. The Georgia DBF approvals were received on September 25, 2018. The completion of the merger is also subject to the expiration of certain waiting periods and other requirements. Although Synovus does not know of any reason why it would not be able to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals in a timely manner, Synovus cannot be certain when or if it will obtain them or, if obtained,

whether they will contain terms, conditions or restrictions not currently contemplated that will be detrimental to Synovus or its subsidiaries after the completion of the merger, or will contain any condition or restriction that would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Synovus and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, after giving effect to the merger (measured on a scale relative to FCB and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole) (which we refer to as a materially burdensome regulatory

condition). For more information regarding the regulatory approvals to which completion of the merger and bank merger are subject, see Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger beginning on page 94.

Conditions to the Merger (page <u>111</u>)

The obligations of Synovus and FCB to complete the merger are each subject to the satisfaction (or waiver, if permitted) of the following conditions:

the approval of the Synovus share issuance by the requisite vote of the Synovus shareholders;

the adoption of the merger agreement by the requisite vote of the FCB stockholders;

the authorization for listing on the NYSE of the shares of Synovus common stock to be issued in the merger; the receipt of all required regulatory approvals which are necessary to consummate the merger and the expiration of all statutory waiting periods without the imposition of any materially burdensome regulatory condition;

the effectiveness of the registration statement on Form S-4, of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part, and the absence of a stop order or proceeding initiated or threatened by the SEC for that purpose;

the absence of any order, injunction or other legal restraint preventing the completion of the merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement or making the completion of the merger illegal;

subject to certain exceptions, the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party, generally subject to a material adverse effect qualification;

the prior performance in all material respects by the other party of the obligations required to be performed by it at or prior to the closing date of the merger; and

receipt by each party of an opinion from its counsel to the effect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

Neither FCB nor Synovus can be certain when, or if, the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived, or that the merger will be completed. For more information see The Merger Agreement—Conditions to Complete the Merger beginning on page <u>111</u>.

Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers (page 110)

Under the terms of the merger agreement, FCB has agreed not to initiate, solicit, knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate inquiries or proposals with respect to, or engage or participate in any negotiations concerning, or provide any confidential or nonpublic information or data to, or have or participate in any discussions with any person relating to, or enter into any binding acquisition agreement, merger agreement or other definitive transaction agreement (other than a confidentiality agreement described in this paragraph) relating to, any acquisition proposal. Notwithstanding these restrictions, the merger agreement provides that, under specified circumstances, in response to an unsolicited bona fide written acquisition proposal which, in the good faith judgment of the FCB board of directors (after receiving the advice of its outside counsel and financial advisors), is or is more likely than not to result in a proposal which is superior to the merger with Synovus, FCB may furnish nonpublic information or data regarding FCB and participate in discussions or negotiations with such third party to the extent that the FCB board of directors determines in good faith (after receiving the advice of its outside counsel and financial advisors) that failure to take such actions would be more likely than not to result in a violation of its fiduciary duties under applicable law, provided, further, that prior to providing any such nonpublic information or data, FCB will have entered into a confidentiality agreement with such third party on terms, in all material respects, no less favorable to it than the confidentiality agreement between FCB and Synovus.

Termination; Termination Fee (page <u>112</u>)

The merger agreement may be terminated at any time by Synovus or FCB prior to the effective time of the merger, whether before or after approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal by the Synovus shareholders or approval of the merger proposal by the FCB stockholders under the following circumstances:

by mutual written consent of Synovus and FCB;

by either Synovus or FCB, if a required regulatory approval is denied by final, non-appealable action, or if a governmental entity has issued a final, non-appealable order permanently enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal the closing of the merger or the bank merger, unless the failure to obtain a required regulatory approval is due to the failure of the party seeking to terminate the merger agreement to perform or observe the covenants and agreements of such party set forth in the merger agreement;

by either Synovus or FCB, if the merger has not closed on or before July 23, 2019 (which we refer to as the termination date), unless the failure to close by such date is due to the failure of the party seeking to terminate the merger agreement to perform or observe the covenants and agreements of such party set forth in the merger agreement; provided, that if on the termination date all other closing conditions are satisfied other than receipt of required regulatory approvals, then the termination date may be extended for a period of three months at the option of either Synovus or FCB;

by either Synovus or FCB, if there is a breach by the other party of any of the covenants or agreements or any of the representations or warranties (or any such representation or warranty shall cease to be true) contained in the merger agreement that would, individually or in the aggregate with other breaches by such party (or failures of such representations or warranties to be true), result in the failure of a closing condition, unless the breach (or failure to be true) is cured by 45 days following written notice of such breach (or failure to be true), or such fewer days as remain prior to the termination date; provided that the terminating party is not then in material breach of the merger agreement;

by FCB prior to the approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal by the Synovus shareholders, if (i) the Synovus board of directors fails to recommend in this joint proxy statement/prospectus that the Synovus shareholders approve the Synovus share issuance proposal or withdraws, modifies or qualifies such recommendation in a manner adverse to FCB or publicly discloses that it has resolved to do so or (ii) Synovus breaches its obligation to call a shareholder meeting and recommend to its shareholders, in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement, the approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal in any material respect; or

by Synovus prior to the approval of the merger proposal by the FCB stockholders, if (i) the FCB board of directors (A) fails to recommend in this joint proxy statement/prospectus that the FCB stockholders approve the merger proposal, or withdraws, modifies or qualifies such recommendation in a manner adverse to Synovus, or publicly discloses that it has resolved to do so or fails to recommend against acceptance of a tender offer or exchange offer constituting an acquisition proposals within ten business days after the commencement of such tender or exchange offer or (B) recommends or endorses an acquisition proposal or fails to issue a press release announcing opposition to such acquisition proposal within ten business days after an acquisition proposal is publicly announced or (ii) FCB breaches its obligation to call a stockholder meeting and recommend to its stockholders, in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement, the adoption of the merger agreement or to refrain from soliciting alternative acquisition proposals in any material respect.

FCB or Synovus may be required to pay a termination fee of \$93.5 million to the other party, upon termination of the merger agreement under certain circumstances. For more information, see The Merger Agreement—Termination; Termination Fee beginning on page 112.

Amendment, Waiver and Extension of the Merger Agreement (page 114)

Synovus and FCB may jointly amend the merger agreement, and each of Synovus and FCB may waive its right to require the other party to comply with particular provisions of the merger agreement. However, Synovus and FCB

may not amend the merger agreement or waive their respective rights after the Synovus shareholders have

approved the Synovus share issuance proposal or the FCB stockholders have adopted the merger proposal if the amendment or waiver would legally require further approval by the Synovus shareholders or the FCB stockholders, as applicable, without first obtaining such further approval.

For more information, see The Merger Agreement—Amendment, Waiver and Extension of the Merger Agreement beginning on page <u>114</u>.

Litigation Relating to the Merger (page <u>93</u>)

Certain litigation is pending in connection with the merger. For more information, see The Merger—Litigation Relating to the Merger beginning on page 93.

Appraisal Rights (page 144)

FCB stockholders are not entitled to appraisal rights under the DGCL in connection with the merger transactions. For more information, see Appraisal Rights beginning on page 144.

Comparison of Rights of FCB Stockholders and Synovus Shareholders (page 133)

Following the merger, the rights of FCB stockholders who become Synovus shareholders in the merger will no longer be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, FCB's amended and restated certificate of incorporation (which we refer to as the FCB charter) and FCB's amended bylaws (which we refer to as the FCB bylaws) and instead will be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia, as well as by the Synovus charter and the Synovus bylaws. For more information, see Comparison of Rights of FCB Stockholders and Synovus Shareholders beginning on page 133.

Risk Factors (page 27)

You should consider all the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus in deciding how to vote for the proposals presented in the joint proxy statement/prospectus. In particular, you should consider the factors described under Risk Factors beginning on page 27.

Accounting Treatment of the Merger (page 97)

Synovus will account for the merger as a business combination using the acquisition method of accounting for financial reporting purposes.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (page 115)

The merger and the upstream merger are intended to qualify for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, and it is a condition to the respective obligations of Synovus and FCB to complete the merger that each receives a legal opinion to that effect. Therefore, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as a result of the merger, a U.S. holder of shares of FCB Class A common stock generally will not recognize gain or loss with respect to Synovus common stock received in the merger, but will recognize gain or loss with respect to any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Synovus common stock.

For more information, see Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger beginning on page 115.

The Parties (page <u>46</u>)

Synovus Financial Corp. 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500 Columbus, Georgia 31901 (706) 649-2311

Synovus Financial Corp. is a financial services company and registered bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (which we refer to as the BHC Act), and is headquartered in Columbus, Georgia. Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Synovus Bank, the company provides commercial and retail banking services, including private banking, treasury management, wealth management, premium finance

and international banking. Synovus also provides mortgage services, financial planning and investment advisory services through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Synovus Mortgage, Synovus Trust and Synovus Securities, as well as its Global One, GLOBALT and Creative Financial Group divisions. Synovus Bank is a Georgia state-chartered bank and a member of the Federal Reserve System and is positioned in some of the highest growth markets in the Southeast, with 249 branches in Georgia, Alabama, South Carolina, Florida and Tennessee.

Synovus was incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia in 1972 and as of June 30, 2018, had approximately \$31.74 billion of total consolidated assets, \$26.44 billion of total deposits and over 4,500 employees.

FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. 2500 Weston Road, Suite 300 Weston, Florida 33331 (954) 984-3313

FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. is a bank holding company, headquartered in Weston, Florida. Through its wholly-owned subsidiaries FCB Bank and Floridian Custody Services, Inc., FCB provides a range of financial products and services to individuals, small and medium-sized businesses, some large businesses, and other local organizations and entities through approximately 50 banking centers throughout Florida. FCB targets retail customers and commercial customers who are engaged in a wide variety of industries including commercial real estate; residential housing; retail and wholesale trade; tourism; distribution and distribution-related industries; manufacturing; technology; automotive; aviation; marine services; building materials; healthcare and professional services; food products; and agricultural services.

Since its formation in April 2009, FCB has raised equity capital and acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of eight failed banks from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as receiver. In January 2014 and March 2018, FCB acquired Great Florida Bank and Floridian Community Holdings, Inc., respectively. Through the integration of the operations and systems of the acquired banks and through internal growth, FCB has transformed into a large, integrated commercial bank. FCB s consolidated total assets, total deposits and total stockholders equity were \$12.19 billion, \$9.86 billion and \$1.34 billion, respectively, at June 30, 2018.

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA FOR SYNOVUS

The following table summarizes financial results achieved by Synovus for the periods and at the dates indicated and should be read in conjunction with Synovus' consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in reports that Synovus has previously filed with the SEC. Historical financial information for Synovus can be found in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page <u>151</u>. Financial amounts as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are unaudited (and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for the full year or any other interim period), but management of Synovus believes that such amounts reflect all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of its results of operations for past periods and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and for the generation as of the dates and for the periods indicated. You should not assume the results of operations for past periods and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 indicate results for any future period.

| thousands, cept per share | | onths ended 1ne 30, | | Years ended December 31, | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------|------------------------|-------|--------------------------|----|-----------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|--|--|--|
| a | 2018 | 2017 | | 2017 | | 2016 | | 2015 | | 2014 | | 2013 | | | |
| | (una | audited) | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| COME ATEMENT | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| erest income \$ | 642,968 | \$ 557,9 | 11 \$ | 5 1,162,497 | \$ | 1,022,803 | \$ | 945,962 | \$ | 928,692 | \$ | 929,014 | | | |
| erest expense | 84,107 | 66,8 | 87 | 139,188 | | 123,623 | | 118,644 | | 109,408 | | 118,822 | | | |
| t interest income | 558,861 | 491,0 | 24 | 1,023,309 | | 899,180 | | 827,318 | | 819,284 | | 810,192 | | | |
| vision for loan | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ses | 24,566 | 18,9 | 34 | 67,185 | | 28,000 | | 19,010 | | 33,831 | | 69,598 | | | |
| n-interest | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ome | 140,433 | 140,5 | 39 | 345,327 | | 273,194 | | 267,920 | | 262,104 | | 253,571 | | | |
| n-interest | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| bense | 399,234 | 389,1 | 33 | 821,313 | | 755,923 | | 717,655 | | 744,998 | | 741,537 | | | |
| t income | 214,348 | 147,8 | 61 | 275,474 | | 246,784 | | 226,082 | | 195,249 | | 159,383 | | | |
| vidends and retion of count on | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ferred stock | 5,119 | 5,1 | 19 | 10,238 | | 10,238 | | 10,238 | | 10,238 | | 40,830 | | | |
| t income ulable to nmon | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ireholders | 209,229 | 142,7 | 42 | 265,236 | | 236,546 | | 215,844 | | 185,011 | | 118,553 | | | |
| R SHARE TA | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| t income per nmon share, | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| sic \$ | 1.77 | \$ 1 | 17 \$ | 2.19 | \$ | 1.90 | \$ | 1.63 | \$ | 1.34 | \$ | 0.93 | | | |
| | 1.75 | 1 | 16 | 2.17 | | 1.89 | | 1.62 | | 1.33 | | 0.88 | | | |

| t income per nmon share, uted | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|
| sh dividends clared per | | | | | | | |
| nmon share | 0.50 | 0.30 | 0.60 | 0.48 | 0.42 | 0.31 | 0.28 |
| ok value per nmon share | 24.16 | 23.61 | 23.85 | 22.92 | 22.19 | 21.42 | 20.32 |
| LANCE EET | | | | | | | |
| estment urities available sale | \$ 3,929,962 | \$ 3,827,058 | \$ 3,987,069 | \$ 3,718,195 | \$ 3,587,818 | \$ 3,041,406 | \$ 3,199,358 |
| ans, net of ferred fees and | φ <i>3,727,702</i> | φ 3,027,030 | φ 5,767,007 | φ 3,710,175 | φ 3,307,010 | φ 5,011,100 | φ 5,177,550 |
| sts | 25,134,056 | 24,430,512 | 24,787,464 | 23,856,391 | 22,429,565 | 21,097,699 | 20,057,798 |
| tal assets | 31,740,305 | 30,687,966 | 31,221,837 | 30,104,002 | 28,792,653 | 27,050,237 | 26,200,205 |
| posits | 26,442,688 | 25,218,816 | 26,147,900 | 24,648,060 | 23,242,661 | 21,531,700 | 20,876,790 |
| ng-term debt tal shareholders' | 1,656,647 | 2,107,245 | 1,706,138 | 2,160,881 | 2,186,893 | 2,139,325 | 2,031,742 |
| aity | 3,167,694 | 2,997,947 | 2,961,566 | 2,927,924 | 3,000,196 | 3,041,270 | 2,948,985 |
| RFORMANCE TIOS | | | | | | | |
| turn on average ets | 1.38 % | 0.98 % | 0.89 % | 0.84 % | 0.80 % | 0.74 % | 0.61 |
| turn on average iity | 14.66 | 10.08 | 9.27 | 8.40 | 7.49 | 6.45 | 4.84 |
| t interest margin | 3.82 | 3.46 | 3.55 | 3.27 | 3.19 | 3.38 | 3.40 |
| vidend payout lo ^(a) | 28.49 | 25.86 | 27.60 | 25.38 | 25.93 | 23.13 | 30.77 |
| PITAL TIOS | | | | | | | |
| tal shareholders' aity to total | 0.08 07 | 077 of | 0.40.07 | 0.72.07 | 10.42 0 | 11 24 07 | 11.25 |
| ets ratio | 9.98 % | 9.77 % | 9.49 % | 9.73 % | 10.42 % | 11.24 % | 11.25 |
| r 1 risk-based bital | 11.25 | 10.37 | 10.38 | 10.07 | 10.37 | 10.86 | 10.54 |
| tal risk-based pital | 13.08 | 12.24 | 12.23 | 12.01 | 12.70 | 12.75 | 13.00 |
| verage Ratio | 13.08 | 9.30 | 9.19 | 8.99 | 9.43 | 9.67 | 9.13 |
| HER DATA | 10.05 | 2.50 | 2.12 | 0.22 | 2.43 | 2.07 | 2.13 |
| ll-time ivalent | | | | | | | |
| ployees | 4,411 | 4,272 | 4,352 | 4,269 | 4,299 | 4,372 | 4,550 |
| inches | 250 | 248 | 250 | 248 | 257 | 258 | 281 |
| | | | | | | | |

| eighted average nmon shares standing, basic | 118,531 | 122,251 | 121,162 | 124,389 | 132,423 | 138,495 | 127,495 |
|---|------------------|-------------------|------------------|--------------------|-------------------|---------------|---------|
| eighted average nmon shares standing, | | | | | | | |
| uted | 119,229 | 123,043 | 122,012 | 125,078 | 133,201 | 139,154 | 134,226 |
| | ined by dividing | cash dividends de | eclared per comm | on share by dilute | ed net income per | common share. | |
| 20 | | | | | | | |

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA FOR FCB

The following table summarizes financial results achieved by FCB for the periods and at the dates indicated and should be read in conjunction with FCB's consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in reports that FCB has previously filed with the SEC. Historical financial information for FCB can be found in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151. Financial amounts as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are unaudited (and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for the full year or any other interim period), but management of FCB believes that such amounts reflect all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of its results of operations for past periods and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 indicate results for any future period.

| in thousands, except per share data | | Six mon Jur | ths e 1e 30 | | | Years ended December 31, | | | | | | | | |
|---|----|----------------|----------------|---------|----|--------------------------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|
| | | 2018 | | 2017 | | 2017 | | 2016 | | 2015 | | 2014 | | 2013 |
| | | (una | udite | ed) | | | | | | | | | | |
| INCOME STATEMENT | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Total interest | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| income | \$ | 231,116 | \$ | 175,795 | \$ | 374,101 | \$ | 319,316 | \$ | 249,040 | \$ | 203,426 | \$ | 145,263 |
| Total interest | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| expense | | 58,114 | | 34,238 | | 78,649 | | 51,600 | | 31,244 | | 28,254 | | 22,940 |
| Net interest income | \$ | 173,002 | \$ | 141,557 | \$ | 295,452 | \$ | 267,716 | \$ | 217,796 | \$ | 175,172 | \$ | 122,323 |
| Provision for loan losses | | 3,581 | | 3,758 | | 9,415 | | 7,655 | | 6,823 | | 10,243 | | 2,914 |
| Net interest income after provision for loan losses | \$ | 169,421 | \$ | 137,799 | \$ | 286,037 | \$ | 260,061 | \$ | 210,973 | \$ | 164,929 | \$ | 119,409 |
| | φ | 109,421 | φ | 137,799 | φ | 200,037 | φ | 200,001 | φ | 210,975 | φ | 104,929 | φ | 119,409 |
| Total noninterest income | | 15,177 | | 18,860 | | 35,016 | | 29,717 | | (25,322 |) | 17,032 | | 10,942 |
| Total noninterest expense | | 80,087 | | 70,336 | | 141,694 | | 133,957 | | 126,604 | | 145,632 | | 104,308 |
| Income before | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| income tax expense | | 104,511 | | 86,323 | | 179,359 | | 155,821 | | 59,047 | | 36,329 | | 26,043 |
| Income tax expense | | 21,678 | | 12,253 | | 54,165 | | 55,905 | | 5,656 | | 13,957 | | 8,872 |
| Net income | \$ | 82,833 | \$ | 74,070 | \$ | 125,194 | \$ | 99,916 | \$ | 53,391 | \$ | 22,372 | \$ | 17,171 |
| PER SHARE DATA | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Earnings per | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| share—Basic | \$ | 1.80 | \$ | 1.76 | \$ | 2.92 | \$ | 2.45 | \$ | 1.29 | \$ | 0.59 | \$ | 0.46 |
| | \$ | 1.71 | \$ | 1.62 | \$ | 2.71 | \$ | 2.31 | \$ | 1.23 | \$ | 0.58 | \$ | 0.46 |

| Earnings per share—Diluted | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|----|------------|------|-------------|------|------------|------|-----------|----|--------------|---|--------------|----|-------------|-------|
| BALANCE SHEET | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Total Assets | \$ | 12,192,299 | \$ | 5 9,901,392 | \$ | 10,677,079 | \$ | 9,090,134 | | \$ 7,331,486 | | \$ 5,957,628 | \$ | 5 3,973,370 |) |
| New loans | | 8,219,145 | | 6,900,380 | | 7,661,385 | | 6,259,406 | | 4,610,763 | | 3,103,417 | | 1,770,711 | |
| Acquired loans | | 702,428 | | 351,021 | | 316,399 | | 375,488 | | 582,424 | | 826,173 | | 488,073 | |
| Allowance for loan losses | | (50,570 |) | (41,334 |) | (47,145 |) | (37,897 |) | (29,126 |) | (22,880 |) | (14,733 | 3) |
| Loans, net | \$ | 8,871,003 | \$ | 5 7,210,067 | \$ | 7,930,639 | \$ | 6,596,997 | | \$ 5,164,061 | | \$ 3,906,710 | \$ | 5 2,244,051 | Ĺ |
| FDIC loss share indemnification asset | \$ | | — \$ | | — \$ | | — \$ | | | \$ - | | \$ 63,168 | \$ | 87,229 | ` |
| asset Total investment | ψ | | Ψ Ψ | | ψ — | | - ψ | | | φ | | φ 05,100 | ų |) 01,227 | ′ I |
| securities | \$ | 2,475,740 | \$ | 5 2,114,860 | \$ | 2,177,684 | \$ | 1,928,090 | ł | \$ 1,584,099 | | \$ 1,425,989 | \$ | 5 1,182,323 | 3 |
| Total deposits | \$ | | | 5 7,695,190 | | | | 7,305,671 | | \$ 5,430,638 | | \$ 3,978,535 | | 5 2,793,533 | |
| Borrowings | \$ | | | 5 1,019,494 | | | \$ | | | \$ 983,183 | | \$ 1,067,981 | \$ | | |
| PERFORMANCE RATIOS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Return on average assets | | 1.47 | % | 1.59 | % | 1.28 | % | 1.23 | % | 0.82 | % | 0.41 | % | 0.49 |)% |
| Return on average equity CAPITAL RATIOS | | 13.11 | % | 14.21 | % | 11.34 | % | 10.80 | % | 6.21 | % | 2.89 | % | 2.35 | ; % |
| Total shareholder's equity to total assets ratio | | 10.97 | 0% | 11.28 | 0% | 11.04 | 0% | 10.81 | 0% | 11.95 | % | 14.30 | 0% | 18.02 | 5 % |
| Tier 1 risk-based capital | | 11.64 | | 12.32 | | 11.87 | | 11.93 | | 12.07 | | 17.02 | 70 | 24.78 | |
| Total risk-based | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| capital | | 12.14 | | 12.87 | | 12.41 | | 12.45 | | 12.07 | | 17.56 | | 25.34 | |
| Leverage ratio | | 10.35 | | 10.60 | | 10.51 | | 10.29 | | 10.31 | | 12.80 | | 18.03 | 3 |
| OTHER DATA | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Weighted average shares | | 17.000 | | 12 107 | | 10 007 | | 10 212 | | (1.201 | | 20.054 | | 26.045 | |
| outstanding—Basic Weighted average shares | | 45,969 | | 42,197 | | 42,887 | | 40,717 | | 41,301 | | 38,054 | | 36,947 | , |
| outstanding—Dilute 21 | ed | 48,304 | | 45,856 | | 46,121 | | 43,225 | | 43,294 | | 38,258 | | 36,949 |) |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

SUMMARY UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table shows unaudited pro forma financial information about the financial condition and results of operations, including per share data, after giving effect to the merger and other pro forma adjustments. The unaudited pro forma financial information assumes that the merger is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, and that the assets and liabilities of FCB will be recorded by Synovus at their respective fair values as of the date the merger is completed. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet gives effect to the transactions as if the transactions had occurred on June 30, 2018. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statements for the six months ended June 30, 2018, and the year ended December 31, 2017, give effect to the transactions as if the transactions had become effective at January 1, 2017. The unaudited selected pro forma combined financial information has been derived from and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Synovus, which are incorporated in this joint proxy statement/prospectus by reference, the consolidated financial statements and related notes of FCB, which are incorporated in this joint proxy statement/prospectus by reference, and the more detailed unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information, including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151 and Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information beginning on page 118.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and does not indicate the financial results of the combined company had the companies actually been combined at the beginning of each period presented, nor the impact of possible business model changes. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information also does not consider any potential effects of changes in market conditions on revenues, expense efficiencies, asset dispositions, extinguishment of liabilities, and share repurchases, among other factors, including those discussed in the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled Risk Factors beginning on page 27. In addition, as explained in more detail in the accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information beginning on page 118, the preliminary allocation of the pro forma purchase price reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is subject to adjustment and may vary significantly from the actual purchase price allocation that will be recorded upon completion of the merger.

| | Six months | | | |
|---|------------|--------------|--|--|
| | ended | Year ended | | |
| | June 30, | December | | |
| in thousands | 2018 | 31, 2017 | | |
| STATEMENTS OF INCOME | | | | |
| Net interest income | \$ 744,128 | \$ 1,369,711 | | |
| Provision for loan losses | 28,147 | 76,600 | | |
| Net interest income after provision for loan losses | 715,981 | 1,293,111 | | |
| Non-interest income | 155,610 | 380,343 | | |
| Non-interest expense | 488,336 | 983,651 | | |
| Income before income taxes | 383,255 | 689,803 | | |
| Income taxes | 83,662 | 270,618 | | |
| Net income | 299,593 | 419,185 | | |

| | A | s of June 30, 2018 |
|--|----|-----------------------|
| BALANCE SHEET | | |
| Investment securities available for sale | \$ | 6,251,331 |
| Net loans | | 33,894,629 |
| Total assets | | 44,365,833 |
| Deposits | | 36,334,873 |
| Long-term debt | | 2,410,647 |
| Total shareholders' equity | | 4,914,854 |

UNAUDITED COMPARATIVE PER COMMON SHARE DATA

The following table sets forth the basic earnings, diluted earnings, cash dividend, and book value per common share data for Synovus and FCB on a historical basis and on a pro forma combined basis, for the six months ended June 30, 2018, and the basic earnings, diluted earnings and cash dividend per common share for the year ended December 31, 2017. The unaudited pro forma data was derived by combining the historical financial information of Synovus and FCB using the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, assumes the transaction is completed as contemplated and represents a current estimate based on available information of the combined company s results of operations. The unaudited pro forma data and equivalent per share information gives effect to the merger as if the transaction had been effective on the dates presented, in the case of the book value data, and as if the transactions had become effective on January 1, 2017, in the case of the earnings per share and dividends declared data. The pro forma financial adjustments record the assets and liabilities of FCB at their estimated fair values and are subject to adjustment as additional information becomes available and as additional analysis is performed.

The unaudited pro forma data below should be read in conjunction with Synovus' and FCB's audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and their respective unaudited financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2018. This information is presented for illustrative purposes only. You should not rely on the unaudited pro forma data or equivalent amounts presented below as they are not necessarily indicative of the operating results or financial position that would have occurred if the merger had been completed as of the dates indicated, nor are they necessarily indicative of the future operating results or financial position of the combined company. The pro forma information, although helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the combined company under one set of assumptions, does not reflect the benefits of expected cost savings, opportunities to earn additional revenue, the impact of merger- and integration-related costs, or other factors that may result as a consequence of the merger and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results. The information below should be read in conjunction with Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information beginning on page 118.

| For the six months ended June 30, 2018: | · | ynovus As eported | FCB As eported | Co | o Forma ombined novus ^(a) | Pro Forma Equivalent Per Share Information ^(b) | | |
|--|----|-------------------------|----------------------|----|--|--|-------|--|
| Basic earnings per share | \$ | 1.77 | \$ 1.80 | \$ | 1.76 | \$ | 1.86 | |
| Diluted earnings per share | | 1.75 | 1.71 | | 1.73 | | 1.83 | |
| Cash dividends ^(c) | | 0.50 | | _ | 0.50 | | 0.53 | |
| Book value at June 30, 2018 ^(d) | | 24.16 | 28.59 | | 27.48 | | 28.99 | |
| For the year ended December 31, 2017: | | | | | | | | |
| Basic earnings per share | \$ | 2.19 | \$ 2.92 | \$ | 2.46 | \$ | 2.60 | |
| Diluted earnings per share | | 2.17 | 2.71 | | 2.40 | | 2.53 | |
| Cash dividends ^(c) | | 0.60 | | _ | 0.60 | | 0.63 | |

Pro forma earnings per share are based on pro forma combined net income and pro forma combined (a) unighted another a based on pro forma combined in the full state of the sta

a) weighted-average common shares outstanding at the end of the period.

(b) Pro forma equivalent per share information is calculated based on pro forma combined multiplied by the applicable exchange ratio of 1.055.

(c)Pro forma dividends per share represent Synovus' historical dividends per share.

(d)

Book value per common share is calculated based on pro forma combined common equity and pro forma combined common shares outstanding at the end of the period.

COMPARATIVE PER SHARE MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

The table below sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices, as well as the dividend declared, per share of Synovus common stock, which trades on the NYSE under the symbol SNV, and per share of FCB Class A common stock, which trades on the NYSE under the symbol FCB.

| | Synov | us Comm | on Stock | FCB Cla | mon Stock | |
|---|----------|----------|----------|----------|-----------|----------|
| | High | Low | Dividend | High | Low | Dividend |
| 2015 | | | | | | |
| First Quarter | \$ 28.84 | \$ 24.41 | \$ 0.10 | \$ 27.74 | \$ 21.53 | _ |
| Second Quarter | 31.43 | 27.32 | 0.10 | 32.36 | 25.77 | |
| Third Quarter | 32.52 | 27.30 | 0.10 | 35.99 | 30.13 | |
| Fourth Quarter | 33.68 | 28.55 | 0.12 | 39.38 | 30.60 | |
| 2016 | | | | | | |
| First Quarter | \$ 32.01 | \$ 25.48 | \$ 0.12 | \$ 35.29 | \$ 28.64 | _ |
| Second Quarter | 32.55 | 27.61 | 0.12 | 37.75 | 30.23 | |
| Third Quarter | 33.59 | 27.26 | 0.12 | 39.44 | 33.03 | _ |
| Fourth Quarter | 41.83 | 31.41 | 0.12 | 48.90 | 35.55 | |
| 2017 | | | | | | |
| First Quarter | \$ 44.09 | \$ 37.95 | \$ 0.15 | \$ 50.33 | \$ 44.45 | — |
| Second Quarter | 44.76 | 39.09 | 0.15 | 49.90 | 44.45 | |
| Third Quarter | 46.42 | 40.27 | 0.15 | 49.00 | 39.90 | |
| Fourth Quarter | 51.09 | 44.60 | 0.15 | 54.10 | 45.10 | |
| 2018 | | | | | | |
| First Quarter | \$ 53.14 | \$ 46.30 | \$ 0.25 | \$ 57.90 | \$ 50.10 | |
| Second Quarter | 57.40 | 48.31 | 0.25 | 62.95 | 49.55 | _ |
| Third Quarter | 55.42 | 45.24 | 0.25 | 61.90 | 47.20 | — |
| Fourth Quarter (Through October 24, 2018) | 47.04 | 36.48 | _ | - 48.66 | 37.87 | — |

On July 23, 2018, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the merger agreement, the closing sale price per share of Synovus common stock on the NYSE was \$55.12 and the closing sale price per share of FCB Class A common stock on the NYSE was \$59.20. On October 24, 2018, the latest practicable trading date before the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the last sale price per share of Synovus common stock on the NYSE was \$36.53 and the last sale price per share of FCB Class A common stock on the NYSE was \$37.93.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This joint proxy statement/prospectus, including information included or incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about the benefits of the merger between Synovus and FCB, including Synovus and/or FCB s expectations or predictions of future financial or business performance or conditions, statements about Synovus and FCB s plans, objectives, expectations and intentions with respect to future operations, products and services; and other statements identified by words such as believe. expect, anticipate, intend, target, estimate. continue. positions, plan, predict. project, objective, prospects. possible or potential, by future conditional verbs such as assume, will, would, shoul may, or by variations of such words or by similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time, are difficult to predict and are generally beyond the control of either company. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and Synovus and FCB assume no duty to update forward-looking statements. Actual results may differ materially from current projections.

In addition to factors previously disclosed in Synovus' and FCB's reports filed with the SEC and those identified elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus (including the Risk Factors beginning on page 27), the following factors among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements or historical performance:

the ability to satisfy the closing conditions to the merger, including the approval by the Synovus shareholders of the Synovus share issuance and the adoption by the FCB stockholders of the merger agreement on the expected terms and schedule;

the ability to obtain regulatory approvals required to complete the merger, and the timing and conditions for such approvals, including conditions that could reduce the expected synergies and other benefits of the merger, result in a material delay or the abandonment of the merger or otherwise have an adverse impact on the surviving company; delay in closing the merger and the bank merger;

difficulties and delays in integrating the Synovus and FCB businesses or fully realizing cost savings and other benefits;

business disruptions resulting from or following the merger;

changes in asset quality and credit risk;

Synovus' credit mark against FCB's loan portfolio may be insufficient and require an increase in the provision for loan losses;

the inability to sustain revenue and earnings growth;

changes in interest rates and capital markets;

inflation;

customer acceptance of Synovus' and FCB's products and services;

customer borrowing, repayment, investment and deposit practices;

customer disintermediation;

the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives;

competitive conditions;

the inability to realize cost savings or revenues or to implement integration plans and other consequences associated with mergers, acquisitions and divestitures;

economic conditions;

the impact, extent and timing of technological changes;

capital management activities;

the outcome of pending or threatened litigation or of matters before regulatory agencies, whether currently existing or commencing in the future, including litigation related to the merger;

increased capital requirements, other regulatory requirements or enhanced regulatory supervision;

- changes in legislation, regulation, policies or administrative practices, whether by judicial, governmental or legislative action, including but not limited to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
- Act (which we refer to as the Dodd-Frank Act), and other changes pertaining to banking, securities, taxation, rent regulation and housing, financial accounting and reporting, environmental protection and insurance and the ability to comply with such changes in a timely manner;

changes in the monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board;

changes in accounting principles, policies, practices or guidelines;

the potential impact of announcement or consummation of the merger with FCB on relationships with third parties, including customers, vendors, employees and competitors;

Synovus' potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of FCB;

the challenges of integrating, retaining and hiring key personnel;

failure to attract new customers and retain existing customers in the manner anticipated;

any interruption or breach of security resulting in failures or disruptions in customer account management, general ledger, deposit, loan or other systems;

changes in Synovus' stock price before closing, including as a result of the financial performance of FCB prior to closing;

natural disasters, war or terrorist activities; and

other actions of the Federal Reserve Board and legislative and regulatory actions and reforms.

Additional factors that could cause Synovus and FCB s results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements can be found in Synovus and FCB s filings with the SEC, including Synovus Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 and FCB s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or the date of the applicable document incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements concerning the merger or other matters addressed in this proxy statement/prospectus and attributable to Synovus or FCB or any person acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. Except to the extent required by applicable law or regulation, Synovus and FCB undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking statements to reflect facts, assumptions, events or circumstances that occur after the date on which such forward-looking statement was made.

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the matters addressed under the caption Forward-Looking Statements, you should carefully consider the following risk factors in deciding how to vote on the proposals presented in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151.

Risks Related to the Merger

Because the Market Price of Synovus Common Stock Will Fluctuate, FCB Stockholders Cannot Be Sure of the Value of the Merger Consideration They Will Receive.

Upon completion of the merger, each outstanding share of FCB Class A common stock held immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, except for specified shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB or Synovus (which will be cancelled), will be automatically converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, 1.055 shares of Synovus common stock. The merger consideration that FCB stockholders will receive is a fixed number of shares of Synovus common stock; it is not a number of shares with a particular fixed market value. The market value of Synovus common stock and FCB Class A common stock at the effective time of the merger may vary significantly from their respective values on the date the merger was announced or at other dates, including on the date that this joint proxy statement/prospectus was mailed to Synovus shareholders and FCB s stockholders and on the date of the Synovus special meeting or FCB special meeting. There will be no adjustment to the merger consideration for changes in the market price of either shares of Synovus common stock or FCB Class A common stock.

The market price of Synovus common stock and FCB Class A common stock may result from a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, changes in sentiment in the market regarding Synovus and FCB s operations or business prospects, including market sentiment regarding Synovus and/or FCB s entry into the merger agreement. These risks may also be affected by:

operating results that vary from the expectations of Synovus' and/or FCB's management or of securities analysts and investors;

developments in Synovus' and/or FCB's business or in the financial services sector generally;

regulatory or legislative changes affecting the banking industry generally or Synovus' and/or FCB's business and operations;

operating and securities price performance of companies that investors consider to be comparable to Synovus and/or FCB;

changes in estimates or recommendations by securities analysts or rating agencies;

announcements of strategic developments, acquisitions, dispositions, financings and other material events by Synovus or its competitors; and

changes in global financial markets and economies and general market conditions, such as interest or foreign exchange rates, stock, commodity, credit or asset valuations or volatility.

Many of these factors are outside the control of Synovus and FCB. Accordingly, at the time of the Synovus special meeting and FCB special meeting, Synovus shareholders and FCB stockholders will not necessarily know or be able to calculate the value of the merger consideration they would be entitled to receive upon completion of the merger. You should obtain current market quotations for both Synovus common stock and FCB Class A common stock.

FCB Stockholders Will Have a Reduced Ownership and Voting Interest After the Merger and Will Exercise Less Influence Over Management.

FCB stockholders currently have the right to vote in the election of the FCB board of directors and on other matters affecting FCB requiring stockholder approval under Delaware law, the FCB charter and the FCB bylaws. Upon the completion of the merger, each of FCB s stockholders that receive shares of Synovus common stock will become a shareholder of Synovus with a percentage ownership of Synovus that is smaller than such stockholder s percentage ownership of FCB.

Based on the number of issued and outstanding shares of Synovus common stock and shares of FCB Class A common stock and the number of shares of FCB Class A common stock issuable pursuant to outstanding FCB equity awards and warrants, in each case as of October 24, 2018, the latest practicable trading date before the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, and based on the exchange ratio of 1.055, it is expected that FCB s former stockholders, as a group, will receive shares in the merger constituting approximately 31.7% of the shares of Synovus common stock expected to be issued and outstanding immediately after the merger (without giving effect to any shares of Synovus common stock held by FCB stockholders prior to the merger). Because of this, current FCB stockholders, as a group, will have less influence on the Synovus board of directors, management and policies (as the combined company following the merger) than they now have on the FCB board of directors, management and policies.

The Market Price of Synovus Common Stock After the Merger May be Affected by Factors Different from Those Currently Affecting the Prices of Synovus Common Stock and FCB Class A Common Stock.

The businesses of Synovus and FCB differ, and accordingly, the results of operations of the combined company and the market price of the shares of Synovus common stock after the completion of the merger may be affected by factors different from those currently affecting the independent results of operations and market prices of common stock of each of Synovus and FCB. For a discussion of the businesses of Synovus and FCB and of certain factors to consider in connection with those businesses, see Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151.

The success of the merger and integration of Synovus and FCB will depend on a number of uncertain factors, including:

Synovus' ability to integrate the branches acquired from FCB in the merger (which we refer to as the acquired branches) into Synovus' current operations;

Synovus' ability to limit the outflow of deposits held by its new customers in the acquired branches and to successfully retain and manage interest-earning assets (i.e., loans) acquired in the merger;

• Synovus' ability to control the incremental non-interest expense from the acquired branches in a manner that enables it to maintain a favorable overall efficiency ratio;

Synovus' ability to retain and attract the appropriate personnel to staff the acquired branches; and Synovus' ability to earn acceptable levels of interest and non-interest income, including fee income, from the acquired branches.

Integrating the acquired branches will be an operation of substantial size and expense and may be affected by general market and economic conditions or government actions affecting the financial industry generally. Integration efforts will also likely divert Synovus management s attention and resources. No assurance can be given that Synovus will be able to integrate the acquired branches successfully. Additionally, no assurance can be given that the operation of the acquired branches will not adversely affect Synovus existing profitability, that Synovus will be able to achieve results in the future similar to those achieved by its existing banking business or that Synovus will be able to manage any growth resulting from the merger effectively.

Synovus May Fail to Realize the Anticipated Benefits of the Merger.

Synovus and FCB have operated and, until the completion of the merger, will continue to operate, independently. The success of the merger, including anticipated benefits and cost savings, will depend, in part, on Synovus ability to successfully combine and integrate the businesses of Synovus and FCB in a manner that permits growth opportunities and does not materially disrupt existing customer relations nor result in decreased revenues due to loss of customers. It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key employees, the disruption of either company s ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect the combined company s ability to maintain relationships with clients, customers, depositors and employees or to achieve

the anticipated benefits and cost savings of the merger. The loss of key employees could adversely affect Synovus ability to successfully conduct its business, which could have an adverse effect on Synovus financial results and the value of its common stock. Synovus may also encounter unexpected difficulties or costs during the integration that could adversely affect its earnings and financial

condition, perhaps materially. If Synovus experiences difficulties with the integration process and attendant systems conversion, the anticipated benefits of the merger may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected. As with any merger of financial institutions, there also may be business disruptions that cause Synovus and/or FCB to lose customers or cause customers to remove their accounts from Synovus and/or FCB and move their business to competing financial institutions. Integration efforts between the two companies may also divert management s attention and resources. These integration matters could have an adverse effect on each of Synovus and FCB during this transition period and for an undetermined period after completion of the merger on the combined company. In addition, the actual cost savings of the merger could be less than anticipated or could take longer to anticipate than expected.

Among the factors considered by the boards of directors of Synovus and FCB in connection with their respective approvals of the merger agreement were the benefits that could result from the merger. There can be no assurance that these benefits will be realized within the time periods contemplated or at all.

Synovus Decisions Regarding the Credit Risk Associated with FCB s Loan Portfolio Could Be Incorrect and Its Credit Mark May Be Inadequate, Which May Adversely Affect the Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the Combined Company After the Closing of the Merger.

Before signing the merger agreement, Synovus conducted extensive due diligence on a significant portion of the FCB loan portfolio. However, Synovus review did not encompass each and every loan in the FCB loan portfolio. In accordance with customary industry practices, Synovus evaluated the FCB loan portfolio based on various factors including, among other things, historical loss experience, economic risks associated with each loan category, volume and types of loans, trends in classification, volume and trends in delinquencies and nonaccruals, and general economic conditions, both local and national. In this process, Synovus management made various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of the loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness and financial condition of the borrowers, the value of the real estate, other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of the loans, the existence of any guarantees and indemnifications and the economic environment in which the borrowers operate. In addition, the effects of probable decreases in expected principal cash flows on the FCB loans were considered as part of Synovus evaluation. If Synovus assumptions and judgments turn out to be incorrect, including as a result of the fact that its due diligence review did not cover each individual loan, Synovus estimated credit mark against the FCB loan portfolio in total may be insufficient to cover actual loan losses after the merger is completed, and adjustments may be necessary to allow for different economic conditions or adverse developments in the FCB loan portfolio. Additionally, deterioration in economic conditions affecting borrowers, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans and other factors, both within and outside Synovus or FCB s control, may require an increase in the provision for loan losses. Material additions to the credit mark and/or allowance for loan losses would materially decrease Synovus net income and would result in extra regulatory scrutiny and possibly supervisory action.

Regulatory Approvals May Not Be Received, May Take Longer than Expected or May Impose Conditions that Are Not Presently Anticipated or Cannot Be Met.

Before the transactions contemplated in the merger agreement can be completed, various approvals must be obtained from the bank regulatory and other governmental authorities. In deciding whether to grant these approvals, the relevant governmental entities will consider a variety of factors, including the regulatory standing of each of the parties and the effect of the merger on competition, and the factors described in the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger beginning on page 94. An adverse development in either party's regulatory standing or other factors could result in an inability to obtain one or more of the required regulatory approvals or delay receipt of required approvals. The Federal Reserve Board has stated that if supervisory issues arise during processing of an application for approval of a merger transaction, a banking organization will be expected to withdraw its application pending resolution of such supervisory concerns.

Accordingly, if there is an adverse development in either party's regulatory standing, Synovus may be required to withdraw its application for approval of the proposed merger, as applicable, and, if possible, resubmit such application after the applicable supervisory concerns have been resolved.

The terms and conditions of the approvals that are granted may impose conditions, limitations, obligations or costs, or place restrictions on the conduct of the combined company s business or require changes to the terms of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. There can be no assurance that regulators will not

impose any such conditions, limitations, obligations or restrictions and that such conditions, limitations, obligations or restrictions will not have the effect of delaying the completion of any of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, imposing additional material costs on or materially limiting the revenues of the combined company following the merger or otherwise reduce the anticipated benefits of the merger if the merger were consummated successfully within the expected timeframe. In addition, there can be no assurance that any such conditions, terms, obligations or restrictions will not result in the delay or abandonment of the merger. Additionally, the completion of the merger is conditioned on the absence of certain orders, injunctions or decrees by any court or regulatory agency of competent jurisdiction that would prohibit or make illegal the completion of any of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Synovus and FCB believe that the proposed transactions should not raise significant regulatory concerns and that Synovus will be able to obtain all requisite regulatory approvals in a timely manner. However, the processing time for obtaining regulatory approvals for mergers of banking institutions, particularly for larger institutions, has increased since the financial crisis of 2007-2008. In addition, despite the parties' commitments to use their reasonable best efforts to comply with conditions imposed by regulators, under the terms of the merger agreement, Synovus will not be required, and FCB will not be permitted without the prior written consent of Synovus, to take actions or agree to conditions that would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Synovus and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, after giving effect to the merger (measured on a scale relative to FCB and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole). See Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger beginning on page 94.

The Merger Agreement May Be Terminated in Accordance with Its Terms and the Merger May Not Be Completed.

The merger agreement is subject to a number of conditions which must be fulfilled in order to complete the merger. Those conditions include: (i) the approval of the Synovus share issuance by the requisite vote of the Synovus shareholders; (ii) the adoption of the merger agreement by the requisite vote of the FCB stockholders; (iii) authorization for listing on the NYSE of the shares of Synovus common stock to be issued in the merger; (iv) the receipt of all required regulatory approvals which are necessary to consummate the merger and the expiration of all statutory waiting periods without the imposition of any materially burdensome regulatory condition; (v) the effectiveness of the registration statement on Form S-4, of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part, and the absence of a stop order or proceeding initiated or threatened by the SEC for that purpose; (vi) the absence of any order, injunction or other legal restraint preventing the completion of the merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement or making the completion of the merger illegal; (vii) subject to certain exceptions, the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party, generally subject to a material adverse effect qualification; (viii) the prior performance in all material respects by the other party of an opinion from its counsel to the effect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

These conditions to the closing of the merger may not be fulfilled in a timely manner or at all, and, accordingly, the merger may not be completed. In addition, the parties can mutually decide to terminate the merger agreement at any time, before or after shareholder approval, or Synovus or FCB may elect to terminate the merger agreement in certain other circumstances. See The Merger Agreement—Termination; Termination Fee beginning on page 112.

Failure to Complete the Merger Could Negatively Impact Synovus and FCB.

.

If the merger is not completed, the ongoing businesses of Synovus and FCB may be adversely affected, and Synovus and FCB will be subject to several risks, including the following:

Synovus or FCB may be required, under certain circumstances, to pay the other party a termination fee of \$93.5 million under the merger agreement;

Synovus and FCB will be required to pay certain costs relating to the merger, whether or not the merger is completed, such as legal, accounting, financial advisor and printing fees;

under the merger agreement, Synovus and FCB are subject to certain restrictions on the conduct of their business prior to completing the merger, which may adversely affect their ability to execute certain of their business strategies; and

matters relating to the merger may require substantial commitments of time and resources by Synovus and FCB management, which could otherwise have been devoted to other opportunities that may have been beneficial to Synovus and FCB as independent companies, as the case may be.

In addition, if the merger is not completed, Synovus and/or FCB may experience negative reactions from the financial markets and from their respective customers and employees. For example, Synovus and FCB businesses may be impacted adversely by the failure to pursue other beneficial opportunities due to the focus of management on the merger, without realizing any of the anticipated benefits of completing the merger. The market price of Synovus or FCB Class A common stock could decline to the extent that the current market prices reflect a market assumption that the merger will be completed. Synovus and/or FCB also could be subject to litigation related to any failure to complete the merger or to proceedings commenced against Synovus or FCB to perform their respective obligations under the merger agreement. If the merger is not completed, Synovus and FCB cannot assure their respective shareholders and stockholders (as applicable) that the risks described above will not materialize and will not materially affect the business, financial results and stock prices of Synovus and/or FCB.

FCB and Synovus Will Be Subject to Business Uncertainties and Contractual Restrictions While the Merger Is Pending.

Uncertainty about the effect of the merger on employees and customers may have an adverse effect on FCB and/or Synovus. These uncertainties may impair FCB's and/or Synovus' ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel until the merger is completed, and could cause customers and others that deal with FCB and/or Synovus to seek to change existing business relationships with FCB and/or Synovus. Retention of certain employees may be challenging during the pendency of the merger, as certain employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the combined company. If key employees depart because of issues relating to the uncertainty and difficulty of integration or a desire not to remain with FCB or Synovus, FCB's business or Synovus' business could be harmed. In addition, subject to certain exceptions, FCB has agreed to operate its business in the ordinary course prior to the closing date of the merger and FCB is also restricted from making certain acquisitions and taking other specified actions without the consent of Synovus until the merger occurs. Synovus is also subject to certain restrictions on the conduct of its business prior to the closing date of the merger. These restrictions may prevent FCB and/or Synovus from pursuing attractive business opportunities that may arise prior to the completion of the merger. See The Merger Agreement—Covenants and Agreements beginning on page 104.

The Combined Company May Be Unable to Retain Synovus and/or FCB Personnel Successfully After the Merger Is Completed.

The success of the merger will depend in part on the combined company s ability to retain the talents and dedication of key employees currently employed by Synovus and FCB. It is possible that these employees may decide not to remain with Synovus and FCB, as applicable, while the merger is pending or with the combined company after the merger is consummated. If key employees terminate their employment or if an insufficient number of employees is retained to maintain effective operations, the combined company s business activities may be adversely affected, and management s attention may be diverted from successfully integrating FCB to hiring suitable replacements, all of which may cause the combined company s business to suffer. In addition, Synovus and FCB may not be able to locate suitable replacements for any key employees who leave either company or to offer employment to potential replacements on reasonable terms.

FCB Directors and Officers May Have Interests in the Merger Different From the Interests of FCB Stockholders.

In considering the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus, you should be aware that some of FCB's executive officers and directors have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of FCB's stockholders generally. These interests include the vesting in full of certain outstanding FCB equity

compensation awards and rights to continued indemnification and insurance coverage by Synovus after the merger for acts or omissions occurring before the merger. These interests and arrangements may create potential conflicts of interest. the FCB board of directors was aware of these interests and considered these interests, among other matters, when making its decision to approve the merger and in recommending that FCB's stockholders vote in favor of the merger proposal. See The Merger—Interests of FCB Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on page <u>88</u>.

The Merger Agreement Limits FCB s Ability to Pursue Alternatives to the Merger.

The merger agreement contains provisions that make it more difficult for FCB to sell its business to a party other than Synovus. These provisions include a general prohibition on FCB's solicitation of, or, subject to certain exceptions relating to the exercise of fiduciary duties by the FCB board of directors, entering into discussions with any third party regarding any acquisition proposal or offer for a competing transaction, the requirement that FCB pay the \$93.5 million termination fee if the merger agreement is terminated in certain circumstances and the requirement that FCB submit the merger proposal to a vote of FCB's stockholders even if the FCB board of directors changes its recommendation in favor of the merger proposal in a manner adverse to Synovus. For more information, see The Merger Agreement—Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers, The Merger Agreement—Termination; Termination Fee and The Merger Agreement – Synovus Shareholder Meeting and ECP. Stockholder Meeting and Pacemendations of Their

The Merger Agreement—Synovus Shareholder Meeting and FCB Stockholder Meeting and Recommendations of Their Respective Board of Directors beginning on pages <u>110</u>, <u>11</u>2 and <u>10</u>9, respectively.

These provisions might discourage a third party that might have an interest in acquiring all or a significant part of FCB from considering or proposing that acquisition, even if that party were prepared to pay consideration with a higher per share value than the proposed merger consideration. Furthermore, a potential competing acquiror may propose to pay a lower per share price to FCB s stockholders than it might otherwise have proposed to pay because of FCB s obligation, in connection with termination of the merger agreement under certain circumstances, to pay Synovus the \$93.5 million termination fee.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information Included in This Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus Is Preliminary and the Actual Financial Condition and Results of Operations After the Merger May Differ Materially.

The unaudited pro forma financial information included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what the combined company's actual financial position or results of operations would have been had the merger been completed on the date(s) indicated. The preparation of the pro forma financial information is based upon available information and certain assumptions and estimates that Synovus and FCB currently believe are reasonable. The unaudited pro forma financial information reflects adjustments, which are based upon preliminary estimates, to allocate the purchase price to FCB's net assets. The purchase price allocation reflected in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is preliminary, and the final allocation of the purchase price will be based upon the actual purchase price and the fair value of the assets and liabilities of FCB as of the date of the completion of the merger. In addition, following the completion of the merger, there may be further refinements of the purchase price allocation as additional information becomes available. Accordingly, the final purchase accounting adjustments may differ materially from the pro forma adjustments reflected in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information beginning on page <u>118</u>.

The Opinions of FCB s and Synovus Financial Advisors Delivered to the Parties Respective Boards of Directors Prior to the Signing of the Merger Agreement Will Not Reflect Changes in Circumstances Occurring After the Date of Such Opinions.

Each of the opinions of FCB's and Synovus' financial advisors was delivered on, and dated, July 23, 2018. Changes in the operations and prospects of FCB or Synovus, general market and economic conditions and other factors that may be beyond the control of FCB or Synovus may significantly alter the value of FCB or the prices of the Synovus common stock or FCB Class A common stock by the time the merger is completed. The opinions do not speak as of the time the merger will be completed or as of any date other than the date of such opinions. See The Merger—Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors beginning on page 60 and The Merger—Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor beginning on page <u>81</u>.

Synovus and FCB Will Incur Transaction and Integration Costs in Connection with the Merger.

Each of Synovus and FCB has incurred and expects that it will incur significant, non-recurring costs in connection with negotiating the merger agreement and consummating the merger. In addition, Synovus will incur integration costs following the completion of the merger as Synovus integrates the businesses of the two companies, including facilities and systems consolidation costs and employment-related costs. There can be no assurances that the expected benefits and efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses will be realized to offset these transaction and integration costs over time. See the risk factor entitled —Synovus May Fail to

Realize the Anticipated Benefits of the Merger above. Synovus and FCB may also incur additional costs to maintain employee morale and to retain key employees. Synovus and FCB will also incur significant legal, financial advisor, accounting, banking and consulting fees, fees relating to regulatory filings and notices, SEC filing fees, printing and mailing fees and other costs associated with the merger. Some of these costs are payable regardless of whether the merger is completed. See The Merger Agreement—Expenses and Fees beginning on page 113.

FCB Stockholders Will Become Shareholders of an Georgia Corporation and Will Have Their Rights As Shareholders Governed by Synovus Organizational Documents and Georgia Law.

As a result of the completion of the merger, FCB's stockholders will become shareholders of Synovus, and their rights as shareholders of Synovus will be governed by Synovus' organizational documents and the Georgia Business Corporation Code (which we refer to as the GBCC). As a result, there will be differences between the rights currently enjoyed by FCB stockholders and the rights they expect to have as shareholders of the combined company. See Comparison of Rights of FCB Stockholders and Synovus Shareholders beginning on page 133.

Lawsuits Challenging the Merger May Be Filed Against FCB and Synovus, and an Adverse Judgment in Any Such Lawsuit or Any Future Similar Lawsuits May Prevent the Merger from Becoming Effective or from Becoming Effective Within the Expected Timeframe.

Stockholders of FCB and/or shareholders of Synovus may file lawsuits against FCB, Synovus and/or the directors and officers of either company in connection with the merger. For more information about current litigation that is pending in connection with the merger, see The Merger—Litigation Relating to the Merger beginning on page 93. One of the conditions to the closing of the merger is that no order, injunction or decree issued by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition that prevents the consummation of the merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement be in effect. If any plaintiff were successful in obtaining an injunction prohibiting FCB or Synovus defendants from completing the merger on the agreed upon terms, then such injunction may prevent the merger from becoming effective or from becoming effective within the expected timeframe and could result in significant costs to FCB and/or Synovus, including any cost associated with the indemnification of directors and officers. The defense or settlement of any lawsuit or claim that remains unresolved at the time the merger is completed may adversely affect Synovus' business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow.

FCB Stockholders Will Not Have Appraisal Rights in the Merger.

Dissenters rights are statutory rights that, if applicable under law, enable stockholders to dissent from an extraordinary transaction, such as a merger, and to demand that the corporation pay the fair value for their shares as determined by a court in a judicial proceeding instead of receiving the consideration offered to stockholders in connection with the extraordinary transaction. Under the DGCL, a stockholder may not dissent from a merger as to shares that are listed on a national securities exchange at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of the meeting of stockholders to vote upon the agreement of merger or consolidation.

Pursuant to the DGCL, holders of FCB Class A common stock will not be entitled to dissenters or appraisal rights in the merger with respect to their shares of FCB Class A common stock because FCB Class A common stock is listed on the NYSE, a national securities exchange, and is expected to continue to be so listed on the record date.

Additional Risks Relating to Synovus and FCB After the Merger

Synovus' and FCB's businesses are, and will continue to be, subject to the risks described in (i) Part I, Item 1A in Synovus' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 and (ii) Part I, Item 1A in FCB's

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, in each case, as such risks may be updated or supplemented in each company's subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K, all of which are filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page 151.

FCB SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Date, Time and Place

The special meeting of FCB stockholders will be held on November 29, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. local time, at the offices of Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP at 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036. On or about October [•], 2018, FCB commenced mailing this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the enclosed form of proxy to its stockholders entitled to vote at the FCB special meeting.

Purpose of the FCB Special Meeting

At the FCB special meeting, FCB stockholders will be asked to vote on the following:

the approval of the merger proposal;

- the approval of the FCB compensation
- proposal; and

the approval of the FCB adjournment proposal. **Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors**

The FCB board of directors recommends that FCB stockholders vote **FOR** the merger proposal, **FOR** the FCB compensation proposal and **FOR** the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate). See The Merger—Recommendation of the FCB board of directors and Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 54.

FCB Record Date and Quorum

The FCB board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 24, 2018 as the record date for determining the holders of FCB Class A common stock entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the FCB special meeting. As of the FCB record date, there were 46,823,114 shares of FCB Class A common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the FCB special meeting held by 94 holders of record.

To transact business at the FCB special meeting, the presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote at the FCB special meeting is necessary in order to constitute a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the FCB special meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be treated as present at the FCB special meeting for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of all business. In the event that a quorum is not present at the FCB special meeting, in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time to another time and/or place until a quorum is so present or represented.

FCB Voting Rights

Each share of FCB Class A common stock entitles the holder thereof to one vote at the FCB special meeting on each proposal to be considered at the FCB special meeting.

Required Vote

Approval of the merger proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote thereon. Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB compensation proposal and FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes

cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting.

As of the FCB record date, directors and executive officers of FCB and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,951,804 shares of FCB Class A common stock, representing approximately 4.2% of the shares of FCB Class A common stock outstanding on that date. FCB currently expects that its directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the merger proposal, the FCB compensation proposal and the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate), although none of them has entered into any agreements obligating them to do so. As of the record date, Synovus did not beneficially hold any shares of FCB Class A common stock.

Treatment of Abstentions; Failure to Vote

For purposes of the FCB special meeting, an abstention occurs when a FCB stockholder attends the FCB special meeting, either in person or by proxy, but abstains from voting or marks abstain on such stockholder s proxy card.

For the merger proposal, an abstention or failure to vote, either in person or by proxy, at the FCB special meeting will have the same effect as a vote cast AGAINST such proposal.

For the FCB compensation proposal and the FCB adjournment proposal, an abstention or failure to vote, either in person or by proxy, at the FCB special meeting will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. For each of these proposals, abstentions are not treated as votes cast and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote, though abstentions are counted towards establishing a quorum.

Voting on Proxies; Incomplete Proxies

Giving a proxy means that a FCB stockholder authorizes the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote its shares of FCB Class A common stock at the FCB special meeting in the manner such stockholder directs. A FCB stockholder may vote by proxy or in person at the FCB special meeting. If you hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock in your name as a stockholder of record, to submit a proxy, you, as a FCB stockholder, may use one of the following methods:

By mail: Complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card to FCB using the enclosed postage-paid envelope. The envelope requires no additional postage if mailed in the United States.

By telephone: Use any touch-tone telephone to vote your proxy by calling toll-free 1-800-690-6903 and following the voice recorded instructions. Please have your proxy card and your social security number or tax identification number available when you call. Voting by telephone is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the FCB special meeting.

Via the Internet: Use the Internet to vote your proxy by accessing the website www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions on the website to obtain your records and submit an electronic ballot. Please have your proxy card and your social security number or tax identification number available when you access this voting site. Voting via the Internet is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the FCB special meeting.

When the accompanying proxy is returned properly executed prior to the FCB special meeting, the shares of FCB Class A common stock represented by it will be voted at the FCB special meeting in accordance with the instructions contained on the proxy card. If any proxy is returned without indication as to how to vote, the shares of FCB Class A common stock represented by the proxy will be voted as recommended by the FCB board of directors.

If a FCB stockholder s shares of FCB Class A common stock are held in street name by a broker, bank or other nominee, the FCB stockholder should check the voting form used by that firm to determine whether it may vote by telephone or via the Internet.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF FCB CLASS A COMMON STOCK YOU OWN. Accordingly, each FCB stockholder should complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope, or vote via the Internet or by telephone as soon as possible, whether or not such FCB stockholder plans to attend the FCB special meeting in person.

Shares Held in Street Name

If you are a FCB stockholder and your shares of FCB Class A common stock are held in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, your broker, bank or other nominee s ability to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock for you is governed by the rules of the NYSE. Without your specific instruction, a broker, bank or other nominee may

only vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on routine proposals. As such, your broker, bank or other nominee will submit a proxy card on your behalf as to routine proposals but leave your shares of FCB Class A common stock unvoted on non-routine proposals—this is known as a broker non-vote. The merger proposal, the FCB compensation proposal and the FCB adjournment proposal are

regarded as non-routine matters and your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote on these matters without instructions from you. Therefore, if you are a FCB stockholder holding your shares of FCB Class A common stock in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock:

your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the merger proposal, which broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote cast AGAINST this proposal; and your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the FCB compensation proposal or the FCB adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for these proposals.

Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a FCB Stockholder s Vote

If you have submitted your proxy and would like to revoke it, you may do so before your shares of FCB Class A common stock are voted at the FCB special meeting by taking any of the following actions:

delivering a written notice bearing a date later than the date of your proxy to the secretary of FCB stating that you revoke your proxy, which notice must be received by FCB prior to the beginning the FCB special meeting; completing, signing, dating and returning to the secretary of FCB a new proxy card relating to the same shares of FCB Class A common stock and bearing a later date, which new proxy card must be received by FCB prior to the beginning of the FCB special meeting;

casting a new vote by telephone or via the Internet at any time before 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the FCB special meeting; or

attending the FCB special meeting and voting in person, although attendance at the FCB special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If you choose to send a written notice of revocation or to mail a new proxy to FCB, you must submit your notice of revocation or your new proxy to FCB Financial Holdings, Inc., Attention: Corporate Secretary, 2500 Weston Road, Suite 300, Weston, Florida, and it must be received at any time before the vote is taken at the FCB special meeting.

If you have instructed a broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock, you must follow the directions you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee in order to change or revoke your vote.

FCB stockholders retain the right to revoke their proxies in the manner described above. Unless so revoked, the shares of FCB Class A common stock represented by such proxies will be voted at the FCB special meeting and all adjournments or postponements thereof.

Solicitation of Proxies

The cost of solicitation of proxies for the FCB special meeting will be borne by FCB. FCB will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of common stock. FCB has retained D.F. King to assist in the solicitation of proxies for a fee of approximately \$15,000 plus related fees for any additional services and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. In addition, FCB s directors, officers and employees may also solicit proxies by mail, telephone, facsimile, electronic mail or in person, but no additional compensation will be paid to them.

Attending the FCB Special Meeting

All FCB stockholders of record as of the record date, or their duly appointed proxies, may attend the FCB special meeting. If you plan to attend the FCB special meeting, you must hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock in your own name or have a letter from the record holder of your shares confirming your ownership. In addition, you

must bring a form of personal photo identification with you in order to be admitted to the FCB special meeting. FCB reserves the right to refuse admittance to anyone without proper proof of stock ownership or without proper photo identification.

If your shares of FCB Class A common stock are held in street name by a bank, broker or other nominee and you wish to attend the FCB special meeting, please bring evidence of your beneficial ownership of your shares (e.g., a copy of a recent brokerage statement showing the shares) and valid photo identification with you to the FCB special meeting. If you intend to vote in person at the FCB special meeting and you own your shares in street name, you also are required to bring to the FCB special meeting a legal proxy, executed in your favor, from the record holder of your shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee.

FCB PROPOSALS

Proposal No. 1: Merger Proposal

As discussed elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, FCB stockholders will consider and vote on the merger proposal. FCB stockholders must approve the merger proposal in order for the merger to occur. If FCB stockholders fail to approve the merger proposal, the merger will not occur.

Accordingly, FCB is asking FCB stockholders to vote to approve the merger proposal, either by attending the FCB special meeting and voting in person or by submitting a proxy. You should carefully read this joint proxy statement/prospectus in its entirety for more detailed information concerning the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby. In particular, you are urged to read the merger agreement in its entirety, which is attached as <u>Annex A</u> hereto.

Approval of the merger proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of FCB Class A common stock entitled to vote thereon. For the merger proposal, you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN. If you abstain or if your shares of FCB Class A common stock are not present at the FCB special meeting, either in person or by proxy, it will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the adoption of the merger agreement. If you hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares on the merger proposal, your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the merger proposal, which broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST such proposal.

The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the merger proposal.

Proposal No. 2: FCB Compensation Proposal

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 and Rule 14a-21(c) of the Exchange Act, FCB is seeking non-binding, advisory stockholder approval of the compensation of FCB's named executive officers that is based on or otherwise relates to the merger as disclosed in The Merger—Merger-Related Compensation for FCB's Named Executive Officers beginning on page 91. The proposal gives FCB's stockholders the opportunity to express their views on the merger-related compensation of FCB's named executive officers. Accordingly, FCB is requesting stockholders to adopt the following resolution, on a non-binding, advisory basis:

RESOLVED, that the compensation that may be paid or become payable to FCB s named executive officers in connection with the merger, and the agreements or understandings pursuant to which such compensation may be paid or become payable, in each case as disclosed pursuant to Item 402(t) of Regulation S-K in The Merger—Merger-Related Compensation for FCB s Named Executive Officers, are hereby APPROVED on a non-binding, advisory basis.

The vote on this proposal is a vote separate and apart from the vote of the FCB stockholders to approve the merger proposal and approval of this FCB compensation proposal is not a condition to completion of the merger. Accordingly, a holder of FCB Class A common stock may vote to not approve this FCB compensation proposal and vote to approve the merger proposal or vice versa. The vote with respect to this FCB compensation proposal is advisory only and will not be binding on FCB or Synovus, regardless of whether the other proposals are approved. If the merger is completed, the merger-related compensation may be paid to FCB s named executive officers to the extent payable in accordance with the terms of the compensation agreements and arrangements even if FCB s stockholders fail to approve this compensation proposal.

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB compensation proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. For the FCB compensation proposal, you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN. If your shares of FCB Class A common stock are not present at the FCB special meeting, either in person or by proxy, it will have no effect on the FCB compensation proposal (assuming a quorum is present). If you abstain, your abstention will have no effect on the merger-related compensation proposal, although it will be counted toward establishing a quorum. If you hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the FCB

compensation proposal, your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the FCB compensation proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for such proposal.

The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the FCB compensation proposal.

Proposal No. 3: FCB Adjournment Proposal

The FCB special meeting may be adjourned to another time or place, if necessary or appropriate, to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the merger proposal.

If, at the FCB special meeting, the number of shares of FCB Class A common stock present in person or represented by proxy and voting in favor of the merger proposal is insufficient to approve the merger proposal, FCB may move to adjourn the FCB special meeting in order to enable the FCB board of directors to solicit additional proxies in favor of the merger proposal.

In the FCB adjournment proposal, FCB is asking its stockholders to authorize the holder of any proxy solicited by the FCB board of directors to vote in favor of granting discretionary authority to the proxy holders, and each of them individually, to adjourn the FCB special meeting to another time and/or place for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies. If the FCB stockholders approve the FCB adjournment proposal, FCB could adjourn the FCB special meeting and any adjourned session of the FCB special meeting and use the additional time to solicit additional proxies, including the solicitation of proxies from FCB stockholders who have previously voted. FCB does not intend to call a vote on adjournment of the special meeting to solicit additional proxies if the merger proposal is adopted at the FCB special meeting.

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the FCB special meeting. For the FCB adjournment proposal, you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN. If your shares of FCB Class A common stock are not present at the FCB special meeting, either in person or by proxy, it will have no effect on the FCB adjournment proposal (assuming a quorum is present). If you abstain, your abstention will have no effect on the FCB adjournment proposal, although it will be counted toward establishing a quorum. If you hold your shares of FCB Class A common stock through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the FCB adjournment proposal, your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of FCB Class A common stock on the FCB adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for such proposal.

The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that FCB stockholders vote FOR the FCB adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

SYNOVUS SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Date, Time and Place

The special meeting of Synovus shareholders will be held on November 29, 2018, at 10:00 A.M. local time, at Blanchard Hall, Synovus Bank, 1144 Broadway, Columbus, Georgia 31901. On or about October [•], 2018, Synovus commenced mailing this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the enclosed form of proxy to its shareholders entitled to vote at the Synovus special meeting.

Purpose of Synovus Special Meeting

At the Synovus special meeting, Synovus shareholders will be asked to vote on the following:

the approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal; and the approval of the Synovus adjournment proposal. **Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors**

The Synovus board of directors recommends that Synovus shareholders vote **FOR** the Synovus share issuance proposal and **FOR** the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate). See The Merger—Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 78.

Synovus Record Date and Quorum

The Synovus board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 24, 2018 as the record date for determining the holders of Synovus common stock entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Synovus special meeting. As of the Synovus record date, there were 116,388,487 shares of Synovus common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Synovus special meeting held by 12,371 holders of record.

To transact business at the Synovus special meeting, the presence, in person or represented by proxy, of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of Synovus common stock entitled to vote at the Synovus special meeting is necessary in order to establish a quorum for purposes of the matters being voted on at the Synovus special meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be treated as present at the Synovus special meeting for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of all business. In the event that a quorum is not present at the Synovus special meeting, the holders of a majority of the voting shares represented at the Synovus special meeting, in person or represented by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time to another time and/or place until a quorum is so present or represented.

Synovus Voting Rights

Synovus has a voting structure under which a holder of Synovus common stock may be entitled to exercise ten votes per share for each share of Synovus common stock that satisfies certain prescribed criteria and one vote per share for each share of Synovus common stock that does not. As provided in the Synovus charter and the Synovus bylaws, holders of Synovus common stock meeting any one of the following criteria are entitled to ten votes on each matter submitted to a vote of shareholders for each share of Synovus common stock owned on October 24, 2018 which: (1) has had the same beneficial owner since April 24, 1986; or (2) has been beneficially owned continuously by the same shareholder since October 24, 2014; or (3) is held by the same beneficial owner to whom it was issued as a result of an acquisition of a company or business by Synovus where the resolutions adopted by the Synovus board of directors approving the acquisition specifically grant ten votes per share; or (4) is held by the same beneficial owner to whom it was issued of directors adopted by Synovus, or to whom it was transferred by Synovus from treasury shares, and the resolutions adopted

by the Synovus board of directors approving such issuance and/or transfer specifically grant ten votes per share; or (5) was acquired under any employee, officer and/or director benefit plan maintained for one or more employees, officers and/or directors of Synovus and/or its subsidiaries, and is held by the same beneficial owner for whom it was acquired under any such plan; or (6) was acquired by reason of participation in a dividend reinvestment plan offered by Synovus and is held by the same beneficial owner who acquired it under such plan; or (7) is owned by a holder who, in addition to shares which are beneficially owned under the provisions of (1)-(6) above, is the beneficial owner of less than 162,723 shares of Synovus common stock (which amount is equal to 100,000 shares, as appropriately adjusted to reflect

the change in shares of Synovus common stock by means of stock splits, stock dividends, any recapitalization or otherwise occurring since April 24, 1986). For purposes of determining voting power under these provisions, any share of Synovus common stock acquired pursuant to stock options shall be deemed to have been acquired on the date the option was granted, and any shares of Synovus common stock acquired as a direct result of a stock split, stock dividend or other type of share distribution will be deemed to have been acquired and held continuously from the date on which shares of Synovus common stock with regard to such dividend shares were issued were acquired. Under these voting provisions, a Synovus shareholder may hold some shares that qualify for 10-1 voting and some shares that do not. Holders of Synovus common stock are entitled to one vote per share unless the holder can demonstrate that such shares meet one of the criteria above for being entitled to ten votes per share.

For purposes of the foregoing, any share of Synovus common stock held in street or nominee name shall be presumed to have been acquired by the beneficial owner subsequent to April 24, 1986 and to have had the same beneficial owner for a continuous period of less than 48 months prior to October 24, 2018. This presumption shall be rebuttable by presentation to the Synovus board of directors by such beneficial owner of evidence satisfactory to the Synovus board of directors that such share of Synovus common stock has had the same beneficial owner continuously since April 24, 1986 or such share of Synovus common stock has had the same beneficial owner for a period greater than 48 months prior to October 24, 2018.

In addition, for purposes of the foregoing, a beneficial owner of a share of Synovus common stock is defined to include a person or group of persons who, directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, undertaking, relationship or otherwise has or shares (1) voting power, which includes the power to vote, or to direct the voting of such share of Synovus common stock, (2) investment power, which includes the power to direct the sale or other disposition of such share of Synovus common stock, (3) the right to receive, retain or direct the distribution of the proceeds of any sale or other disposition of such share of Synovus common stock, or (4) the right to receive or direct the disposition of any distributions, including cash dividends, in respect of such share of Synovus common stock.

Shares of Synovus common stock are presumed to be entitled to only one vote per share unless this presumption is rebutted by providing evidence to the contrary to Synovus. Synovus shareholders seeking to rebut this presumption should complete and execute the certification appearing on the proxy card. Synovus reserves the right to request additional documentation from any Synovus shareholder to confirm the voting power of such shareholder s shares of Synovus common stock. Because certifications must be in writing, if any Synovus shareholder choose to vote by telephone, all of such stockholder s shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share. **Synovus shareholders who do not certify on their proxies submitted by mail or internet that they are entitled to ten votes per share or who do not present such a certification if they are voting in person at the special meeting will be entitled to only one vote per share.**

For more detailed information on your voting rights, please refer to Synovus 10-1 Voting Instructions and the accompanying voting instruction worksheet that are available on Synovus website at investor.synovus.com/2018specialmeeting.

Required Vote

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal and Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting.

As of September 30, 2018, directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,700,710 shares of Synovus common stock, representing approximately 1.5% of the shares of Synovus common stock outstanding on that date. Based upon the total voting power certified at Synovus 2018 annual meeting of

shareholders held on April 26, 2018 and based on the assumption that all shares of Synovus common stock held by the directors and executive officers of Synovus (1) have been beneficially owned continuously by the same shareholder since October 24, 2014; (2) have been held by the same beneficial owner to whom the shares were issued as a result of an acquisition of a company or business by Synovus where the resolutions adopted by the Synovus Board of Directors approving the acquisition specifically grant ten votes per share to such shares; (3) have been acquired under any employee, officer and/or director benefit plan maintained for one or more employees, officers and/or directors of Synovus and/or its subsidiaries and have been held by the same owner for whom it was acquired under any such plan; (4) have been acquired by reason of participation in

a dividend reinvestment plan offered by Synovus and have been held by the same owner for whom the shares were acquired under any such plan; or (5) have been owned by a holder who, in addition to certain other shares, is the owner of less than 162,723 shares of Synovus common stock, the voting power of the directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates would represent approximately 6.2% of the total voting power as of September 30, 2018. The exact total voting power represented by the shares of common stock owned by directors and executive officers of Synovus and their affiliates may be determined only at the time of the Synovus special meeting due to the need to obtain certifications as to beneficial ownership of common shares held in street or nominee name. Synovus currently expects that its directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal and the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate), although none of them has entered into any agreements obligating them to do so. As of the record date, FCB did not beneficially hold any shares of Synovus common stock.

Treatment of Abstentions; Failure to Vote

For purposes of the Synovus special meeting, an abstention occurs when a Synovus shareholder attends the Synovus special meeting, either in person or represented by proxy, but abstains from voting or marks abstain on such shareholder s proxy card.

For the Synovus share issuance proposal, under the current rules and interpretive guidance of the NYSE, abstentions are treated as votes cast and will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the Synovus share issuance proposal. A failure to vote, either in person or by proxy, at the Synovus special meeting will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Synovus share issuance proposal.

For the Synovus adjournment proposal, an abstention or failure to vote, either in person or by proxy, at the Synovus special meeting will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. For this proposal, abstentions are not treated as votes cast and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Synovus adjournment proposal, though abstentions are counted towards establishing a quorum.

Voting on Proxies; Incomplete Proxies

Giving a proxy means that a Synovus shareholder authorizes the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote its shares of Synovus common stock at the Synovus special meeting in the manner such shareholder directs. A Synovus shareholder may vote by proxy or in person at the Synovus special meeting. If you hold your shares of Synovus common stock in your name as a shareholder of record, to submit a proxy, you, as a Synovus shareholder, may use one of the following methods:

By mail: Complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card and certification (if applicable) to Synovus using the enclosed postage-paid envelope. The envelope requires no additional postage if mailed in the United States. By telephone: Use any touch-tone telephone to vote your proxy by calling toll-free 1-800-690-6903 and following the voice recorded instructions. Please have your proxy card and your social security number or tax identification number available when you call. Voting by telephone is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the Synovus special meeting. If you vote by telephone, all of your shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share.

Via the Internet: Use the Internet to vote your proxy by accessing the website www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions on the website to obtain your records and submit an electronic ballot and certification (if applicable). Please have your proxy card and your social security number or tax identification number available when you access this voting site. Voting via the Internet is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the Synovus special meeting.

When the accompanying proxy is returned properly executed prior to the Synovus special meeting, the shares of Synovus common stock represented by it will be voted at the Synovus special meeting in accordance with the instructions contained on the proxy card. If any proxy is returned without indication as to how to vote, the shares of

Synovus common stock represented by the proxy will be voted as recommended by the Synovus board of directors.

If a Synovus shareholder s shares of Synovus common stock are held in street name by a broker, bank or other nominee, the Synovus shareholder should check the voting form used by that firm to determine whether it may vote by telephone or via the Internet.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF SYNOVUS COMMON STOCK YOU OWN. Accordingly, each Synovus shareholder should complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card and certification (if applicable) in the enclosed postage-paid envelope, or vote by telephone or via the Internet as soon as possible, whether or not such Synovus shareholder plans to attend the Synovus special meeting in person.

Shares Held in Street Name

If you are a Synovus shareholder and your shares of Synovus common stock are held in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, your broker, bank or other nominee s ability to vote your shares of Synovus common stock for you is governed by the rules of the NYSE. Without your specific instruction, a broker, bank or other nominee may only vote your shares of Synovus common stock on routine proposals. As such, your broker, bank or other nominee will submit a proxy card on your behalf as to routine proposals but leave your shares of Synovus common stock unvoted on non-routine proposals—this is known as a broker non-vote. The Synovus share issuance proposal and the Synovus adjournment proposal are regarded as non-routine matters and your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote on these matters without instructions from you. Therefore, if you are a Synovus shareholder holding your shares of Synovus common stock in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock unvote on the street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of Synovus common stock in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares on the Synovus share issuance proposal or the Synovus adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for this proposal.

Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Synovus Shareholder s Vote

If you have submitted your proxy and would like to revoke it, you may do so before your shares of Synovus common stock are voted at the Synovus special meeting by taking any of the following actions:

delivering a written notice bearing a date later than the date of your proxy to the secretary of Synovus stating that you revoke your proxy, which notice must be received by Synovus prior to the beginning the Synovus special meeting; completing, signing, dating and returning to the secretary of Synovus a new proxy card (and certification, if applicable) relating to the same shares of Synovus common stock and bearing a later date, which new proxy card (and certification, if applicable) must be received by Synovus prior to the beginning of the Synovus special meeting; casting a new vote by telephone or via the Internet at any time before 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time on the day before the Synovus special meeting (however, if you cast such new vote by telephone, all of your shares of Synovus common stock will be voted as one vote per share); or

attending the Synovus special meeting and voting in person, although attendance at the Synovus special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If you choose to send a written notice of revocation or to mail a new proxy to Synovus, you must submit your notice of revocation or your new proxy to Synovus Financial Corp., Attention: Secretary, 1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500, Columbus, Georgia 31901, and it must be received at any time before the vote is taken at the Synovus special meeting.

If you have instructed a broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares of Synovus common stock, you must follow the directions you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee in order to change or revoke your vote.

Synovus shareholders retain the right to revoke their proxies in the manner described above. Unless so revoked, the shares of Synovus common stock represented by such proxies will be voted at the Synovus special meeting and all

adjournments or postponements thereof.

Solicitation of Proxies

The cost of solicitation of proxies for the Synovus special meeting will be borne by Synovus. Synovus will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by

them in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of common stock. Synovus has retained Innisfree to assist in the solicitation of proxies for a fee of approximately \$25,000 plus related fees for any additional services and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. In addition, Synovus directors, officers and employees may also solicit proxies by mail, telephone, facsimile, electronic mail or in person, but no additional compensation will be paid to them.

Attending the Synovus Special Meeting

All Synovus shareholders of record as of the record date, or their duly appointed proxies, may attend the Synovus special meeting. If you plan to attend the Synovus special meeting, you must hold your shares of Synovus common stock in your own name or have a letter from the record holder of your shares confirming your ownership. In addition, you must bring a form of personal photo identification with you in order to be admitted to the Synovus special meeting. Synovus reserves the right to refuse admittance to anyone without proper proof of stock ownership or without proper photo identification. If you plan to attend the Synovus special meeting and are seeking to rebut the presumption that your shares of Synovus common stock are entitled to only one vote per share, you must present the completed and executed certification found on the enclosed proxy card at the Synovus special meeting.

If your shares of Synovus common stock are held in street name by a bank, broker or other nominee and you wish to attend the Synovus special meeting, please bring evidence of your beneficial ownership of your shares (e.g., a copy of a recent brokerage statement showing the shares) and valid photo identification with you to the Synovus special meeting. If you intend to vote in person at the Synovus special meeting and you own your shares in street name, you also are required to bring to the Synovus special meeting a legal proxy, executed in your favor, from the record holder of your shares, such as a broker, bank or other nominee.

SYNOVUS PROPOSALS

Proposal No. 1: Synovus Share Issuance Proposal

As discussed elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, Synovus shareholders will consider and vote on the Synovus share issuance proposal. Synovus shareholders must approve the Synovus share issuance proposal in order for the merger to occur. If Synovus shareholders fail to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, the merger will not occur.

Accordingly, Synovus is asking Synovus shareholders to vote to approve the Synovus share issuance proposal, either by attending the Synovus special meeting and voting in person or by submitting a proxy. You should carefully read this joint proxy statement/prospectus in its entirety for more detailed information concerning the Synovus share issuance. In particular, you are urged to read the merger agreement in its entirety, which is attached as <u>Annex A</u> hereto.

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting. For the Synovus share issuance proposal, you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN. Under the current rules and interpretive guidance of the NYSE, abstentions are treated as votes cast. Thus, for the Synovus share issuance proposal, if you abstain, it will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Synovus share issuance proposal. If your shares are not present at the Synovus special meeting, either in person or by proxy, it will have no effect on the Synovus share issuance proposal vote (assuming a quorum is present). If you hold your shares of Synovus common stock through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock on the Synovus share issuance proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on such proposal.

The Synovus board of directors unanimously recommends that Synovus shareholders vote FOR the Synovus share issuance proposal.

Proposal No. 2: Synovus Adjournment Proposal

The Synovus special meeting may be adjourned to another time or place, if necessary or appropriate, to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal.

If, at the Synovus special meeting, the number of shares of Synovus common stock present in person or represented by proxy and voting in favor of the Synovus share issuance is insufficient to approve the Synovus share issuance, Synovus may move to adjourn the Synovus special meeting in order to enable the Synovus board of directors to solicit additional proxies in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal.

In the Synovus adjournment proposal, Synovus is asking its shareholders to authorize the holder of any proxy solicited by the Synovus board of directors to vote in favor of granting discretionary authority to the proxy holders, and each of them individually, to adjourn the Synovus special meeting to another time and/or place for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies. If the Synovus shareholders approve the Synovus adjournment proposal, Synovus could adjourn the Synovus special meeting and any adjourned session of the Synovus special meeting and use the additional time to solicit additional proxies, including the solicitation of proxies from Synovus shareholders who have previously voted. Synovus does not intend to call a vote on adjournment of the special meeting to solicit additional proxies if the Synovus share issuance is approved at the Synovus special meeting.

Assuming a quorum is present, approval of the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on such proposal at the Synovus special meeting. For the Synovus adjournment proposal, you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN. If your shares of Synovus common stock are not present at the Synovus special meeting, either in person or by proxy, it will have no effect on the Synovus adjournment proposal (assuming a quorum is present). If you abstain, your abstention will have no effect on the Synovus adjournment proposal, although it will be counted toward establishing a quorum. If you hold your shares of Synovus common stock through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of Synovus common stock on the Synovus adjournment proposal, your broker, bank or other nominee will not vote your shares of Synovus common stock on the Synovus adjournment proposal, which broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote count for such proposal.

The Synovus board of directors unanimously recommends that Synovus shareholders vote FOR the Synovus adjournment proposal (if necessary or appropriate).

THE PARTIES

Synovus Financial Corp. and Merger Sub

1111 Bay Avenue, Suite 500 Columbus, Georgia 31901 (706) 649-2311

Synovus Financial Corp. is a financial services company and registered bank holding company under the BHC Act, and is headquartered in Columbus, Georgia. Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Synovus Bank, the company provides commercial and retail banking services, including private banking, treasury management, wealth management, premium finance and international banking. Synovus also provides mortgage services, financial planning and investment advisory services through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Synovus Mortgage, Synovus Trust and Synovus Securities, as well as its Global One, GLOBALT and Creative Financial Group divisions. Synovus Bank is a Georgia state-chartered bank and a member of the Federal Reserve System and is positioned in some of the highest growth markets in the Southeast, with 249 branches in Georgia, Alabama, South Carolina, Florida and Tennessee.

Synovus was incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia in 1972 and as of June 30, 2018, had approximately \$31.74 billion of total consolidated assets, \$26.44 billion of total deposits and over 4,500 employees.

Merger Sub is a Delaware corporation and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Synovus. Merger Sub was formed by Synovus solely for the purpose of engaging in the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, and has not carried on any business or conducted any other operations.

Synovus Share Repurchases

On July 25, 2018, Synovus announced that it intended to continue to execute open market share repurchases of the remaining amount of its repurchase plan (up to approximately \$51 million) before the beginning of the proxy solicitation in connection with the proposal to be voted on at the Synovus special meeting and FCB special meeting. On October 24, 2018, Synovus completed the repurchase program. From and including July 23, 2018, the date of the merger agreement, through October 24, 2018, Synovus repurchased an aggregate of 1,160,085 shares of Synovus common stock at an average price of \$48.00.

FCB Financial Holdings, Inc.

2500 Weston Road, Suite 300 Weston, Florida 33331 Phone: (954) 984-3313

FCB Financial Holdings, Inc. is a bank holding company, headquartered in Weston, Florida. Through its wholly-owned subsidiaries FCB Bank and Floridian Custody Services, Inc., FCB provides a range of financial products and services to individuals, small and medium-sized businesses, some large businesses, and other local organizations and entities through approximately 50 banking centers throughout Florida. FCB targets retail customers and commercial customers who are engaged in a wide variety of industries including commercial real estate; residential housing; retail and wholesale trade; tourism; distribution and distribution-related industries; manufacturing; technology; automotive; aviation; marine services; building materials; healthcare and professional services; food products; and agricultural services.

Since its formation in April 2009, FCB has raised equity capital and acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of eight failed banks from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as receiver. In January 2014 and

March 2018, FCB acquired Great Florida Bank and Floridian Community Holdings, Inc., respectively. Through the integration of the operations and systems of the acquired banks and through internal growth, FCB has transformed into a large, integrated commercial bank. FCB s consolidated total assets, total deposits and total stockholders equity were \$12.19 billion, \$9.86 billion and \$1.34 billion, respectively, at June 30, 2018.

THE MERGER

The following is a discussion of the merger and the material terms of the merger agreement between Synovus, Merger Sub and FCB. You are urged to read carefully the merger agreement in its entirety, a copy of which is attached as <u>Annex A</u> to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and incorporated by reference herein. This summary does not purport to be complete and may not contain all of the information about the merger agreement that is important to you. We encourage you to read the merger agreement carefully and in its entirety. This section is not intended to provide you with any factual information about Synovus or FCB. Such information can be found elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and in the public filings Synovus and FCB make with the SEC. See Where You Can Find More Information in the forepart of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference beginning on page <u>15</u>1.

Terms of the Merger

On July 23, 2018, the Synovus board of directors and the FCB board of directors each unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby including, in the case of the Synovus board of directors, the Synovus share issuance. The merger agreement provides for the acquisition of FCB by Synovus through the merger of Merger Sub with and into FCB, with FCB continuing as the surviving corporation. Immediately following the merger, the upstream merger will be completed.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, Synovus may, at any time prior to the effective time of the merger, change the method of effecting the combination of Synovus and FCB, if and to the extent both parties mutually deem such a change to be necessary or desirable. However, no such change may (i) alter or change the exchange ratio or the number of shares of Synovus common stock received by the FCB stockholders for each share of FCB Class A common stock, (ii) adversely affect the tax treatment of the merger with respect to FCB s stockholders or Synovus shareholders, (iii) adversely affect the tax treatment of FCB or Synovus or (iv) materially impede or delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement in a timely manner.

Merger Consideration

Each outstanding share of FCB Class A common stock held immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, except for shares of FCB Class A common stock owned by FCB as treasury stock or shares of Class A common stock owned by FCB or Synovus, in each case, other than in a fiduciary or agency capacity or as a result of debts previously contracted (which will be cancelled), will be automatically converted into the right to receive the merger consideration.

Treatment of FCB Equity Awards

At the effective time of the merger, each FCB option will be converted into an option to purchase (i) a number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded down to the nearest whole share) equal to the product of (A) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (B) the exchange ratio, (ii) at an exercise price per share of Synovus common stock (rounded up to the nearest whole cent) equal to the quotient of (A) the exercise price per share for the shares of FCB Class A common stock of such FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger divided by (B) the exchange ratio, and having the same terms and conditions (including with respect to vesting) as applied to the corresponding FCB option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger agreement permits FCB to amend the award agreements applicable to FCB options held by a member of the FCB board of directors (other than Mr. Ellert), to provide that such options remain exercisable for the full term thereof upon a separation from service for any reason.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each FCB restricted stock award, whether vested or unvested, will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB restricted stock award deemed to have been fully achieved (or, if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the FCB board of directors prior to the effective time of the merger)) and be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration, in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB restricted stock award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividends corresponding to the FCB restricted stock awards that vest in accordance with the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

Furthermore, at the effective time of the merger, each vested FCB RSU award will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB RSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the Vested FCB RSU awards. In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each Unvested FCB RSU award that is not held by a non-employee director of FCB will be converted into a Synovus RSU award in respect of that number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded to the nearest whole share, with 0.50 being rounded upward) equal to the product of (i) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB RSU award immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (ii) the exchange ratio. Each such Synovus RSU award will continue to have, and will be subject to, the same terms and conditions (including with respect to vesting and dividend equivalents) as applied to the corresponding FCB RSU award immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, each Unvested FCB RSU award held by a non-employee director of FCB, will fully vest and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB RSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB RSU awards held by such non-employee directors that vest in accordance with the merger agreement.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each FCB PSU award will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB PSU award deemed to have been fully achieved (or if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors of FCB prior to the effective time of the merger)) and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB PSU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB PSU awards that vest in accordance with the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger, each FCB CPU award will fully vest (with any performance-based vesting condition applicable to such FCB CPU award deemed to have been fully achieved (or, if the award contemplates multiple levels of achievement, achieved at the greater of the target level and the level of performance projected as of the effective time of the merger, as determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors of FCB prior to the effective time of the merger)) and will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive an amount in cash (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the per share stock consideration, in respect of each share of FCB Class A common stock underlying such FCB CPU award, together with any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents corresponding to the FCB CPU awards that vest in accordance with the merger agreement, less applicable tax withholdings.

Treatment of FCB Warrants

At the effective time of the merger, each FCB warrant, that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will be converted into a Synovus warrant to purchase (i) the same amount and kind of securities, cash or property as the holder of such FCB warrant would have been entitled to receive upon the consummation of the merger if such holder had exercised such FCB warrant immediately prior to the merger (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall equal that number of whole shares of Synovus common stock (rounded down to the nearest whole share) equal to the product of (A) the total number of shares of FCB Class A common stock subject to such FCB warrant immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by (B) the exchange ratio) (ii) at an exercise price as set forth in such FCB warrant, in each case in accordance with the terms of such FCB warrant. Except as otherwise provided in the merger agreement, each such Synovus warrant shall continue to have, and shall be subject to, the same terms and conditions as applied to the corresponding FCB warrant immediately prior to the effective time of the merger.

Conversion of Shares; Exchange and Payment Procedures

At or prior to the effective time of the merger, Synovus will deposit or cause to be deposited with an exchange agent designated by Synovus and reasonably acceptable to FCB, for the benefit of the holders of shares of FCB Class A common stock, sufficient cash and shares of Synovus common stock to be exchanged in accordance with the merger agreement, including the merger consideration and payment of cash in lieu of fractional shares.

The conversion of FCB Class A common stock into the right to receive the merger consideration will occur automatically at the effective time of the merger. As promptly as practicable after the effective time of the

merger, the exchange agent will exchange certificates or book entry shares representing shares of FCB Class A common stock for merger consideration to be received in the merger pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement.

Letters of Transmittal

As promptly as practicable after the effective time of the merger, but in no event later than five business days thereafter, the exchange agent will mail to each holder of record of FCB Class A common stock immediately prior to the effective time of the merger that have been converted at the effective time of the merger into the right to receive the merger consideration pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, a letter of transmittal and instructions on how to surrender shares of FCB Class A common stock in exchange for the merger consideration and cash in lieu of fractional shares such holder is entitled to receive under the merger agreement. FCB stockholders who properly surrender their certificates or book entry shares to the exchange agent, together with a properly completed and duly executed letter of transmittal, and such other documents as may be required pursuant to such instructions, will receive for each share of FCB Class A common stock, 1.055 shares of Synovus common stock plus any cash payable in lieu of any fractional shares of Synovus common stock, and any dividends or distributions such holder has the right to receive pursuant to the merger agreement. No interest will be paid or accrue on any merger consideration or cash in lieu of fractional shares.

After completion of the merger, there will be no further transfers on the stock transfer books of FCB of shares of FCB Class A common stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger. If certificates representing shares of FCB Class A common stock or book entry shares are presented for transfer after the effective time of the merger, they will be cancelled and exchanged for the merger consideration into which the shares of FCB Class A common stock represented by that certificate or book entry share have been converted.

Dividends and Distributions

No dividends or other distributions declared with respect to Synovus common stock will be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered certificates or book entry shares of FCB Class A common stock until the holder surrenders such certificate or book entry share in accordance with the merger agreement. After the surrender of a certificate or book entry share in accordance with the merger agreement, the record holder thereof will be entitled to receive any such dividends or other distributions, without any interest, which had previously become payable with respect to the whole shares of Synovus common stock that the shares of FCB Class A common stock represented by such certificate or book entry share have been converted into the right to receive under the merger agreement.

Fractional Shares

Synovus will not issue any fractional shares of Synovus common stock in the merger. Instead, a FCB stockholder who otherwise would have received a fraction of a share of Synovus common stock will receive an amount in cash (rounded to the nearest cent) determined by multiplying (i) the average of the closing-sale prices of Synovus common stock for the five full trading days ending on the day prior to the effective time of the merger by (ii) the fraction of a share (rounded to the nearest thousandth when expressed in decimal form) of Synovus common stock to which such stockholder would otherwise be entitled to receive.

Withholding

Each of Synovus and the exchange agent will be entitled to deduct and withhold from any consideration otherwise payable pursuant to the merger agreement such amounts they are required to deduct and withhold under the Code or any provision of state, local, or foreign tax law. If any such amounts are withheld and paid over to the appropriate governmental authority, these amounts will be treated for all purposes of the merger agreement as having been paid to

the person in respect of which the deduction and withholding was made.

Dissenting Shares

Under the DGCL, the holders of FCB Class A common stock will not have any appraisal rights with respect to the merger.

Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates

If a certificate for FCB Class A common stock has been lost, stolen or destroyed, the exchange agent will issue the merger consideration properly payable under the merger agreement upon receipt of (i) an affidavit of that fact by the claimant and (ii) if required by Synovus, the posting of a bond in an amount as Synovus may determine is reasonably necessary as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such certificate.

Background of the Merger

The FCB board of directors and FCB management have regularly reviewed FCB s results of operations, future growth prospects and competitive position in the industry in which FCB operates. They have also regularly considered FCB s strategic options in light of economic and regulatory conditions, among other things, including whether the continued execution of FCB s strategy as a standalone company or the possible sale to, or a combination with, a third party would be in the best long-term interest of FCB and FCB s stockholders. As part of their review, the FCB board of directors and FCB management have considered a number of factors, including that additional scale and capital may be required for continued growth of FCB s business, the available potential opportunities for organic and inorganic growth in the Florida market, the present regulatory environment, trends in interest rates and other economic factors as well as the competitive landscape for community banks more generally, including the competition with larger financial institutions operating in the Florida market.

During the course of 2018, the strategic discussions of the FCB board of directors focused on opportunities that might be available to FCB to pursue a business combination that would produce enhanced economies of scale and competitive benefits that could result from becoming a larger institution.

Members of the FCB board of directors and FCB management periodically discussed strategic opportunities of this nature with other financial institutions and with investment banking firms. In March 2018, FCB engaged Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore as financial advisors to the FCB board of directors in connection with FCB s consideration of a potential business combination or sale transaction.

Sandler O Neill was authorized by FCB to contact a selected group of financial institutions, including Synovus, to discuss the potential interest of these financial institutions in a possible business combination with FCB, which institutions were selected based on their size, financial resources and likely ability to complete a transaction with FCB as well as their expected level of potential interest in pursuing a transaction with FCB at this time. In late March and early April of 2018 Sandler O Neill communicated with each of these financial institutions and following such communications eight of these institutions, including Synovus, expressed interest in receiving nonpublic information about FCB.

Between March 29, 2018 and April 16, 2018, FCB entered into confidentiality agreements with each of these eight larger regional banks, including with Synovus on April 9, 2018. Shortly thereafter, FCB granted to each of such parties access to an electronic data room containing certain business, financial, legal and other information of FCB.

Following preliminary discussions with Sandler O Neill, representatives of four of the eight potential counterparties that had executed confidentiality agreements communicated to representatives of Sandler O Neill that they would not pursue a business combination with FCB at that time. The remaining four potential counterparties, including Synovus, expressed interest in pursuing discussions with FCB management regarding a potential transaction.

In April and May of 2018, members of FCB management participated in meetings with representatives of each of the four potential counterparties, including Synovus, to discuss FCB s operations and future prospects and the merits of a potential business combination. During these meetings, members of FCB management communicated to each

potential counterparty that FCB was willing to review acquisition proposals with respect to transactions that delivered substantial value to the stockholders of FCB.

On April 10, 2018, representatives of FCB including Kent Ellert, FCB s Chief Executive Officer, and Jim Baiter, FCB s Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer, and representatives of Sandler O Neill met with representatives of Synovus, including Kessel Stelling, Synovus Chief Executive Officer and President, and Kevin Blair, Synovus Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and discussed numerous aspects of FCB s business and operations. Following this meeting, and at Synovus request, FCB management made available to Synovus additional due diligence materials with respect to FCB s loan portfolio.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

On April 13, 2018, Thomson Reuters published a report that FCB was working with a financial advisor with respect to a potential sale transaction. The trading price of FCB stock, which had closed on April 12, 2018, prior to the publication of this media report, at a price of \$52.90, increased on the basis of this media report and subsequently closed on April 13, 2018 at \$56.25, an increase of approximately 6.3%. Following this media report, no additional inquiries from potentially interested third parties were received by FCB or its financial advisors.

FCB management held discussions with representatives of one of the potential counterparties (which we refer to as Party A) on April 18, 2018 and May 4, 2018 and May 30, 2018. During the course of these discussions, FCB management presented information regarding its franchise and responded to requests for information. At Party A s request, FCB management also made available additional due diligence materials with respect to FCB s loan portfolio.

On April 19, 2018, Mr. Ellert and Mr. Stelling met at Synovus headquarters in Columbus, Georgia to continue discussions about a possible business combination between Synovus and FCB.

On April 23, 2018, representatives of FCB met with representatives of another of the potential counterparties. This counterparty did not request further meetings with FCB management and did not submit a formal indication of interest.

At the Synovus board of directors April 25, 2018 meeting, Synovus senior management presented an overview of the potential transaction with FCB and transaction considerations, including initial due diligence findings and valuation metrics. The Synovus board of directors discussed the proposed business combination and expressed an interest in the potential business combination. Following this meeting, the Synovus board of directors received regular updates from Synovus senior management, including Mr. Stelling, regarding the proposed transaction.

On May 8, 2018, representatives of FCB, including Mr. Ellert and Mr. Baiter, and representatives of Sandler O Neill met with representatives of Synovus, including Mr. Stelling and Mr. Blair, in Naples, Florida to further discuss FCB and its operations as well as the potential benefits of a business combination to the two companies and their respective customers and shareholders.

On May 14, 2018, the FCB board of directors held a meeting at which FCB management discussed with the board the status of exploratory discussions with respect to a potential strategic sale transaction. The FCB board of directors authorized FCB management to continue discussions with Synovus and to continue to explore whether Party A would be interested in pursuing a transaction.

Following the May 14, 2018 meeting of the FCB board of directors, Mr. Ellert periodically discussed with Party A the possibility of Party A s continued interest in a transaction.

On May 15, 2018, representatives of FCB met with representatives of the fourth potential counterparty that had expressed interest in continued discussions. Following this meeting, this counterparty also did not request further meetings with FCB management nor did it submit a formal indication of interest.

During the remainder of May and June 2018, the executive committee of the FCB board of directors met regularly to discuss with Mr. Ellert the status and progress of discussions with the interested potential counterparties.

In early June, representatives of FCB, including Mr. Ellert, continued to have discussions by telephone with representatives of Synovus, including Mr. Stelling, during which they discussed certain aspects of FCB s business and continued discussions about the potential business combination between FCB and Synovus.

On June 13 and June 14, 2018 representatives of FCB, including Mr. Baiter, and representatives of Sandler O Neill met with representatives of Synovus in Weston, Florida to discuss certain operational and financial aspects of FCB, including certain aspects of FCB s loan portfolio, credit management policies and practices and financial resources and condition, and a potential business combination of FCB with Synovus.

On June 26, 2018, Mr. Ellert and Mr. Stelling met in Atlanta, Georgia to discuss value creation opportunities in connection with the potential business combination of FCB and Synovus. Mr. Blair also met with representatives of Sandler O Neill to discuss initial pricing, during which Mr. Blair indicated that based on Synovus due diligence conducted to date, Synovus was considering proposing an exchange ratio of 1.05 shares of Synovus common stock per share of FCB Class A common stock.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Over the next few days, representatives of FCB, including Mr. Ellert, and representatives of Sandler O Neill had numerous discussions with representatives of Synovus, including Mr. Stelling, and representatives of BofA Merrill Lynch, with respect to Synovus due diligence findings, synergies and financial terms of the potential business combination. Following these discussions, on July 3, 2018, Mr. Stelling informed Mr. Ellert that Synovus would be interested in pursuing an acquisition of FCB at an exchange ratio of 1.05 shares of Synovus common stock per share of FCB Class A common stock.

Around this time, discussions with Party A, whose stock price had declined since the prior meetings between Party A and FCB, concluded without Party A delivering an indication of interest.

Following further conversations between representatives of Synovus and representatives of FCB and based on Synovus further due diligence and updated cost savings and synergies estimates, on July 5, 2018, Mr. Stelling informed Mr. Ellert that Synovus could offer an exchange ratio of 1.055 shares of Synovus common stock per share of FCB Class A common stock, which would be Synovus best and final offer. Such offer represented a price of \$56.19 per share of FCB Class A common stock based on Synovus \$53.26 closing price on July 3, 2018, the last trading day prior to Mr. Stelling making this offer.

From early July 2018 through the date of the execution of the merger agreement, FCB and Synovus continued to conduct due diligence investigations with respect to each other s business, legal, regulatory, technology and other matters and the parties respective representatives held discussions concerning the parties respective businesses and prospects, key value drivers and the potential synergies and commercial benefits that could result from a potential combination of the two companies. As part of this process, beginning on July 10, 2018, Synovus made available to FCB and certain of its advisors an electronic data room containing certain business, financial, legal and other information of Synovus.

On July 6, 2018, Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, counsel to FCB (which we refer to as Wachtell Lipton), and FCB delivered a draft merger agreement to Synovus.

On July 9, 2018, a special meeting of the Synovus board of directors was held, which was attended by members of Synovus management and representatives of BofA Merrill Lynch. During the meeting, Synovus management updated the Synovus board of directors on the discussions, meetings and activities relating to the potential transaction to date, including due diligence findings, and provided the Synovus board of directors with a high level overview of FCB. Also during the meeting, representatives of BofA Merrill Lynch provided to the Synovus board of directors their preliminary review of the financial aspects of a potential business combination. The Synovus board of directors discussed the proposed business combination, as well as other potential strategic alternatives, and authorized management to continue to work towards a potential transaction with FCB.

On July 11, 2018, Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP (which we refer to as Simpson Thacher) and Alston & Bird LLP (which we refer to as Alston & Bird), counsel to Synovus, delivered to Wachtell Lipton a revised draft of the merger agreement.

On July 12, 2018, a special meeting of the FCB board of directors was held, which was attended by members of FCB management and representatives of Wachtell Lipton, Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore. Members of FCB management discussed the evolution of FCB, including trends in its financial metrics and its future growth prospects, the macroeconomic and regulatory environment for institutions like FCB, the importance of scale for successfully driving growth and enhancing services offered to customers, and the strategic rationale for a potential transaction with Synovus. Members of FCB management discussed with the FCB board of directors, among other things, that a partnership with Synovus would advance FCB toward achieving a number of strategic objectives such as expanded product offerings and existing and prospective client relationships and provide FCB with additional funding

sources to support asset growth as well as provide FCB shareholders the ability to share in the benefits of the growth of the combined institution through receipt of stock consideration in the transaction. Representatives of Sandler O Neill reviewed the sale process conducted in the spring of 2018, and representatives of Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore provided the FCB board with a financial summary of the terms of the transaction that Synovus was proposing. Representatives of Wachtell Lipton reviewed the fiduciary duties of the FCB board of directors in considering such a transaction. Following discussion, the FCB board of directors expressed its view that FCB management should continue negotiating the terms of a potential transaction with Synovus and report to the FCB board of directors its findings with respect to FCB s due diligence investigation of Synovus.

Following the July 12, 2018 special meeting of the FCB board of directors, representatives of Wachtell Lipton, Simpson Thacher and Alston & Bird exchanged drafts of the merger agreement and worked to finalize the related transaction documents, including, at Synovus request, employment arrangements with certain members of FCB s senior management team including Mr. Ellert and Mr. Baiter.

On July 17, 2018, members of FCB management, together with representatives of Sandler O Neill and Wachtell Lipton, met telephonically with members of Synovus management to discuss aspects of Synovus business and prospects.

On July 18, 2018, a special meeting of the FCB board of directors was held, which was attended by members of FCB management and representatives of Wachtell Lipton, Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore. Members of FCB management reviewed the strategic rationale for a potential transaction with Synovus and provided a report on FCB s due diligence investigations with respect to Synovus. Representatives of Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore discussed extensively their preliminary joint financial analysis of the exchange ratio in connection with the potential merger. The FCB board of directors also discussed with its financial advisors the financial aspects of the proposed transaction relative to other potential opportunities that might be pursued by FCB, including remaining independent, and also reviewed the progression of the discussions Sandler O Neill had had with the other potential counterparties which in the view of the FCB board of directors indicated the limited prospects that any other party would have an interest in a potential transaction. Representatives of Wachtell Lipton reviewed the fiduciary duties of the FCB board of directors in considering such a transaction and the terms of the draft merger agreement being negotiated with Synovus. Following discussion, the FCB board of directors expressed its view that FCB management should proceed to finalize the terms of the merger agreement with Synovus.

On July 20, 2018, a special meeting of the Synovus board of directors was held, which was attended by members of FCB management and representatives of Simpson Thacher, Alston & Bird and BofA Merrill Lynch. Representatives of BofA Merrill Lynch discussed with the Synovus board of directors their preliminary financial analysis of the exchange ratio in connection with the proposed merger. Representatives of Simpson Thacher then discussed the Synovus board of directors fiduciary duties in connection with the proposed business combination with FCB and the terms of the draft merger agreement. Following discussions, the Synovus board of directors authorized and directed management to proceed with finalizing the terms of the merger agreement with FCB and the employment agreements with Mr. Ellert and Mr. Baiter.

Following the July 18, 2018 special meeting of the FCB board of directors and the July 20, 2018 special meeting of the Synovus board of directors, representatives of Wachtell Lipton, Simpson Thacher and Alston & Bird worked to finalize the terms of the merger agreement and related transaction documents.

On July 23, 2018, a special meeting of the FCB board of directors was held, which was attended by members of FCB management and representatives of Wachtell Lipton, Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore. Representatives of Wachtell Lipton and Sandler O Neill updated the FCB board of directors on the status of negotiations with Synovus since the prior meeting of the FCB board of directors. Representatives of Wachtell Lipton reviewed the final terms of the proposed merger agreement. Representatives of Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore discussed updates to their joint financial analysis of the exchange ratio and rendered separate oral opinions, each confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated July 23, 2018, to the FCB board of directors to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to the matters considered, the procedures followed, the assumptions made and various limitations of and qualifications to the review undertaken, the exchange ratio in connection with the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of FCB Class A common stock. See

-Opinions of FCB s Financial Advisors.

After taking into consideration the matters discussed during the July 23, 2018 meeting and prior meetings of the FCB board of directors, including the factors described under the section of this proxy statement entitled —Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors, the FCB board of directors unanimously approved the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, determined that the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement were advisable, fair to and in the best interests of FCB and its stockholders, directed that the adoption of the stockholders of FCB, and recommended that the stockholders of FCB approve the adoption of the merger agreement and approve the transactions contemplated thereby (including the other

proposals set forth in this proxy statement). In addition, in connection with the execution of the merger agreement, the FCB board of directors amended FCB s Bylaws to adopt a forum selection provision providing that the sole and exclusive forum for certain proceedings relating to FCB will be a state court within the State of Delaware (or, if no state court located within the State of Delaware has jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware).

Also on July 23, 2018, a special meeting of the Synovus board of directors was held, which was attended by members of Synovus management and representatives of Simpson Thacher, Alston & Bird and BofA Merrill Lynch. Representatives of BofA Merrill Lynch updated the Synovus board of directors on the status of negotiations with FCB since the prior meeting of the Synovus board of directors and representatives of Simpson Thacher reviewed the final terms of the proposed merger agreement. Also at this meeting, BofA Merrill Lynch reviewed with the Synovus board of directors its financial analysis of the exchange ratio and delivered to the Synovus board of directors an oral opinion, which was confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated July 23, 2018, to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to various assumptions and limitations described in its opinion, the exchange ratio provided for in the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Synovus. See —Opinion of Synovus Financial Advisor. After taking into consideration the matters discussed during the July 23, 2018 meeting and prior meetings of the Synovus board of directors, including the factors described under the section of this proxy statement entitled —Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Synovus Board of Directors, the Synovus board of directors unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby be submitted to a vote at a meeting of the Synovus share issuance.

On the evening of July 23, 2018, following the meetings of the FCB board of directors and the Synovus board of directors, the merger agreement and related transaction documents were executed and delivered by the parties. On the morning of July 24, 2018, FCB and Synovus publicly announced their entry into the merger agreement via a joint press release.

Recommendation of the FCB Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger

In reaching its decision to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, and to recommend that the stockholders of FCB approve the adoption of the merger agreement and approve the transactions contemplated thereby (including the other proposals set forth in this joint proxy statement/prospectus), the FCB board of directors evaluated the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement in consultation with FCB management, as well as its financial and legal advisors, and considered a number of factors, including the following factors:

each of FCB's, Synovus' and the combined company's business, operations, financial condition, asset quality, earnings and prospects;

the extensive review undertaken by the FCB board of directors and management, with the assistance of financial and legal advisors, with respect to the strategic alternatives available to FCB;

- the challenges facing FCB as an independent institution, including competition with larger financial
- institutions operating in the Florida market, and the FCB board of directors' belief that combining with a larger financial institution with additional scale and capital would be in the best long-term interest of FCB and FCB's stockholders;

the available potential opportunities for organic and inorganic growth in the Florida market, and the belief of the FCB board of directors and management in the importance of scale for successfully driving growth and enhancing services offered to customers;

the enhanced organic growth opportunities through the potential to offer the full Synovus product set to FCB's eustomers and prospective customers and the ability to leverage the combined company's larger capital base to better serve customers of both companies; the anticipated pro forma impact of the merger on the combined company, including the expected impact on financial metrics including earnings and on regulatory capital levels;

TABLE OF CONTENTS

its consideration that the transaction with Synovus was more favorable to holders of shares of FCB Class A common stock than the potential value that might result from other alternatives reasonably available to FCB, including: its consideration, in consultation with FCB's management and with FCB's financial advisors, of the prospects of FCB as an independent company;

the fact that FCB and, at FCB's direction, Sandler O'Neill had contacted a selected group of financial institutions believed by FCB to have a significant likelihood of having a serious interest in a business combination with FCB that did not result in any other formal offers to FCB regarding a combination transaction; and

the likelihood of consummating the merger with Synovus;

the competitive environment in which FCB and Synovus operate and prevailing and possible future changes in interest rates;

the historical performance of Synovus common stock and Synovus common stock's liquidity in terms of average daily trading volume, which had historically been meaningfully greater than the average daily trading volume of FCB Class A common stock;

the fact that the merger consideration would be in stock and with a fixed exchange ratio, which would allow FCB's stockholders to participate in the future performance of the combined company (including any realized synergies); with the merger consideration consisting of shares of Synovus common stock at a fixed exchange ratio, the potential for the value of the merger consideration to be received by holders of shares of FCB Class A common stock to be adversely affected by a decrease in the trading price of Synovus common stock;

the likelihood that Synovus will be able to obtain requisite regulatory approvals for the transaction on a timely basis, based on FCB management's discussions with Synovus management;

the complementary geographic scope of the two companies, diversifying the footprint of the combined company in high growth markets;

the nature of the product offerings, customers and geographic areas of the two companies would enable FCB to achieve goals it would have independently attempted to pursue in connection with its strategic plan (including expanding product offerings and existing and prospective client relationships);

the similarities in the two companies' customer- and community-centric cultures, which would benefit a successful integration of the two companies;

the soundness of Synovus' capital position and management's expectation that the combined company will have a strong capital position upon completion of the merger;

the anticipated continued participation of certain of FCB's employees in the combined company, including the fact that Mr. Ellert had agreed, at Synovus' request, to become Executive Vice President of Synovus and President of the Florida Region, which may enhance the likelihood that the expected strategic benefits of the merger will be realized; the separate written opinions, dated July 23, 2018, of Sandler O'Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore,

respectively, to the FCB board of directors as to the fairness, from a financial point of view and as of the date of the opinions, of the exchange ratio to the holders of FCB Class A common stock, which opinions were based on and subject to the matters considered, the procedures followed, the assumptions made and various limitations of and qualifications to the review undertaken as more fully described under the section entitled —Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors beginning on page <u>60</u>;

its review and discussions with FCB's management and legal advisors concerning FCB's due diligence examination of Synovus;

the terms of the merger agreement, including the fixed exchange ratio of stock consideration, expected tax treatment of the merger as a reorganization for United States federal income tax purposes and the commitment of Synovus to pay a termination fee to FCB in certain circumstances in the event that the merger is not completed (see The Merger Agreement beginning on page 100);

the fact that the implied value of the merger consideration as of July 20, 2018 of approximately \$57.61 per share of FCB Class A common stock, based on Synovus' common stock closing price of \$54.61 per share on July 20, 2018, represented a discount of approximately 1.5% to the closing price of FCB Class A common stock of \$58.50 per share on July 20, 2018, and risk that the market would react negatively to the announcement of the merger transaction; the fact that the merger agreement includes certain provisions that prohibit FCB from soliciting alternative transactions and from taking certain actions in response to unsolicited proposals for alternative transactions (see The Merger Agreement—Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers beginning on page 110);

FCB's obligation to pay Synovus a termination fee of \$93.5 million in certain circumstances;

the conditions to closing contained in the merger agreement, which the FCB board of directors believed are reasonable and customary in number and scope, and which, in the case of the condition related to the accuracy of FCB's representations and warranties, are generally subject to a material adverse effect qualification (see The Merger Agreement—Conditions to Complete the Merger beginning on page 111);

the potential risks associated with successfully integrating FCB's business, operations and workforce with those of Synovus, including the costs and risks of successfully integrating the two companies;

the potential for diversion of management and employee attention and resources from the operation of FCB's and Synovus' business and the risk of employee attrition and the potential impact on customer service pending the completion of the merger;

the potential for legal claims challenging the merger;

the regulatory and other approvals required in connection with the merger and the possibility that such regulatory approvals will not be received in a timely manner or may impose unacceptable conditions;

the fact that the exchange ratio is fixed, which the FCB board of directors believed was consistent with market practice for transactions of this type and with the strategic purpose of the transaction;

the merger agreement provisions generally requiring FCB to conduct its business in the ordinary course and the other restrictions on the conduct of FCB's business prior to completion of the merger, which may delay or prevent FCB from undertaking business opportunities that may arise pending completion of the merger;

the fact that FCB stockholders would not be entitled to appraisal or dissenters' rights in connection with the merger; that FCB's directors and executive officers may have interests in the merger that are different from or in addition to those of its stockholders generally, as described under —Interests of FCB's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger, beginning on page 88;

the fact that, while the merger is expected to be completed, there are no assurances that all conditions to the parties' obligations to complete the merger will be satisfied or waived; and

the other risks described under Risk Factors, beginning on page 27, and the risks of investing in Synovus' Class A common stock identified in the Risk Factors sections of Synovus' periodic reports filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference herein.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the FCB board of directors is not intended to be exhaustive, but includes the material factors considered by the FCB board of directors. In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, the

FCB board of directors did not quantify or assign any relative weights to the factors considered, and individual directors may have given different weights to different factors. The FCB board of directors considered all these factors as a whole, and overall considered the factors to be favorable to, and to support, its determination.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the FCB board of directors is forward-looking in nature. This information should be read in light of the factors described under the section entitled Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements beginning on page 25.

For the reasons set forth above, the FCB board of directors has unanimously (i) determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of FCB and its stockholders and declared that the merger agreement is advisable and (i) approved the execution of the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. The FCB board of directors unanimously recommends that the FCB stockholders vote **FOR** the merger proposal, **FOR** the FCB compensation proposal and **FOR** the FCB adjournment proposal, if necessary or appropriate to solicit additional proxies.

Unaudited Financial Forecasts

FCB and Synovus do not, as a matter of course, publicly disclose forecasts or internal projections as to its future performance, earnings or other results due to, among other reasons, the inherent uncertainty of the underlying assumptions and estimates, except Synovus, from time to time, publicly discloses certain expected financial results and operational metrics for the current year and certain future years in their respective regular earnings press releases and other investor materials.

However, in connection with the merger, FCB senior management prepared or approved for use certain unaudited prospective financial information with respect to FCB on a standalone basis and without giving effect to the merger (which we refer to as the FCB financial forecasts) and Synovus senior management prepared or approved for use certain unaudited prospective financial information with respect to Synovus on a standalone basis and without giving effect to the merger (which we refer to as the Synovus financial forecasts) which were provided to and considered by Sandler O'Neill, Guggenheim Securities, Evercore and BofA Merrill Lynch for the purpose of performing financial analyses in connection with their respective fairness opinions, as described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under the heading —Opinions of FCB's Financial Advisors beginning on page 60 and —Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor beginning on page <u>8</u>1, respectively, and the FCB and Synovus boards of directors in connection with their respective to the FCB financial forecasts and the Synovus financial forecasts, together with the Synovus-FCB financial forecasts which are described below, collectively as the financial forecasts.

The financial forecasts were not prepared for the purposes of, or with a view toward, public disclosure or with a view toward complying with the guidelines established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for preparation and presentation of prospective financial information, published guidelines of the SEC regarding forward-looking statements or generally accepted accounting principles. A summary of certain significant elements of this information is set forth below, and is included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus solely for the purpose of providing FCB stockholders and Synovus shareholders access to certain nonpublic information made available to FCB s and Synovus financial advisors for the purpose of performing financial analyses in connection with their respective fairness opinions. The information included below does not comprise all of the prospective financial information provided to FCB s or Synovus financial advisors.

Although presented with numeric specificity, the financial forecasts reflect numerous estimates and assumptions made by FCB senior management or Synovus senior management, as applicable, at the time such forecasts were prepared or approved for use by their respective financial advisors and represent FCB senior management's or Synovus senior management's respective evaluation of FCB's expected future financial performance on a stand-alone basis, without

reference to the merger and Synovus senior management's evaluation of Synovus' expected future financial performance on a stand-alone basis, without reference to the merger. These and the other estimates and assumptions underlying the financial forecasts involve judgments with respect to, among other things, economic, competitive, regulatory and financial market conditions and future business decisions that may not be realized and that are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive and regulatory uncertainties and contingencies, including, among other things, the inherent uncertainty of the business and economic conditions affecting the industry in which FCB and Synovus operate and the risks and uncertainties described under Risk Factors beginning on page <u>27</u>, Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking

Statements beginning on page 25 and in the reports that FCB and Synovus file with the SEC from time to time, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are outside the control of FCB and Synovus and will be beyond the control of the combined company. There can be no assurance that the underlying assumptions would prove to be accurate or that the projected results would be realized, and actual results could differ materially from those reflected in the financial forecasts, whether or not the merger is completed. Further, these assumptions do not include all potential actions that the senior management of FCB or Synovus could or might have taken during these time periods. The inclusion in this joint proxy statement/prospectus of the unaudited prospective financial information below should not be regarded as an indication that FCB, Synovus or their respective boards of directors or financial advisors, considered, or now consider, these projections and forecasts to be material information to any FCB stockholders or Synovus shareholders, as the case may be, particularly in light of the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with those projections and forecasts. The financial forecasts are not fact and should not be relied upon as being necessarily indicative of actual future results, and this information should not be relied on as such. The financial projections also reflect numerous variables, expectations and assumptions available at the time they were prepared as to certain business decisions that are subject to change and do not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the date they were prepared. No assurances can be given that if these financial forecasts and the underlying assumptions had been prepared as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, similar assumptions would be used. In addition, the financial forecasts may not reflect the manner in which Synovus would operate the combined company after the merger.

Grant Thornton LLP (FCB s independent registered public accounting firm) and KPMG LLP (Synovus independent registered public accounting firm) have not examined, compiled or otherwise performed any procedures with respect to the prospective financial information contained in these financial forecasts and, accordingly, Grant Thornton LLP and KPMG LLP have not expressed any opinion or given any other form of assurance with respect thereto and they assume no responsibility for the prospective financial information. The reports of the independent registered public accounting firms incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus relate to the historical financial information of FCB and Synovus, respectively. Such reports do not extend to the financial forecasts and should not be read to do so. No independent registered public accounting firm has examined, compiled or otherwise performed any procedures with respect to the prospective financial information contained in these financial forecasts and, accordingly, no independent registered public accounting firm has expressed any opinion or given any other form of assurance with respect thereto and no independent registered public accounting firm has expressed any opinion or given any other form of assurance with respect thereto and no independent registered public accounting firm assumes any responsibility for the prospective financial information.

FCB Financial Forecasts

For the purposes of the FCB net present value analyses performed by FCB s financial advisors in connection with their respective fairness opinions, FCB senior management directed FCB s financial advisors to rely upon and utilize estimates for FCB earnings per share for 2018 and 2019 that reflected consensus Wall Street research estimates. The consensus median Wall Street estimates of FCB earnings per share utilized by FCB s financial advisors were \$3.67 and \$4.32 for 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Further, for purposes of the FCB net present value analyses performed by FCB s financial advisors in connection with their respective fairness opinions, FCB senior management provided FCB s financial advisors with, and directed FCB s financial advisors to rely upon and utilize, 15%, 14%, 13% and 12% annual growth rates of FCB earnings per share for 2020 through 2023, respectively.

In connection with the merger, Synovus senior management also prepared certain unaudited prospective financial information relating to FCB on a standalone basis and without giving effect to the merger (which we refer to as the

Synovus-FCB financial forecasts), which was provided solely to BofA Merrill Lynch for the purpose of performing financial analyses in connection with its fairness opinion, as described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under

the heading —Opinion of Synovus' Financial Advisor beginning on page 81 and to the Synovus board of directors in connection with its evaluation of the merger. The Synovus-FCB financial forecasts were developed from consensus Wall Street research estimates, with certain adjustments and extrapolations made by Synovus in light of, among other things, the due diligence Synovus conducted on FCB

and certain macroeconomic and industry trends and reflect Synovus best estimates as to FCB s future performance. Synovus senior management provided BofA Merrill Lynch with, and directed BofA Merrill Lynch to rely upon and utilize the Synovus-FCB financial forecasts. The following table presents a summary of the Synovus-FCB financial forecasts:

| | 2018E | 2019E | 2020E | , | 2021E | 2022E | 2023E | 2024 E | |
|----------------------------|---------------|-------------------|--------------|----|--------|--------------|--------------|---------------|--|
| Net Income (in millions) | \$ 176 (1) | \$ $217^{(1)}$ | \$ 243 | \$ | 272 | \$ 299 | \$ 323 | \$ 342 | |
| Earnings Per Share | \$ 3.62 | \$ 4.40 | \$ 4.92 | \$ | 5.51 | \$ 6.07 | \$ 6.55 | | |
| Total Assets (in millions) | \$ 12,984 | \$ 14,694 | \$ 16,163 | \$ | 17,779 | \$ 19,557 | \$ 21,122 | | |

(1) Synovus senior management directed BofA Merrill Lynch to rely upon and utilize estimates for FCB's net income for 2018 and 2019 that reflected consensus median Wall Street research estimates. *Synovus Financial Forecasts*

For the purposes of the Synovus net present value analyses performed by FCB s financial advisors in connection with their respective fairness opinions and for purposes of BofA Merrill Lynch s analysis in connection with its fairness opinion, Synovus senior management directed FCB s financial advisors and BofA Merrill Lynch to rely upon and utilize consensus median Wall Street research estimates relating to Synovus for 2018 and 2019.

The consensus median Wall Street estimates relating to Synovus that FCB s financial advisors utilized included the following:

| | 2 | 018E | 2 | 019E |
|----------------------------|------|--------|-----|--------|
| Net Income (in millions) | \$ | 425 | \$ | 463 |
| Earnings Per Share | \$ | 3.58 | \$ | 3.98 |
| Total Assets (in millions) | \$ 3 | 32,776 | \$3 | 34,331 |

The consensus median Wall Street estimates relating to Synovus that BofA Merrill Lynch utilized included the following:

| | 2 | 018E | 2 | 2019E | | |
|----------------------------|------|--------|------|--------|--|--|
| Net Income (in millions) | \$ | 425 | \$ | 464 | | |
| Earnings Per Share | \$ | 3.61 | \$ | 3.98 | | |
| Total Assets (in millions) | \$ 3 | 32,776 | \$ 3 | 34,331 | | |

The incremental differences in the consensus median Wall Street estimates relating to Synovus used by FCB s financial advisors and BofA Merrill Lynch were due to timing and/or rounding.

Synovus senior management also provided FCB s financial advisors and BofA Merrill Lynch with, and directed FCB s financial advisors and BofA Merrill Lynch to rely upon and utilize, assumptions of a \$1.12 dividend per share of Synovus common stock in 2019 and a dividend payout ratio of 30% thereafter, and the following growth rates through 2023 in the case of the FCB s financial advisors and through 2024 in the case of BofA Merrill Lynch:

| | 2020E | | 2021E | | 2022E | | 2023E | | 2024E | |
|--------------------------------|--------------|---|-------|---|-------|---|-------|-----|-------|---|
| Net Income Growth Rate | 6 | % | 5 | % | 5 | % | 4 | % | 4 | % |
| Earnings Per Share Growth Rate | 8 | % | 7 | % | 7 | % | 6 | % | - | |
| Total Assets Growth Rate | 5 | % | 4 | % | 4 | % | | (1) | - | |

BofA Merrill Lynch used a total assets growth rate of 3% for 2023 and FCB's financial advisors used a total assets growth rate of 4% for 2023. The incremental difference was due to timing and/or rounding.

In connection with the pro forma financial analysis, Synovus senior management provided FCB s financial advisors and BofA Merrill Lynch with certain assumptions regarding, among other items, purchase accounting adjustments. For purposes of its analysis, BofA Merrill Lynch utilized assumptions that included a gross credit mark on loans of \$51 million in excess of the reserve, a loan fair value mark rate write-down of \$66 million, accreted through income over four years, and a borrowings fair value mark write-up to equity of \$11 million, pre-tax, amortized through income income over three years, as well as annual cost savings of approximately 26% of FCB s estimated noninterest expense.

For purposes of their analysis, FCB s financial advisors utilized assumptions that Synovus senior management provided slightly earlier and that included a gross credit mark on loans of \$50 million in excess of the reserve, a loan fair value mark rate write-down of \$56 million, accreted through income over four years, and a borrowings fair value mark write-up to equity of \$11 million, pre-tax, amortized through income over three years, as well as annual cost savings of approximately 25% of FCB s estimated noninterest expense.

General

The financial forecasts were prepared separately using, in some cases, different assumptions, and are not intended to be added together. Adding the financial forecasts together for the two companies is not intended to represent the results the combined company will achieve if the merger is completed and is not intended to represent forecasted financial information for the combined company if the merger is completed.

By including in this joint proxy statement/prospectus a summary of the financial forecasts, neither Synovus nor FCB nor any of their respective representatives has made or makes any representation to any person regarding the ultimate performance of FCB or Synovus compared to the information contained in the financial forecasts. Neither FCB, Synovus nor, after completion of the merger, the combined company undertakes any obligation to update or otherwise revise the financial forecasts or financial information to reflect circumstances existing since their preparation or to reflect the occurrence of subsequent or unanticipated events, even in the event that any or all of the underlying assumptions are shown to be in error, or to reflect changes in general economic or industry conditions.

The financial forecasts summarized in this section are not being included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus in order to induce any FCB stockholder to vote in favor of the merger proposal or any of the other proposals to be voted on at the FCB special meeting or to induce any Synovus shareholder to vote in favor of the Synovus share issuance proposal or any of the other proposals to be voted on at the Synovus special meeting.

Opinions of FCB s Financial Advisors

Overview

FCB retained Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore to act as financial advisors to the FCB board of directors in connection with the potential sale of or merger or other business combination involving FCB. At the July 23, 2018 meeting at which the FCB board of directors considered the merger agreement, Sandler O Neill, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore reviewed with the FCB board of directors their joint financial analysis of the exchange ratio and rendered separate oral opinions, each confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated July 23, 2018, to the FCB board of directors to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to the matters considered, the procedures followed, the assumptions made and various limitations of and qualifications to the review undertaken, the exchange ratio in connection with the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of FCB Class A common stock. Sandler O Neill s, Guggenheim Securities and Evercore s written opinions, which are attached as Annex B, Annex C and Annex D, respectively, to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and which you should read carefully and in their entirety, are subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other conditions contained in such opinions. The descriptions of the opinions set forth below are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of the opinions.

Opinion of Sandler O Neill

FCB selected Sandler O Neill as financial advisor to the FCB board of directors because Sandler O Neill is a nationally recognized investment banking firm whose principal business specialty is financial institutions. As part of its

investment banking business, Sandler O Neill is regularly engaged in the valuation of financial institutions and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions and other corporate transactions. Sandler O Neill acted as financial advisor to the FCB board of directors in connection with the proposed merger and participated in certain of the negotiations leading to the execution of the merger agreement.

Sandler O Neill s opinion speaks only as of the date of the opinion. The opinion was directed to the FCB board of directors in connection with its consideration of the merger agreement and the merger and does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder of FCB as to how such stockholder should vote at any meeting of stockholders called to consider and vote upon the approval of the merger. Sandler O Neill s opinion was directed only to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the exchange ratio to the holders of FCB Class A common

stock and did not address the underlying business decision of FCB to engage in the merger, the form or structure of the merger or any other transactions contemplated in the merger agreement, the relative merits of the merger as compared to any other alternative transactions or business strategies that might exist for FCB or the effect of any other transaction in which FCB might engage. Sandler O Neill also did not express any opinion as to the fairness of the amount or nature of the compensation to be received in the merger by any officer, director, or employee of FCB or Synovus, or any class of such persons, if any, relative to the compensation to be received in the merger by any officer. Sandler O Neill s opinion was approved by Sandler O Neill s fairness opinion committee.

In connection with its opinion, Sandler O Neill reviewed and considered, among other things:

a draft of the merger agreement, dated July 20, 2018;

certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of FCB that Sandler O'Neill deemed relevant;

certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of Synovus that Sandler O'Neill deemed relevant;

publicly available median analyst estimates for FCB for the years ending December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, as approved by the senior management of FCB, and long-term growth rate assumptions for FCB, as provided by the senior management of FCB;

publicly available median analyst estimates for Synovus for the years ending December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, as approved by the senior management of Synovus, and long-term growth rate and dividend assumptions for Synovus, as provided by the senior management of Synovus;

the pro forma financial impact of the merger on Synovus based on certain assumptions relating to purchase accounting adjustments, cost savings and transaction expenses, as provided by the senior management of Synovus; the relative contribution of assets, liabilities, equity and earnings of FCB and Synovus to the combined entity; the publicly reported historical price and trading activity for FCB Class A common stock and Synovus common stock, including a comparison of certain stock market information for FCB Class A common stock and Synovus common stock and certain stock indices as well as publicly available information for certain other similar companies, the securities of which were publicly traded;

a comparison of certain financial information for FCB and Synovus with similar institutions for which information was publicly available;

the financial terms of certain recent business combinations in the bank and thrift industry (on a regional and nationwide basis), to the extent publicly available;

the current market environment generally and the banking environment in particular; and

such other information, financial studies, analyses and investigations and financial, economic and market criteria as Sandler O'Neill considered relevant.

Sandler O Neill also discussed with certain members of the senior management of FCB the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of FCB and held similar discussions with certain members of the senior management of Synovus regarding the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of Synovus.

In performing its review, Sandler O Neill relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all of the financial and other information that was available to and reviewed by Sandler O Neill from public sources, that was provided to Sandler O Neill by FCB or Synovus, or their respective representatives or that was otherwise reviewed by Sandler O Neill, and Sandler O Neill assumed such accuracy and completeness for purposes of rendering its opinion without any independent verification or investigation. Sandler O Neill relied on the assurances of the respective senior managements of FCB and Synovus that they were not aware of any facts or circumstances that would make any of such information inaccurate or misleading. Sandler O Neill was not asked to undertake, and did not undertake, an independent verification of any of such information and Sandler O Neill did not assume

any responsibility or liability for the accuracy or completeness thereof. Sandler O Neill did not make an independent evaluation or perform an appraisal of the specific assets, the collateral securing assets or the liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of FCB or Synovus, or any of their respective subsidiaries, and Sandler O Neill was not furnished with any evaluations or appraisals prepared by others. Sandler O Neill rendered no opinion or evaluation on the collectability of any assets or the future performance of any loans of FCB or Synovus. Sandler O Neill did not make an independent evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses of FCB or Synovus, or of the combined entity after the merger, and Sandler O Neill did not review any individual credit files relating to FCB or Synovus. Sandler O Neill assumed, with FCB s consent, that the respective allowances for loan losses for both FCB and Synovus were adequate to cover such losses and would be adequate on a pro forma basis for the combined entity.

In preparing its analyses, Sandler O Neill used publicly available median analyst estimates for FCB for the years ending December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, as approved by the senior management of FCB, and long-term growth rate assumptions for FCB, as provided by the senior management of FCB, as well as publicly available median analyst estimates for Synovus for the years ending December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, as approved by the senior management of Synovus, and long-term growth rate and dividend assumptions for Synovus, as provided by the senior management of Synovus. Sandler O Neill also received and used in its pro forma analyses certain assumptions relating to purchase accounting adjustments, cost savings and transaction expenses, as provided by the senior management of Synovus. With respect to the foregoing information, the respective senior managements of FCB and Synovus confirmed to Sandler O Neill that such information reflected (or, in the case of the publicly available median analyst estimates referred to above, were consistent with) the best currently available estimates and judgments of those respective senior managements as to the future financial performance of FCB and Synovus, respectively, and the other matters covered thereby. Sandler O Neill assumed that the future financial performance reflected in all of the foregoing information used by Sandler O Neill would be achieved. Sandler O Neill expressed no opinion as to such information, or the assumptions on which they were based. Sandler O Neill also assumed that there was no material change in the respective assets, financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects of FCB and Synovus since the date of the most recent financial statements made available to Sandler O Neill. Sandler O Neill assumed in all respects material to its analysis that FCB and Synovus would remain as going concerns for all periods relevant to its analysis.

Sandler O Neill also assumed, with FCB s consent, that (i) each of the parties to the merger agreement would comply in all material respects with all material terms and conditions of the merger agreement and all related agreements, that all of the representations and warranties contained in such agreements were true and correct in all material respects, that each of the parties to such agreements would perform in all material respects all of the covenants and other obligations required to be performed by such party under such agreements and that the conditions precedent in such agreements were and would not be waived, (ii) in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatory or third party approvals, consents and releases with respect to the merger, no delay, limitation, restriction or condition would be imposed that would have an adverse effect on FCB, Synovus or the merger or any related transaction, and (iii) the merger and related transactions (including, without limitation, the upstream merger and the bank merger) would be consummated in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement without any waiver, modification or amendment of any material term, condition or agreement thereof and in compliance with all applicable laws and other requirements, and (iv) the merger and the upstream merger would qualify as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax purposes. Sandler O Neill expressed no opinion as to any of the legal, accounting or tax matters relating to the merger or any other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Sandler O Neill s opinion was necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to Sandler O Neill as of, the date of its opinion. Events occurring after the date of the opinion could materially affect Sandler O Neill s opinion. Sandler O Neill has not undertaken to update, revise, reaffirm or withdraw its opinion or otherwise comment upon events occurring after the date thereof. Sandler O Neill expressed no opinion as to the trading values of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock at any time or what the value of Synovus common stock would be once it is actually received by the holders of FCB Class A

common stock.

Sandler O Neill is acting as FCB s financial advisor in connection with the merger and will receive a fee for such services of \$9.75 million, of which \$1 million became payable upon the delivery of Sandler O Neill s

opinion and the balance is payable if the merger is consummated. FCB has also agreed to indemnify Sandler O Neill against certain claims and liabilities arising out of Sandler O Neill s engagement and to reimburse Sandler O Neill for certain of its out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with Sandler O Neill s engagement.

Sandler O Neill did not provide any other investment banking services to FCB in the two years preceding the date of Sandler O Neill s opinion. In the two years preceding the date of Sandler O Neill s opinion, Sandler O Neill provided certain investment banking services to Synovus and received fees for such services. Sandler O Neill (i) acted as a co-manager in connection with the offer and sale of Synovus perpetual preferred stock in June 2018, (ii) acted as a co-manager in connection with the offer and sale of Synovus senior notes in January 2018, and (iii) acted as financial advisor to Synovus in connection with Synovus strategic transaction with Capital One Financial Corp. and World s Foremost Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cabela s Inc. In connection with the foregoing transactions, Sandler O Neill received fees (including underwriting discounts) of approximately \$0.6 million in the aggregate from Synovus. In the ordinary course of Sandler O Neill s business as a broker-dealer, Sandler O Neill may purchase securities from and sell securities to FCB and Synovus. Sandler O Neill may also actively trade the equity and debt securities of FCB and Synovus for Sandler O Neill s own account and for the accounts of its customers.

Opinion of Guggenheim Securities

In selecting Guggenheim Securities as its financial advisor, the FCB board of directors considered that, among other things, Guggenheim Securities is an internationally recognized investment banking, financial advisory and securities firm whose senior professionals have substantial experience advising companies in, among other industries, the financial services industry. Guggenheim Securities, as part of its investment banking, financial advisory and capital markets businesses, is regularly engaged in the valuation and financial assessment of businesses and securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, recapitalizations, spin-offs/split-offs, restructurings, securities offerings in both the private and public capital markets and valuations for corporate and other purposes.

For purposes of this description of Guggenheim Securities opinion, we may sometimes refer to the merger and the upstream merger, collectively, as the transaction in this section. In reading the discussion of Guggenheim Securities opinion set forth below, you should be aware that such opinion (and, as applicable, any materials provided in connection therewith):

was provided to the FCB board of directors (in its capacity as such) for its information and assistance in connection with its evaluation of the exchange ratio;

did not constitute a recommendation to the FCB board of directors with respect to the transaction;

does not constitute advice or a recommendation to any holder of FCB Class A common stock or Synovus common stock as to how to vote or act in connection with the transaction or otherwise;

did not address FCB's underlying business or financial decision to pursue the transaction, the relative merits of the transaction as compared to any alternative business or financial strategies that might exist for FCB or the effects of any other transaction in which FCB might engage;

addressed only the fairness, from a financial point of view and as of the date of such opinion, of the exchange ratio to the holders of FCB Class A common stock;

expressed no view or opinion as to (i) any other term, aspect or implication of (a) the transaction (including, without limitation, the form or structure of the transaction) or the merger agreement or (b) any other agreement, transaction document or instrument contemplated by the merger agreement or to be entered into or amended in connection with the transaction or (ii) the fairness, financial or otherwise, of the transaction to, or of any consideration to be paid to or received by, the holders of any class of securities (other than as expressly specified herein), creditors or other constituencies of FCB or Synovus; and

expressed no view or opinion as to the fairness, financial or otherwise, of the amount or nature of any compensation payable to or to be received by any of FCB's or Synovus' directors, officers or employees, or any class of such persons,

in connection with the transaction relative to the exchange ratio or otherwise.

Guggenheim Securities written opinion, which was authorized for issuance by the Fairness Opinion and Valuation Committee of Guggenheim Securities, is necessarily based on economic, capital markets and other conditions, and the information made available to Guggenheim Securities, as of the date of such opinion. Guggenheim Securities has no responsibility for updating or revising its opinion based on facts, circumstances or events occurring after the date of the rendering of the opinion.

In the course of performing its reviews and analyses for rendering its opinion, Guggenheim Securities:

reviewed a draft of the merger agreement dated July 20, 2018;

• reviewed certain publicly available business and financial information regarding each of FCB and Synovus;

reviewed certain non-public business and financial information regarding FCB's and Synovus' respective businesses and prospects, as prepared and provided by FCB's and Synovus' senior management, respectively; reviewed Wall Street equity research consensus estimates for FCB relating to calendar years 2018 and 2019 and long-term growth rate assumptions relating to calendar years 2020 through 2023 provided by FCB's senior management (which we refer to in this section for purposes of this description of Guggenheim Securities' opinion, collectively, as the FCB financial forecasts), in each case as approved by FCB's senior management; reviewed Wall Street equity research consensus estimates for Synovus relating to calendar years 2018 and 2019 and long-term growth rate and dividend assumptions relating to calendar years 2020 through 2023 provided by Synovus' senior management (which we refer to in this section for purposes of this description of Guggenheim Securities' opinion, collectively, as the Synovus financial forecasts and, together with the FCB financial forecasts, as the

financial forecasts), in each case as approved by Synovus' senior management; reviewed certain estimated cost savings and other combination benefits and estimated costs to achieve such synergies (which we refer to in this section for purposes of this description of Guggenheim Securities' opinion, collectively, as synergy estimates or synergies) expected to result from the transaction, all as prepared and provided by Synovus'

senior management; discussed with FCB's senior management their strategic and financial rationale for the transaction as well as their

views of FCB's and Synovus' respective businesses, operations, historical and projected financial results and future prospects;

reviewed and discussed with FCB and its lead financial advisor, Sandler O'Neill, the solicitation of indications of interest from various third parties, including Synovus, regarding a potential transaction involving FCB (which we refer to in this section for purposes of this description of Guggenheim Securities' opinion as the solicitation process);